A Textbook of Nanoscience & Nanotechnology



Suhas Bhattacharya Parag Agarwal

W

A Textbook of Nanoscience & Nanotechnology Suhas Bhattacharya, Parag Agarwal

A Textbook of Nanoscience & Nanotechnology

Suhas Bhattacharya Parag Agarwal



A Textbook of Nanoscience & Nanotechnology Suhas Bhattacharya, Parag Agarwal

This edition published by Wisdom Press, Murari Lal Street, Ansari Road, Daryaganj, New Delhi - 110002.

ISBN: 978-93-82006-50-3

Edition: 2022 (Revised)

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

This publication may not be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without the prior permission of the publishers.

Wisdom Press

Production Office: "Dominant House", G - 316, Sector - 63, Noida, National Capital Region - 201301. Ph. 0120-4270027, 4273334.

Sales & Marketing: 4378/4-B, Murari Lal Street, Ansari Road, Daryaganj, New Delhi-110002. Ph.: 011-23281685, 41043100. e-mail : wisdompress@ymail.com

CONTENTS

Chapter 1. A Primer of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology	. 1
— Parag Agarwal	
Chapter 2. Nano the Beginning, Energetics and Implications	. 9
— Amit Kumar Sharma	
Chapter 3. Electron Microscopies and Electroanalytical Techniques	16
— Ajay Kumar Upadhyay	
Chapter 4. Principles of Scanning Tunneling and Atomic Force Microscopies	24
— Pavan Kumar Singh	
Chapter 5. Photoelectron Spectroscopy for the Study of Nanomaterials	32
— Vishnu Prasad Shrivastava	
Chapter 6. Structure of Materials by Diffraction Techniques	39
— Sri Prakash Pandey	
Chapter 7. Electroanalytical Techniques used for Nanomaterials Research	16
— Diptonil Banerjee	
Chapter 8. Instrumentation for Raman Scattering and Application	53
— Amit Kumar Gangwar	
Chapter 9. Advanced Tools of Mass Spectrometry Relevant to Nanoscale Materials	52
— Parag Agarwal	
Chapter 10. Synthesis of Nanomaterials: General Issues of Concern	59
— Ajay Kumar Upadhyay	
Chapter 11. Theoretical Understanding of Nanosystems	77
— Vishnu Prasad Shrivastava	
Chapter 12. Quantum Clusters of Gold: Electronic Structure and Optical Properties	37
— Sri Prakash Pandey	

CHAPTER 1 A PRIMER OF NANOSCIENCE AND NANOTECHNOLOGY

Parag Agarwal, Associate Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- paragagarwak.2008@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

Numerous scientific and technological advances have been fueled by the revolutionary disciplines of research and application known as nanoscience and nanotechnology. The essential ideas and multidisciplinary nature of nanoscience and nanotechnology are briefly reviewed in this introduction. The study of materials' characteristics and behaviors at the nanoscale, whose sizes vary from 1 to 100 nanometers, is known as nanoscience. Insights into quantum effects, surface interactions, and new features that may be used for a variety of applications are provided as the book digs into the peculiar behaviors shown by materials at this size.

KEYWORDS:

Nanoparticles, Nanoscale, Quantum, Research, Revolutionary.

INTRODUCTION

The two words nano and science combine to form the compound term nanoscience. Although the prefix nano may apply to 10-9 units such as nanometer, nanoampere, nanosecond, etc., it only explicitly refers to nanometer in nanoscience. As a result, nanoscience is the study of things that fall inside the nanoscale size range. This science is distinct because matter displays peculiar features in this size regime. distinct materials experience distinct types of size-dependent property fluctuation. Some materials experience it early on, while others experience it at much smaller dimensions. The 'nano' regime of matter, where property manifestations are obvious, so varies. However, it is now generally understood to be the study of matter whose basic building blocks have dimensions less than 100 nanometers[1], [2].

The use of materials, structures, or phenomena at the nanoscale scale is known as nanotechnology. A nanomaterial is a macroscopic object made of units of less than this dimension. Although a material's characteristics at the nanoscale change significantly from those in its bulk, measuring length at the nanometer level does not reveal any novel phenomena. As a result, the word "nanometer" alone says nothing special. The results of measuring a quantity with nanoampere and nanosecond precision, respectively, are similarly unremarkable. Consequently, the important size is the nanometer scale rather than the nanoscale. To go forward, a number of issues need to be cleared. The term "dimension" refers to the distinctive dimensions rather than the whole length scale of the object under study. There's a chance that a nanosheet won't be nanometer-sized along every axis.

The sheet's length and width may be measured in bigger units even when the sheet's thickness is measured in nanometers. A nanowire may have a length in micrometers but a diameter in nanometers. These substances are nanomaterials because their distinctive dimension—in the aforementioned examples, the breadth or diameteris measured in nanometers. These are characteristic dimensions since they determine the system's characteristics. Variations in an object's length or width do not affect its qualities, hence they are not the distinctive dimensions. The characteristic dimension of a nanosphere is its diameter or radius. The characteristic dimension of a nanosheet is thickness since it is this parameter that determines the qualities, not the size of the sheet area because that does not change the properties. The following example illustrates typical dimension. It's critical to keep in mind that the typical dimension is much less than other dimensions found in a particular material. It's crucial to keep in mind that every particular nanoscale item, such as a nanowire, has a length that is much greater than its diameter and is thus classified as a wire. The term "rod" or "nanorod" is used to describe an item when its length is proportional to its diameter[3], [4].

DISCUSSION

At the nanoscale, all molecular reactions take place. For instance, catalysis takes place at an active center or on the surface when a small number of atoms are engaged in the process being studied. Biological transformations with nanometer-wide active centers are made feasible by enzymes. These procedures do not, however, correlate to the manipulation of matter at the nanoscale, hence they are not often regarded as nanoscience. Even before nanoscience was developed, these were established fields. On the other hand, nanoscience would be the catalysis of materials with component units smaller than a nanometer. In that sense, a lot of catalytic processes, like those involving clays or zeolites, are considered to be nanoscience. Although crystallization may be thought of as nanoscience since it involves constructing molecules or ions one at a time, it is not because matter is not produced at the nanometer length scale. Despite the fact that a bottle of water contains billions of nanodroplets, the component nano units are not distinct or readily visible, hence the bottle of water is not a nanomaterial[5], [6].

However, since gold nanoparticles are scattered in a continuous phase, a dispersion of those particles is a nanofluid. Nanomaterials differ in their characteristics in a distinctive way. This size range is the key to all the attributes of nanoscale materials since there is no other instance in the history of science where qualities of materials vary with size without a change in chemical makeup. At this length scale, we see that characteristic, such as melting temperature, which were formerly thought to be exclusive to a certain material, alter with dimension. Although Lord Kelvin questioned whether the melting point of gold would change with size in 1871, actual observation of this phenomenon took a while. Only 105 years later, in 19761, with the use of experimental technologies, was this made achievable. In this particular experiment, transmission electron microscopy is particularly prominent.

However, many more experiments that reveal the singularity of features at this size regime are now feasible thanks to a variety of other techniques within the broad category of scanning probe microscopies. The fact that fundamental topics are gaining more attention is a significant component of contemporary scientific achievements. Numerous discoveries have their roots in chemistry, along with physics, mathematics, and biology. It is a reality that knowledge of all the fields of fundamental science is necessary to comprehend nanoscience and nanotechnology and to make contributions to their expanding boundaries. At the frontiers of several of these fields, nanoscience itself is developing. As a consequence of these developments, new fields like nanochemistry, nanobiology, nanomaterials, etc. are emerging[7], [8].

Core discipline advancements take occur in conjunction with contributions from other disciplines. For instance, nanomaterials span various engineering specialties as well as the fields of chemistry, physics, biology, and mathematics. This results in the merger of disciplines, at least in certain areas. Technology and nanoscience are now the most notable instances of how disciplinary boundaries are dissolving. Although the same might be true of other academic fields, the effects of this collapse are more pronounced in nano. This science also permits contributions from fields that are entirely independent of one another. In this length scale, there is room for every potential idea from every subject. Historically, when new fields of study were established, scientific disciplines began to split from one another. The overlap across specialties has decreased, separating each one from the others. As was previously said, a contrary tendency may be seen in nanoscience. In recent years, convergence has also been seen in other fields, including informatics, biotechnology, general engineering, etc. The convergence of disciplines seen here is unusual, however. The criteria of the discipline, where each discipline discovers that interdependence permits progress, determine this.

Nature has much to teach man. His production techniques, however, are outdated. Everyone is aware that there is still much to be done to come in touch with nature. Let's examine some instances of natural processes. No machine has been able to store energy as well as photosynthesis. Biomolecules are the most effective means of transferring energy. Coconut trees and watermelons purify and store water more effectively than any facility. In theory, a single person's brain can store and interpret more data than a typical computer. A movie camera probably won't be able to catch anything as vividly as the human eye. Despite the fact that single molecule detectors have been proven, canine olfactory receptors are far more sensitive than the sensors we have created. The majority of early warning systems pale in comparison to an animal's sixth sense. There are many additional instances in the world around us.

Chinese scientists have discovered that snakes can foresee earthquakes a few days in advance. All of them work without any fanfare; they always do and have done since the beginning of time. According to conventional belief, high-tech processes take place in factories. Technology transforms outdated and useless resources into contemporary and practical materials. However, as technology becomes more sophisticated, it has a far bigger negative influence on the environment. The impact of the wheel is not as significant as the impact of the car. The influence of technology grows as civilization develops when measured through time. The chisel represented the pinnacle of Neolithic technology. The one who could craft better chisels would have received a larger portion of the meal. The fastest computers nowadays may have the best or highest-tech integrated circuits, whose manufacture process from sand to wafers to integrated circuits has severely harmed the environment and contributed to the information explosion[9], [10].

Modern technology has a clear influence on the environment, including the water, air, and everything around us. From the standpoint of a greater common good, what we have created is undoubtedly not entirely high-tech3. Sustainability must be at the core of any technology, particularly in the technology we are considering for the future. What energy conversion efficiency has been attained with our current high-tech? The efficiency of our finest solar systems today is approximately 16%, however it is possible to reach 33%. The efficiency of our greatest internal combustion engines is around 52%. 38% of the thermal energy that the cooking gas produces is used in domestic cooking. However, practically all of the chemical energy that is produced by our body is used. The outside plant excels at it, and so does the bacteria. There wouldn't be enough food for everyone if we were as inefficient as the electric motors we now produce, which would need us to consume several times more food than we already do. Thus, it is evident that following nature's lead will result in the greatest efficiency or value for the money.

According to Eric Drexler, there is an alternative method of manufacturing goods that involves building products from the ground up. This method is known as molecular nanotechnology. This is the modest manner of the plants. The plants absorb water and carbon dioxide from the atmosphere and cook them in the presence of sunshine. With a few creatures that can extract other types of chemical energy, it makes carbohydrates the primary source of energy for the great majority of life on our planet. It seems to me that the single CO_2 molecule is put together via a series of chemical reactions to produce complex structures. The bottom-up approach of synthesis is what is known as this. Single molecules may now perform functions due to this one-by-one construction. Muscle fibers, enzymes, and other molecules are examples. Each of them was created to do a certain task. This molecular architecture is complicated because each molecule can interact with each other precisely, enabling the system as a whole to perform extraordinarily complex operations that are essential to life[11], [12].

It has taken nature a long time to perfect this intricacy. If one must consider the future, maybe that is the best course of action. Although biological production is exceedingly complicated, it is also relatively inexpensive. The most complicated integrated circuit is orders of magnitude simpler than a water melon, but it costs much too little. On the other side, the ability to control atoms and organize them as we see fit will let us to produce intricate inorganic structures at the expense of produce. It would be able to construct everything with such ability. Nanotechnology is that. In many respects, this is the "wet side" of nanotechnology, alluding to biological processes that are inherently wet because they need water. There is an analogous dry side, where the capacity to organize things atom-by-atom would allow for the creation of solid-state structures and electronics. With less blood loss during surgery and more effective solar energy harvesting, we might reduce the size of computers and prevent global warming.

Modern Technologies and Their Issues

Applying Nature's principles would need a deep knowledge of molecular mechanisms. When this understanding is applied to inorganic matter, useful materials are produced. These enable the construction of superstructures with biologically inspired functionality. Consider how molecules move material from one end to the other. Consider molecules that, in response to an external stimulus like a change in temperature, bend, stretch, or curl before returning to their original form. Think about chemical processes that are light-responsive. Consider molecules transforming one chemical to another without the presence of any other substances in the environment. Assume that this transformation happens precisely and quickly. These kinds of tasks, along with many others, have previously been completed, and there is still a wide range of possibilities.

Technologies have come and gone throughout the history of humanity. The length of time it takes for technology to grow is one significant distinction between it and earlier technologies. It took the agricultural age a few thousand years to develop, with the length of time changing depending on the area and the related technologies of irrigation, tools, fertilizers, etc. It took around 150 years for the Industrial Age, which began soon after, beginning around the year 1800, to fully develop. Then, beginning in the 1950s, the information age began, which many predictions claim is now mature. Given that various communities have adapted to technology in different ways, many societies may not have felt its effects. We are at the beginning of the new age, which will develop within a generation. But compared to prior innovations, the manner that technology is adopted will be quite different.

Technology came and went, but it is still important to consider what it has given us. The industrial age of the 1900s gave us the new agriculture with chemical fertilizers, radio, TV, air conditioning, cars, jet planes, modern medicines, fabrics, etc., so that those with money could live like kings of the past, and paupers could become kings with proper understanding of the markets. The line separating the monarch from the ordinary person was erased throughout the industrial period. Mobile phones, the internet, cable TV, email, ATMs, administrative changes, decreasing distances, and other innovations brought forth by the information era significantly altered our neighborhood. It eliminated all types of distances. The future time period may eliminate all barriers between people and their environment, giving life a continuous connection to the natural world. Since neurons can be grown on integrated circuits, triggered by chips, and vice versa, it is conceivable to connect mind, matter, and extraterrestrial life seamlessly.

In this approach, several ground-breaking discoveries have recently been discovered. Science is to blame for this alteration in our way of life. The forefront driving factor that enabled significant advancements in the 19th and 20th centuries has been chemistry. The world altered as a result of the massive production of ammonia, sulfuric acid, cement, iron, aluminum, pharmaceuticals, fibers, dyes, polymers, plastics, petroleum products, etc. The civilization is driven by the products of the chemical world. More over half of all goods produced worldwide, including computers, are based on chemistry. Several economies depend on chemicals. Despite the fact that this expansion in chemistry is still going strong, the transistor's invention in 1947 marked a significant shift. Consumer electronics were introduced by semiconductor devices in the 1950s and afterwards. In today's world, an integrated circuit is present in everything. They allow toys and automobiles to behave as gadgets.

This helped to create the age of physics, along with computers. Many predict that biology and materials will rule the next century. It is highly conceivable that at that time, the interfaces between disciplinesrather than the fields themselves will make a significant contribution. The

manner in which this transition took place made a lasting impression on society. The typewriter, which until lately was a valuable item, has entirely vanished. Additionally, the electronic typewriters that served as a bridge between the typewriter and word processor eras have vanished. Many organizations no longer have any openings for "typists," and no one is being hired in this category. Before our own eyes, in the recent past, the typewriter-related factories disappeared. Compare this to how blacksmiths vanished from Indian village communities. The new factory-made agricultural tools caused the blacksmith, a remnant of the agrarian period, to progressively become extinct.

The former occurred within a few decades, but the latter took millennia. As a consequence of the times changing, a number of additional abilities were required for contemporary development. The expectedly specialized programming talents become commonplace and a part of the established set of skills. Computer literacy is nothing exceptional; it should be included in students' education. Many issues still exist despite the significant economic boom that has resulted from advancements in a variety of industries. There are many communities across the globe who are still hungry due to pervasive poverty. There is not enough access to enough clean drinking water. 15% of the population in India lacks access to safe drinking water. One of the United Nations' development objectives is to ensure that everyone on earth has access to clean water. The specifics demonstrate that 30 PW is the estimated worldwide energy demand for 2050.

To capture such power, whole new technological advancements are required. The largest issue that mankind will face in the next years is a clean environment. There is a grave danger to the world's water supplies from rising chemical pollution levels. Massive issues include the alarming loss of non-renewable resources, wetlands, forests, and animal and plant species, as well as the worsening of soil and air quality. The impact of these challenges is greater in marginalized communities whose daily life is entwined with the natural world. Even at a nominal population growth rate of 1.14%, which would result in a population of 10 billion by 2050, these difficulties and related ones with healthcare, education, and housing become enormous challenges. Keep in mind that it was only 1 billion in 1820, 2 billion in 1930, 3 billion in 1960, 4 billion in 1974, 5 billion in 1988, and 6 billion in 2000. In other words, in only 180 years, we have doubled in size.

Our management of ourselves has led to difficulties with overcrowding, industrial accidents, pollution, loss of flora, loss of wildlife, degraded soil, depletion, and erosion in broad regions. It is obvious that these difficulties will never be resolved to everyone's satisfaction due to national borders and the fact that each country has its own concerns that are regarded with its own priorities. The issue of wealth distribution is more serious. On a buying power parity measure, the United States' gross domestic product is \$37,800, which is 13 times more than India's. It is clear from this that more work has to be done before everyone has a similar quality of life. It will need an entirely new sort of technical endeavour to get there. Agriculture, which presently makes up 23.6% of India's GDP, won't be able to contribute any more. It barely adds 4% to the GDP globally.

Its share in the US is about 1.4%. Obviously, today's population does not survive just on food. Industries and services are major sources of revenue, but the emerging industry must respect nature and function as effectively as it does. Where may a person search for answers?

Although it is not a panacea for all of these problems, nanotechnology does offer some potential remedies. Applications of nanotechnology to air, water, the environment, and more are beginning to show up. Many of the technologies that will go in this path are currently available. The last chapter is a comprehensive review of the breakthroughs in this field that could help with the world's expanding difficulties.

CONCLUSION

The quick introduction to nanoscience and nanotechnology has shown its tremendous promise and potential for change. Scientists and engineers have created new opportunities for innovation by working at the nanoscale, where materials and systems display distinctive features and behaviors. We now possess a thorough grasp of the underlying laws regulating matter at the nanoscale thanks to nanoscience, which enables us to manipulate and design materials with previously unheard-of accuracy. This information serves as the foundation for nanotechnology. In turn, nanotechnology has the power to transform a wide range of industries and applications. The possibilities are endless, ranging from energy and materials research to health and electronics. We are able to develop more sophisticated, efficient, and sustainable technologies because to our expertise to design and manufacture nanoscale structures and devices.

REFERENCES:

- [1] V. G. Plekhanov, "Isotope Based Material Science," Univers. J. Mater. Sci., 2013.
- [2] G. C. Delgado-Ramos, "Ethical, social, environmental, and legal aspects of nanotechnologies: A reading from Mexico," *Int. J. Innov. Technol. Manag.*, 2013.
- [3] B. Alke and H. Jaiprakash, "Nanotechnology and its role in drug delivery systems: A review," *Res. J. Pharm. Biol. Chem. Sci.*, 2014.
- [4] L. Malfatti and D. Carboni, "From nanoscience to nanoethics: The viewpoint of a scientist," *Etica e Politica*. 2013.
- [5] K. Ariga, Q. Ji, J. P. Hill, and A. Vinu, "Coupling of soft technology (layer-by-layer assembly) with hard materials (mesoporous solids) to give hierarchic functional structures," *Soft Matter*, 2009.
- [6] *et al.*, "BIOGENIC SYNTHESIS OF CuO NANOPARTICLES AND THEIR BIOMEDICAL APPLICATIONS: A CURRENT REVIEW.," *Int. J. Adv. Res.*, 2017.
- [7] Q. Gao, C. X. Kan, J. L. Li, Y. K. Lou, and J. J. Wei, "Research progress on the liquidphase preparation and surface modification of copper nanowires," *Wuli Huaxue Xuebao/Acta Physico - Chimica Sinica*. 2016.
- [8] N. P. Qafoku, Terrestrial Nanoparticles and Their Controls on Soil-/Geo-Processes and Reactions. 2010.

- [9] G. L. Hornyak, J. Dutta, H. F. Tibbals, and A. K. Rao, *Introduction to Nanoscience*. 2008.
- [10] B. Y. Cao, J. Sun, M. Chen, and Z. Y. Guo, "Molecular momentum transport at fluidsolid interfaces in MEMS/NEMS: A review," *International Journal of Molecular Sciences*. 2009.
- [11] O. P. Vilela Neto, "Intelligent computational nanotechnology: The role of computational intelligence in the development of nanoscience and nanotechnology," *J. Comput. Theor. Nanosci.*, 2014.
- [12] L. Sun, J. Y. O'Reilly, C. W. Tien, and H. J. Sue, "Preparation of electrically conductive polystyrene/carbon nanofiber nanocomposite films," *J. Chem. Educ.*, 2008.

CHAPTER 2 NANO THE BEGINNING, ENERGETICS AND IMPLICATIONS

Amit Kumar Sharma, Associate Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-amit_vashishtha1980@rediffmail.com

ABSTRACT:

This investigation's first section traces the history of nanotechnology back to the visionary physicist Richard Feynman's groundbreaking 1959 speech, "There's Plenty of Room at the Bottom." We look at the basic ideas of quantum physics and nanoscale materials, showing how these ideas formed the foundation for the nanotechnology revolution. The energetics of nanoscale systems is then the subject of the article. It explains the special energy-related phenomena that take place at the nanoscale, such as energy bandgap engineering and quantum confinement effects. Discussions include novel uses of nanomaterials in renewable energy technologies as well as energy conversion and storage applications in nanoelectronics.

KEYWORDS:

Energetics, Materials Science, Nanostructures, Quantum Mechanics, Semiconductor.

INTRODUCTION

Around us, there are several nanoscale types of matter. Gold is one of the first nanoscale materials ever discovered. In 1856, Faraday created colloidal gold, which he referred to as split metal. Faraday described the particles he created as being in a "divided state of gold" in his journal entry from 2 April 1856; the solutions he created are still on display at the Royal Institution. In fact, metal colloids were the first nanoparticles to pique scientific interest. Although noble metal nanoparticles have been used to color glasses since the Roman era, scientific research on these particles did not begin until the 1600s. Glasses and vases had been colored with colloidal gold that had been added. The oldest of them is a Roman Lycurgus cup from the fourth century AD. Transmitted light makes the cup look red, while reflected light makes it appear green. The glass in this isn't significantly different from current glass, according to modern chemical analyses[1], [2].

What then gives the glass its color? It has extremely trace levels of silver and gold, which are present as 70 nm-diameter nanoparticles. Due of its crimson color, which was believed to be the active ingredient in blood and was assumed to be the essence of life during the period of alchemy, gold solutions sparked curiosity. Around 1600, Parcelsus wrote about a technique for turning auric chloride into "Aurum portable" by using alcoholic plant extracts. Ayurvedic traditional medicine from India has employed synthetic gold formulations. Both Makaradhwaja and Saraswatharishtam employ gold that has been beautifully separated. The usage of actual gold metal in health care and dentistry dates back far more. In 1618, the first

book about colloidal gold was released. Another publication by German scientist Johan Kunckels that year proposed a drinking form of gold with healing qualities[3], [4].

This book came to the conclusion that there was invisible gold present in the solution. Starch improves the durability of the gold preparation, according to Hans Heinrich Helcher, who explained this in a book printed in 1718. In 1794, these solutions were used for dyeing. Jeremias Benjamin Richters first suggested in 1818 that the size and method of particle aggregation were to blame for the variations in color of different gold preparations. Faraday described the creation of stable colloids in 1857 using a two-phase reduction technique in which red phosphorous in CS2 converted gold chloride in water. Graham first used the word "colloid" in 1861. Colloidal gold has been the subject of much research throughout the 20th century. There have been documented procedures including formaldehyde, hydrogen peroxide, hydroxyl amine, hydrazine, and gases like CO and $H_2[5]$, [6].

DISCUSSION

The impetus in this subject has grown because to several proven synthetic techniques including the citrate reduction approach and the Brust method. Schmid and Bartlett created several sub-nanometer gold clusters by synthetic means. Colloidal gold science is one of the most actively researched fields of science today because to these approaches and the changes added by subsequent researchers. The book by M.A. compiles earlier work in the field of colloidal gold from a biological standpoint. Hayat, which also provides a list of the numerous techniques used to gold particles with extremely high sizes. There are many reviews specifically dedicated to gold and metal particles that are accessible and may be reviewed for a thorough analysis of the literature. Nature creates several types of nano things.

The bacterium Magnetospirillummagnetotacticum produces nanometer-sized magnetite particles. They create particles with certain morphologies. A bacterium uses the magnetism caused by the particles to locate the direction most conducive to its development. Numerous bacteria have the ability to absorb metal ions, decrease them inside the cell, and produce nanoparticles. That may also be accomplished by the well-known Lactobacillus found in buttermilk. Here, a single bacterium is seen in transmission electron microscopic detail after many hours of incubation with gold ions. It is known that viruses and fungi may produce nanoparticles[7], [8].

However, it took a long time before the science of things at the nanoscale scale was explored. On 29th December, 1959, Nobel Prize-winning physicist, Richard Feynman, presented a discussion at the annual meeting of the American Physical Society entitled, "There's plenty of room at the bottom". In this talk, he informally proposed the bottom-up method, saying that "it is interesting that it would be, in principle, possible for a physicist to synthesize any chemical substance that the chemist writes down," adding that "the principles of physics, as far as I can see, do not speak against the possibility of manoeuvring things atom by atom." You give the physicist the instructions, and they combine it. How? Put the atoms where the scientist instructs, and the chemical will be created. If we can eventually obtain the capacity to observe what we are doing and to act on an atomic levela development that I believe cannot be avoidedthe difficulties of chemistry and biology may be considerably alleviated. The planet had to wait a long time before one could position atoms where they were desired. The scanning tunneling microscope was created in 1981, and afterwards a variety of devices known as scanning probe microscopes were created. With these instruments, one may observe and position atoms and molecules wherever they are required. The team received the 1986 Nobel Prize for physics. The development of technology nowadays dictates that the size of gadgets and active materials must be reduced. The use of computer technology makes this clear. Over the last 40 years, an integrated circuit's transistor count has grown astronomically. Gordon Moore, a co-founder of Intel, said in 1965 that since the development of integrated circuits, the number of transistors per square inch has doubled annually. Moore anticipated that this pattern will persist for some time. The rate slowed down in the following years, yet data density doubled about every 18 months. This is how Moore's Law is currently defined. The majority of specialists, including Moore himself, anticipate that Moore's Law will continue for some time. If this is to occur, gadget size must decrease and very soon enter the nanoscale realm. The device structure on silicon utilized in the Pentium 4 in 2000 was as tiny as this dimension, or 130 nm, in size. The technique advanced to 90 nm in 2004, entering the realm of nanotechnology[9], [10].

With all that has been accomplished, it is certain that there will be items available in the near future. The website www.nanoforum.org has a list of the current nanotechnology goods available on the market. The answer to the question of when individuals will really feel the need for nano goods, however, differs. Many people think that nanotechnology laws will be implemented soon because of the potential economic, social, health, and security ramifications of this technology, which would be of concern to governments. Nations may address it as part of their elections because of the potential social repercussions.

Nanoscience and energy

Nano systems may change over time. In the context of the free-energy landscape, this implies that they will change into stable materials with global energy minima. A specific nanostructure may have a local minimum in relation to other structures, but if one plots the system's free energy for a constant quantity of the material (because free energy is an extensive attribute), nanoparticles exist at a greater energy than the bulk materials. In the limit of very tiny particles, these local minima are associated with magic numbers that exhibit exceptional structural and electrical stability. Clusters are the name given to these particles; they will be discussed in a later section. The total energy is much higher in isolated atoms and molecules than in the bulk. A regime made up of nanoparticles has energy that is situated between bulk materials and molecules/atoms. By using physical or chemical methods, it is possible to change one form into another. Nanoparticles may be thought of as nanocluster molecules when they are less than 1 nm in size and have unique structures[11], [12].

One of these clusters may be more stable than the other, and each of these clusters may contain isomeric structures. Large variations in attributes may exist across different constructions of the same size. Numerous structural forms are possible in the larger-size regime, although it is difficult to tell them apart. On the basis of their electrical characteristics, distinctions may be formed when it comes to significant changes in geometry, such as in the case of nanoparticles and nanorods. In the case of a few metals and ceramics, synthetic manufacturing techniques may be used to create some of those structures. It is feasible to switch between different size regimes, as is clear. Although the transition from atoms, molecules, and nanoparticles to bulk occurs naturally, stabilizing the nanoparticle regime calls for careful supervision.

The top-down method is used to create nanostructures from bulk, while the bottom-up method is used to create nanoparticles from their component atoms. Because nanoparticles are metastable, they may return to the bulk indefinitely. In other instances, the length of time taken into account has little practical significance since Faraday's colloids, created in 1856, are still stable today. Although the metal in its whole is more stable, graphite is equally as stable as diamond when compared. Even if stored for a millennium, diamond, although being metastable, does not turn into graphite under normal pressure and temperature circumstances. Diamond to graphite conversion has an extremely sluggish kinetics, making it inconsequential under typical circumstances. Kinetic stability refers to the circumstance that nanoparticles find themselves in and is comparable. When kept close together, nanoparticles will interact with one another and begin to aggregate or coalesce.

The particles in an aggregate maintain their uniqueness, but the interaction reduces some of their surface area. These interactions take place as a result of groups or molecules on the surface of the nanoparticles helping them to aggregate. Ionic or hydrogen bonding interactions between surface groups are well-known examples. When particles are stabilized by an electrical double layer, aggregation, also known as coagulation, is crucial. Coalescence of particles, which is the irreversible fusing of particles into bigger particles, is another outcome of inter-particle interaction. When seen in terms of two separate particles, the issue is easier to comprehend. The majority of the time, stabilizing chemicals or groups are layered on top of nanoparticles. The interactions between the particles will lead to an energy minimum at a limited distance, d. Electrostatic contacts are possible as well as weak van der Waals interactions because of the kind of protective groups.

These two types of interactions predominate the majority of the time, particularly in a dielectric solvent like water. The van der Waals contacts between the particle cores draw the particles together, whilst the electrostatic interactions strive to keep them apart. There is a net energy minimum as a consequence. Because of the strong van der Waals interactions at close range, the lack of a repulsion-inducing shell causes the particles to coalesce. Additionally, steric pressures may be at play, as in the instance of a particle being covered by a molecule. Depending on the kind of shell, the repulsive interactions take on different forms. The distance must be close together for the van der Waals forces to be effective, yet there must be a barrier that prevents this interaction from prevailing. The system is kinetically stable if the height of this barrier is larger than the thermal energy, kT.

As can be observed, at higher temperatures, the particles have more energy to break through this barrier, and the colloidal system aggregates beyond a critical point, known as the critical flocculation temperature. It should be noted that temperature affects how stable the nanoparticle's shell is. The topic under consideration is comparable to that of colloids. The shell is stable in the limit of a covalently attached shell on the nanoparticle surface under typical temperature and pressure conditions seen in a nanofluid application. As a result, the system may be permanently stable. However, it is essential to remember that temperature cycling may result in permanent alterations to the nanoparticle core. These alterations correlate to phase transitions in the structural, electrical, or magnetic domains. The shell's structure may change molecularly, for example, via conformational ordering.

This is a reference to modifications in the bonds' relative orientation inside the molecule. A discussion of stability is often connected to kinetic stability in the situations that have been mentioned. However, there are also nanoparticles that are thermodynamically stable. This is equivalent to particles with certain architectures and forms, such as molecular nanoparticles. Here, given conditions for temperature, pressure, and species concentration result in a certain structure being thermodynamically stable. For instance, a nanocluster of Au55 in a medium or in the solid state is a thermodynamically stable entity with its particular number of ligands. The building will collapse due to a variety of circumstances. This is applicable to particles with certain morphologies, such nanorods, which may change into different shapes when the right circumstances arise. Another example is micelles, which, depending on the circumstances, may change into lamellar or liquid crystalline phases. The thermodynamic stability of these different phases is high.

Nano and Its Consequences

The manipulation of matter between the molecular and macroscopic length scales is the focus of nanotechnology. Materials at these length scales exhibit various characteristics as a consequence of their peculiar size, which has to be investigated. These characteristics come from a variety of fields, including chemistry, biology, physics, and engineering. In reality, these characteristics affect every single field of science and engineering. Since science and economic growth are related, nanotechnology may have an effect on the economy. Nanomaterials must be used extensively in this kind of development. If used carelessly, there are related environmental effects, just as with other materials.

The ramifications of nanotechnology for fundamental research, the economy, and the environment are evident from the above. Numerous surprises have been brought about through basic science. The qualities of new materials have given rise to whole new phenomena. This called for more modern experimental techniques, and the use of such tools led to the creation of novel properties. Examples of the discovery of novel materials include fullerenes, carbon nanotubes, semiconductor nanoparticles, clusters, metal nanoparticles, anisotropic nanostructures, mesoporous structures, self-assembled structures, graphene, and many more. Examples of unique phenomena include unusual electrical structure, surface plasmon phenomena, single molecule surface enhance Raman spectroscopy, flow via nanochannels, innovative sensors, etc.

Examples of fields with active economies right now include strong materials, coatings that improve properties, aerogels, super hydrophobicity, novel solar cells, photocatalysis, antimicrobial goods, drug delivery vehicles, etc. The effects on the environment include dangers related to small particle inhalation, skin penetration, UV absorption and radical species generation, unusual chemical reactivity of particles in biology, penetration into cell nuclei, gene transformations, and ethical concerns with unrestricted use of such technology, among others. Nanotechnology has impacted the humanities and social sciences from all of these angles. It entered popular literature even before that penetration.

CONCLUSION

The consequences of nanotechnology are vast and extensive. They include environmental impact studies, ethical creation of new technology, and ethical issues. We must consider issues of accountability and regulation in light of the ethical ramifications of changing matter at such a microscopic scale. To guarantee the sustainable development of nanotechnology, thorough monitoring and mitigation measures are required for any possible environmental effects. It is crucial that we achieve a balance between innovation and accountability as we move in this area. The world's most important problems may be addressed with the help of nanotechnology, but it is our common responsibility to make sure that these advantages are achieved while reducing any possible concerns. By doing this, we may use the power of the nano world to alter industries, enhance people's lives, and advance scientific knowledge.

REFERENCES:

- [1] J. Liu *et al.*, "GW150914 and gravitational-wave astronomy," *Kexue Tongbao/Chinese Sci. Bull.*, 2016.
- [2] D. M. Kennedy, "the Role and Future of Nanotechnology in Research, Industry and Education," *Conf. Mater. Process. Frict. Wear MATRIB'06, Vela Luka, 22-24.06.2006., 2006.*
- [3] H. Panahi and S. Asadi, "A new model selection test with application to the censored data of carbon nanotubes coating," *Prog. Color. Color. Coatings*, 2016.
- [4] V. Y. Orekhov, D. M. Korzhnev, T. Diercks, H. Kessler, and A. S. Arseniev, "1H-15N NMR dynamic study of an isolated α-helical peptide (1-36)-bacteriorhodopsin reveals the equilibrium helix-coil transitions," *J. Biomol. NMR*, 1999.
- [5] Š. Luby and M. Lubyová, "Nanoethics A new chapter in ethical studies," *Informatologia*, 2015.
- [6] F. Echevarría-Castillo, "Challeges of the present century: Nanotechnology and health," *Rev. Cuba. Hematol. Inmunol. y Hemoter.*, 2013.
- [7] D. Groß, "Blessing or curse? Neurocognitive enhancement by 'brain engineering," *Med. Stud.*, 2009.
- [8] L. D. Williams and W. Adams, *Nanotechnology demystified; Nanotechnology demystified*. 2007.
- [9] M. Sharma, "Understanding the mechanism of toxicity of carbon nanoparticles in humans in the new millennium: A systemic review," *Indian Journal of Occupational and Environmental Medicine*. 2010.

- [10] A. Shiri, "Revealing interdisciplinarity in nanoscience and technology queries: A transaction log analysis approach," *Knowl. Organ.*, 2011.
- [11] B. Birgisson, P. Taylor, J. Armaghani, and S. P. Shah, "American road map for research for nanotechnology-based concrete materials," *Transp. Res. Rec.*, 2010.
- [12] T. Pradeep and Anshup, "Noble metal nanoparticles for water purification: A critical review," *Thin Solid Films*. 2009.

CHAPTER 3 ELECTRON MICROSCOPIES AND ELECTROANALYTICAL TECHNIQUES

Ajay Kumar Upadhyay, Associate Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-ajay_kup@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

Materials science, chemistry, and nanotechnology all rely heavily on electron microscopy and electroanalytical methods. Their importance, guiding concepts, and practical applications are briefly summarized in this summary.Due to its excellent spatial resolution, electron microscopy enables researchers to study materials and biological samples at the nanoscale. Methods like Scanning Electron Microscopy (SEM) and Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM) provide information on the shape, structure, and elemental makeup of an object. In particular, cryo-TEM makes it possible to examine fragile biological materials in their natural condition. These methods have been essential for developing areas including semiconductor research, biological sciences, and nanomaterials.

KEYWORDS:

Atomic Force Microscopy (AFM), Electron Microscopy, Scanning Electron Microscopy (SEM), Scanning Tunneling Microscopy (STM), Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM)

INTRODUCTION

Observation is a crucial component in nanoscale research. Understanding phenomena at the nanoscale requires newer techniques, approaches, and analyses. A variety of tools may be used to observe materials at the nanoscale, including electrons, photons, scanning probes, ions, and atoms. In each of these fields, a variety of methodologies are accessible, and the methodical use of many of the instrument's results in a thorough comprehension of the system. Additionally, these techniques make it possible to measure nanoscale things in-situ. Some of the examples in this section include studies of the Young's modulus and other properties of specific nano objects. The aforementioned approaches may also be used to nanotechnology, which is the foundation of nanomanipulation[1], [2].

In the nanoscale, observation is very important for making new discoveries. In reality, as far as nano objects are concerned, one cannot go further with the research without first seeing the items. A probe is used for observation, and it might be an atomically fine pin or perhaps a stream of photons, electrons, neutrons, atoms, or other particles. In the case of photons, the probing light or particle for nanomaterials is often of different frequencies, ranging from gamma rays to infrared or beyond, or beyond, and in the case of particles, of hyperthermal to relativistic energies. The obtained data may be processed to provide pictures or spectra that show the material's topographic, geometric, structural, chemical, or physical features. Under the broad heading of materials characterisation, a number of approaches are available that might be used in one way or another to research nanoparticles. Some of these methods may be used spatially resolved. We examine some of the most significant instruments in the context of nanoscience and technology in this chapter. We must keep in mind that many approaches must be used to study nanomaterials since no one technique can offer information on all facets of the material. While the size of the component material, let's say a nanoparticle, is important, extra research is required to understand the material's characteristics, such as optical absorption, emission, thermal and electrical conductivity, magnetic, etc. Collectively, they all provide comprehensive information. Consequently, it is essential to have a variety of approaches that provide different measures. Even while it would seem that many of the methods utilized in nanomaterials research are instruments from materials science, organic chemistry, biochemistry, condensed matter physics, metallurgy, mechanical engineering, etc., they all work in tandem to provide us a complete knowledge of matter at the nanoscale today[3], [4].

DISCUSSION

To observe things in greater detail, we employ microscopy. The maximum distance that optical devices can accurately measure while ignoring all aberrations is around 0.5 (where is the wavelength of the radiation used to probe the material) or of the order of 250 nm when using visible light. The goal of microscopy in all its manifestations is to enhance vision. The smallest thing that the eye can see under perfect circumstances is roughly 0.07 mm. The size of the receptors in the retina of the eye has an impact on this limit. Any microscope is designed to enlarge the picture that strikes the retina. The benefit of using a microscope is that it brings the item practically closer to the eye. We receive an enlarged picture as a result, and more detail is possible. To examine nanomaterials, a variety of microscopy techniques are used. They may be categorized generally into the following groups:

- 1. Laser microscopes
- 2. atomic-level microscopes
- 3. microscopes with scanning probes
- 4. Others

Although additional methods are sometimes employed for nano measurements, the first three are the most popular. Several methods that may be used as spectroscopies are also addressed. We go through each of these types of microscopic instruments in some depth in the chapters that follow. However, the theoretical issues are only briefly mentioned in the debate. You may refer to the thorough literature given in the bibliography for a detailed analysis of each approach. However, not every issue will likely get the same amount of discussion. A microscope is the tool used to create magnified pictures. The Greek words micros, which means "small," and skopos, which means "to look at," are the roots of the English term "microscope." For over 200 years, Antonie van Leeuwenhoek's microscopes were the most advanced. The focal lengths of these single lens microscopes were so small that they had to be held against the eye. These tools were used to find bacteria. Van Leeuwenhoek seems to have destroyed the majority of his 500+ microscopes before his death at the age of 90 since his study was not well-received. There are now known to be just nine Leeuwenhoek-developed microscopes. We need a few definitions before we can talk about microscopies.

Resolution: A measurement of the instrument's ability to tell apart two nearby locations as independent points, expressed in terms of distance. Resolution attained by a given instrument in ideal circumstances. Although resolution is equal to or worse than the resolving power, which is an attribute of the instrument and a quantity that can be calculated, resolution must be determined for the instrument[5], [6].

The types of scanning microscopes vary.

- 1) The surface of the specimen is scanned by a monochromatic electron beam in a scanning electron microscope (SEM), which causes the sample to undergo a number of modifications. A picture of the specimen is made using the particles that are produced from the sample. The sample's surface is where the information was found. The broad depth of field of SEM is its most significant benefit. Despite the fact that the images seem to be three-dimensional (3-D), only the combining of two photos can produce a real three-dimensional image.
- 2) Using charged ions, the scanning ion microscope (SIM) etches away the top surface while capturing images.
- 3) The scanning acoustic microscope (SAM) creates pictures using ultrasonic waves. The wavelength of sound puts a limit on the best resolution, which is on the order of 2.5 microns. advantageous in that it allows for the examination of living biological material.
- 4) Using a scanning light microscope (SLM), a pinpoint of visible light is used to piece together a picture of the surface. Increased depth of field and color improvement are made possible.
- 5) A white or monochromatic light beam that has been tightly focussed is used in a scanning confocal microscope (SCM) to scan a specimen. It makes it possible to visually segment a sample. Confocal microscopy is the more frequent name for this method.

Microscopies using electrons

An light source, a condenser lens to focus the beam on the sample, an objective lens to enlarge the picture, and a projector lens to project the image onto an image plane that may be captured on film or saved in memory make up a microscope. The wave nature of electrons is exploited in electron microscopes to produce images. Transmission electron microscopy and scanning electron microscopy are the two most significant types of electron microscopy. In both cases, the source for lighting the sample is an electron. An optical comparison aids in the comprehension of the microscope. Both instruments have certain characteristics in common, such as the use of comparable light sources, but they also have some key differences. Electromagnetic lenses, which vary significantly from glass lenses but follow the same general principles in both situations, are the lenses used in electron microscopes. Scanner electron microscopy (TEM). Even though TEM has more complicated applications, learning about SEM makes it simpler to begin using it. Each of these methods may be modified in a number of various ways, and we will highlight these more sophisticated tools when applicable[7], [8].

Electron microscopy for scanning

A concentrated stream of high-energy electrons is utilized by the scanning electron microscope (SEM) to produce a range of signals at the surface of solid objects. In addition to the sample's exterior morphology (texture), chemical composition, and crystalline structure and orientation of its constituent components, the signals resulting from electron-sample interactions also provide information about the sample. Most often, a portion of the sample's surface is chosen for data collection, and a 2-dimensional picture is created to show the spatial changes in these attributes. Using typical SEM methods (magnification ranging from 20X to about 30,000X, spatial resolution of 50 to 100 nm), areas with widths of around 1 cm to 5 microns may be scanned in a scanning mode. The SEM is also able to analyze specific point locations on the sample; this method is particularly helpful in detecting chemical compositions qualitatively or semi-quantitatively (using EDS), crystalline structure, and crystal orientations (using EBSD). The SEM and EPMA have a lot in common in terms of function and design, and the two instruments' capabilities are highly overlapping[9], [10].

Fundamental SEM (Scanning Electron Microscopy) Principles

Significant quantities of kinetic energy are carried by the accelerated electrons in a SEM, and as the incident electrons decelerate in the solid sample, this energy is released as a variety of signals. These signals include heat, cathodoluminescence (CL), visible light (secondary electrons), backscattered electrons (BSE), diffracted backscattered electrons (EBSD), characteristic X-rays (used for elemental analysis), backscattered electrons (used to create SEM images), and backscattered electrons (BSE). Common imaging techniques for samples include the use of secondary electrons and backscattered electrons. Secondary electrons are best used to show a sample's morphology and topography, while backscattered electrons are best used to show contrasts in composition in multiphase samples (i.e., for quick phase discrimination). Inelastic collisions between incoming electrons and electrons in certain atomic orbitals (shells) in the sample result in the emission of X-rays. The difference in energy levels of the excited electrons in the various shells of a particular element results in Xrays that have a constant wavelength when they return to lower energy states. As a result, each element in a mineral that is "excited" by the electron beam emits distinctive X-rays. SEM examination is regarded as "non-destructive" since the volume of the sample is not lost due to the x-rays produced by electron interactions, allowing for repeated investigation of the same materials[11], [12].

Regular applications of the SEM include producing high-resolution pictures of object forms (SEI) and illuminating spatial changes in chemical compositions:

- 1. utilizing EDS to obtain elemental maps or spot chemical tests,
- 2. utilizing BSE to distinguish between phases based on mean atomic number, which is often connected to relative density, and
- 3. compositional maps employing CL that take into account variations in the trace element "activators" (usually transition metals and rare earth elements).

Phase identification using qualitative chemical analysis and/or crystalline structure is another common use of the SEM. The SEM may also be used to precisely measure features and

objects with a size as tiny as 50 nm. BSEs, or backscattered electron pictures, may be used to quickly distinguish between phases in multiphase materials. Many materials may be examined for microfabric and crystallographic orientation using SEMs that have diffracted backscattered electron detectors (EBSD).

Without a doubt, the SEM leads all other instruments in terms of the range of uses it has for studying solid materials. All domains that call for the characterisation of solid materials depend on the SEM. While geological applications are the focus of this work, it's crucial to remember that there are a variety of other scientific and commercial uses for this apparatus. The majority of SEMs have "intuitive" user interfaces that make them very simple to use. Little sample preparation is needed for many applications. Data capture is quick for many applications (less than 5 minutes per picture for SEI, BSE, and spot EDS analysis), and modern SEMs provide data in extremely portable digital forms.

ETEM, short for environmental transmission electron microscopy

The change of characteristics with size and form is a topic of study at the nanoscale. These materials undergo structural and morphological changes in response to slight variations in temperature and other factors, such as atmosphere. These factors necessitate studying nanomaterials at greater pressures and temperatures. Such research has been crucial in fields like catalysis. In fields like corrosion, oxidation, etc., there has been interest in generic gassolid interactions. Investigations on biological materials must be conducted nearby their natural habitat. Due to all of these needs, traditional TEMs have to be changed to function under different circumstances. Environmental transmission electron microscopes are the name given to these microscopes nowadays. This makes it possible to investigate the structural and chemical changes that occur to materials when gases and liquids interact with solids at different temperatures. In ETEM, the sample is contained in a high pressure area with a maximum of 150 torr so as to prevent a major degradation of the column vacuum. An environmental cell, where the pressure-temperature conditions are controlled, is the primary instrumental feature. Two methods may be used to do this:

- (1) confining the system under study using electron transparent windows; and
- (2) the system is contained by differential pumping.

The window approach has the benefit of allowing for greater pressures, but high resolution is challenging because of the extra dispersion brought on by the window material. Because of their wider pole-piece gaps, these cells were only utilized in high energy instruments due to their space needs. Today's medium energy TEMs feature pole-piece gaps of 7-9 mm, which are sufficient for a cell. Nowadays, cells that are pumped differently are employed. These tools are used for in-situ nanoparticle production, research on the development of carbon nanotubes, in-situ chemical changes of nanoparticles, etc. Complete examinations may be conducted while a process is taking place because to ETEM's integration of diffraction, microscopy, and elemental analysis. In such a device, nanolithography structures may be created.

Nanometer-scale Electron Energy Loss Spectroscopy

The foundation of nanoscience and nanotechnology is the characterization of materials at the nanoscale scale. With advances in electron sources and optics, it is now feasible to produce beams with a sub-nanometer spatial spread, which makes them a superb tool for probing the sample's chemical and structural properties. The inelastic energy losses that the main beam experiences as a consequence of scattering are of importance in electron energy loss spectroscopy. The sample's interband transitions, collective electron oscillations, or characteristic energy losses caused by core electron excitations, which provide distinctive edges superposed over a monotonically decreasing backdrop, may all be to blame for the energy shifts. While the latter happens within a few thousand eV, the former happens in the 5 to 50 eV range. Since the energy of these transitions could not have any elemental or material importance.

These transitions may completely vanish at very low energies as well. The element is known for its core electron excitations. As a result, the material may be qualitatively analyzed in terms of the distinctive energy losses discovered. Carbon has an energy loss at 284 eV, whereas oxygen exhibits one at 530 eV. After properly deducting the background, the intensity at this energy loss is correlated with the atom concentration. Analyzing data quantitatively is therefore feasible. The sample's chemical environment may be inferred from the location and form of the energy loss. Electron energy loss spectroscopy at the nanoscale scale is a special probe as a result of all these. Calculating core-level excitation spectra is possible. The method here will be to compute the cross-section for inelastic scattering. Evaluating the likelihood of electronic transitions between two orbitals as a consequence of a perturbing electric field will be the key component of these calculations. For these calculations, atomic orbitals from the starting states and molecule orbitals from the final states may be employed.

It is feasible to get excellent agreement between theory and the fine structures seen experimentally by doing precise calculations. Information on energy loss may be gathered based on spatial factors. This may be done in one of two ways: either as a spectrum picture, where each specified point on the sample is collected a full spectrum, or as imagespectrum, where the spectrum in an energy window E is captured for a 2D space. Each approach has benefits and drawbacks of its own. The former, which is gathered in the STEM, is better since it collects all spectral channels simultaneously as a function of space. The energy analysis of electrons is performed using a post column energy analyzer. An energy filter is utilized in the image-spectrum mode.

After the filter, there is an imaging step that transforms the spectrum into a picture. The slit at the filter's exit plane determines the energy breadth while the filter's slit fixes the energy of the electrons to be transmitted. The elemental mapping of materials at the nanoscale scale has been done using EELS. Using EELS, it has been possible to map the elements that have been doped in single-wall carbon nanotubes, alloy matrix nanobubbles, ultrathin film atom segregation, etc. It has been shown that individual atoms can be mapped in nanostructures. In addition to elemental mapping, it is possible to look at how one element bonds with other

elements at the nanoscale scale. With EELS, it is possible to measure the atomic characteristics of objects with a nanometer-sized diameter.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, combining electroanalytical methods with electron microscopy constitutes a potent and effective strategy in the fields of analytical chemistry and materials research. Researchers now have an amazing toolkit for examining nanoscale objects and their electrochemical activity because to the combination of these two approaches. Transmission electron microscopy (TEM) and scanning electron microscopy (SEM), two types of electron microscopy, enable the detailed visualization and characterization of materials. These methods make it possible to analyze morphology, crystallography, and composition right down to the atomic level, which makes it easier to understand the structural features of materials.

REFERENCES:

- [1] S. Gupta, B. Evans, A. Henson, and S. B. Carrizosa, "Salt-assisted ultrasonicated deaggregation and advanced redox electrochemistry of detonation nanodiamond," *Materials (Basel).*, 2017.
- [2] L. Jiang, S. Gu, Y. Ding, F. Jiang, and Z. Zhang, "Facile and novel electrochemical preparation of a graphene-transition metal oxide nanocomposite for ultrasensitive electrochemical sensing of acetaminophen and phenacetin," *Nanoscale*, 2014.
- [3] V. Ruiz, P. Liljeroth, B. M. Quinn, and K. Kontturi, "Probing Conductivity of Polyelectrolyte/Nanoparticle Composite Films by Scanning Electrochemical Microscopy," *Nano Lett.*, 2003.
- [4] D. Kim, S. Lee, and Y. Piao, "Electrochemical determination of dopamine and acetaminophen using activated graphene-Nafion modified glassy carbon electrode," *J. Electroanal. Chem.*, 2017.
- [5] N. M. Umesh, T. W. Chen, S. M. Chen, K. Kohila rani, R. Devasenathipathy, and S. F. Wang, "Phosphate-mediated silver nanodentrites modified glassy carbon electrode for the determination of nitrophenol," *Int. J. Electrochem. Sci.*, 2018.
- [6] L. Zhang *et al.*, "Quantitative determining of ultra-trace aluminum ion in environmental samples by liquid phase microextraction assisted anodic stripping voltammetry," *Sensors (Switzerland)*, 2018.
- [7] G. Das and H. H. Yoon, "Amperometric urea biosensors based on sulfonated graphene/polyaniline nanocomposite," *Int. J. Nanomedicine*, 2015.
- [8] N. P. Shetti, D. S. Nayak, S. J. Malode, and R. M. Kulkarni, "Fabrication of

MWCNTs and Ru Doped TiO 2 Nanoparticles Composite Carbon Sensor for Biomedical Application," *ECS J. Solid State Sci. Technol.*, 2018.

- [9] R. Zamora, F. Masís-Meléndez, H. Phillips, L. A. Alvarado-Marchena, and R. Starbird, "Development of Poly(3,4-ethylenedioxythiophene(PEDOT)/carbon nanotube electrodes for electrochemical detection of Mancozeb in water," *Int. J. Electrochem. Sci.*, 2018.
- [10] L. O. Orzari, I. A. de Araujo Andreotti, M. F. Bergamini, L. H. Marcolino, and B. C. Janegitz, "Disposable electrode obtained by pencil drawing on corrugated fiberboard substrate," *Sensors Actuators, B Chem.*, 2018.
- [11] Z. Li, K. Xiang, W. Xing, W. C. Carter, and Y. M. Chiang, "Reversible aluminum-ion intercalation in prussian blue analogs and demonstration of a high-power aluminum-ion asymmetric capacitor," *Adv. Energy Mater.*, 2015.
- [12] S. Anandhakumar, K. Dhanalakshmi, and J. Mathiyarasu, "Non-enzymatic organophosphorus pesticide detection using gold atomic cluster modified electrode," *Electrochem. commun.*, 2014.

CHAPTER 4 PRINCIPLES OF SCANNING TUNNELING AND ATOMIC FORCE MICROSCOPIES

Pavan Kumar Singh, Assistant Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- om.pavansingh@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

Atomic force microscopy (AFM) and scanning tunneling microscopy (STM) are two groundbreaking methods that have transformed nanoscalecharacterisation and imaging. The succinct summary of the underlying ideas that guide STM and AFM in this abstract emphasizes the importance of these techniques in the area of nanoscience.STM uses the quantum mechanical phenomena of tunneling current to provide accurate, atomic-level imaging of conductive surfaces. The tip-sample distance may be mapped to provide high-resolution topographical data by maintaining a steady tunneling current. Spectroscopic capabilities have also been added to STM, allowing the investigation of electrical states and chemical characteristics at the nanoscale.AFM, on the other hand, works by detecting the forces that interplay between a pointy tip and the sample surface. This method provides a variety of imaging modes, each suitable for certain sample properties, including contact, tapping, and non-contact AFM. AFM is excellent in capturing images of non-conductive materials, living things, and sensitive surfaces while offering detailed topographical and mechanical data.

KEYWORDS:

Force Spectroscopy, Imaging Modes, Nanoscale Characterization, Scanning Tunneling Microscopy.

INTRODUCTION

The most popular experimental techniques for analyzing nanoscale materials are scanning probe microscopies (SPMs). These microscopic instruments are now used in various fields thanks to their capacity to study conducting, insulating, organic, inorganic, biological, composite, etc. materials. The adaptability of the environment whether in a vacuum or in the open air, at low or high temperatures has given this equipment an added benefit. The scanning probe methods are orders of magnitude less expensive than electron microscopies. SPM has even made way into college lectures because to the simplicity of use and developments in software and automation. In this chapter, we'll examine every SPM tool available[1], [2].

Atomic force microscopy (AFM) and scanning tunneling microscopy (STM) are the two main types of SPM methods. There are several versions of these methods. This section's goal is to provide an overview of some of the more well-known of these strategies in order to give readers a sense of them. A selection of original books and articles are mentioned in the references for those who are interested in further information. The material's surface is the focus of the examination. To do this, keep the tip still while moving the sample, or vice versa. Moving the sample allows for the collection of many types of information, each of which varies depending on the approach. An picture of the sample is created using the data that was obtained and its variance within the sample. The sample, the degree of control over tip/sample movement, and the fundamental characteristics of the data all have a role in the resolution of such a picture[3], [4].

DISCUSSION

Microscopy via Scanning Tunneling

Without the use of electron beams or light, scanning tunneling microscopy enables researchers to map a conductive sample's surface atom by atom with ultra-high resolution. For over 40 years, this technique has provided new understanding of matter at the atomic level. This blog article will provide a high-level summary of scanning tunneling microscopy's characteristics, operation, and research applications. Without utilizing light or electron beams, scanning tunneling microscopy, or STM, is an imaging method used to acquire ultra-high resolution pictures at the atomic scale. Two IBM scientists called Gerd Binnig and Heinrich Rohrer created STM in 1981. They won the Physics Nobel Prize five years after their creation.

The first method in the broader category of scanning probe microscopy (SPM) imaging modalities was STM. At the time, it enabled scientists to gather information down to the level of atoms and interatomic distance, which was a substantial improvement above earlier microscopy. Researchers were able to accurately map the three-dimensional topography and electrical density of states of conductive materials using this ultra-high resolution capabilities, and even modify individual atoms on the surface of these materials. STM has significantly advanced the science of nanotechnology during the next decades and continues to be crucial to both basic and applied research in a range of fields[5], [6].

STM is a unique and uncommon example of using electron tunneling, a quantum mechanical phenomenon, in a real-world practical application. When electrons cross what first seems to be an impenetrable barrier (in this example, a small gap between the tip and surface), this is referred to as "tunneling"; it is analogous to tossing a ball against a wall. The ball will never tunnel through the wall according to the "classical paradigm," which defines this ball-wall interaction. Unlike a ball, electrons are more like a "fuzzy" cloud and can actually exist on both sides of the barrier at once. As a result, even if the barrier energy is greater than the total energy of the electron, there is a non-zero probability that the electron will cross it.

In order to perform scanning tunneling microscopy (STM), a sharp conductive probe must be moved extremely near the surface of a conductive object. The fuzzy electron cloud of the first atom of the tip and surface starts to overlap when the tip is sufficiently enough to the surface (often less than 1 nm distant). The overlapping electron cloud drives electrons to tunnel through the potential barrier from the tip to the surface, creating a current when a bias voltage is applied between the tip and the surface in this arrangement. This tunneling current varies exponentially with the tip-sample distance and is very sensitive to the distance between the probe tip and surface. The strength of the tunneling current maps the sample's electrical density of states as the tip scans the sample's surface line by line.

Constant height mode and constant current mode are the two unique ways that the STM functions. When the sample surface is very smooth, the constant height mode is often utilized. In this mode, the sample is swiftly raster scanned while the probe tip remains at a fixed height. Researchers may create a picture of the electronic density of states of the sample surface, defects, border molecular orbitals, and more by observing variations in the strength of the tunneling current as a function of (x, y) position and bias voltage.

The constant current mode is the more often used mode. By adjusting the gap between the tip and the surface in this mode, a feedback loop system maintains a constant tunneling current. In other words, if the tunneling current is greater than the target value, the feedback control system will distance the tip from the sample; conversely, if the tunneling current is lower than the target current value, the tip will be brought closer to the sample's surface. Researchers may assess a variety of properties, such as surface roughness, flaws, and the size and conformation of molecules on the surface, using the resultant three-dimensional distance profile as a function of (x,y) position.

STM may function in a variety of various environmental settings. STMs are often divided into two groups: ambient STMs and ultra-high vacuum (UHV) STMs. Typically, ambient STMs function in air or other gases at temperatures close to ambient. Ambient AFMs may also be used with liquids when equipped with appropriate insulated tips. Ambient STM capabilities are available on Oxford Instruments Asylum Research's MFP-3D and Cypher SPMs.Naturally, UHV STMs vary in that they function in very high vacuum. The sample is typically grown or etched and then photographed in situ in highly sophisticated UHV equipment. They can function in a very broad temperature range, from close to zero Kelvin to more than 1000°C, thanks to the vacuum in which they work. Although the Oxford Instruments Nanoscience division provides UHV equipment sometimes used with STM, Asylum Research does not provide UHV STMs[7], [8].

Since its inception, the STM has facilitated innovative research in a variety of fields, including semiconductor science, electrochemistry, surface chemistry, and more. It has also contributed to significant advances in nanotechnology. The STM was first used to describe the atomic structure of the surfaces and characterize the topology of various metals. The atomic-scale characteristics of materials, such as surface roughness, flaws, and surface response processes, were for the first time made clear to researchers. Researchers could start to comprehend characteristics important to the creation of electronic components by studying the atomic lattices of materials, including conductivity, distributions of frontier molecular orbitals and their energies, and reaction dependencies on crystal facet orientations, to name a few.

STM started to be used for many purposes throughout time other from atomic-scale imaging. On a surface, it has been utilized to organize and control individual atoms. This opened up new avenues for nanotechnology, leading to the creation of molecular switches and quantum corrals as well as other types of nanostructures. STM may also be used to create contacts on nanodevices by depositing metals (such as gold, silver, or tungsten) in a predetermined pattern. STM has also been employed by researchers to trigger chemical events and investigate the ensuing molecular reaction pathways. Because ambient STMs can often resolve single molecules and even sub-molecular structure, they are frequently employed to examine the structure of self-assembled molecules on surfaces. For instance, the picture below clearly depicts a monolayer of self-assembled 5-octadecoxyisophthalic acid molecules atop HOPG.

Infrared spectroscopy

Scanning probe microscopy, sometimes referred to as scanning force microscopy (SFM), has a high-resolution variant called atomic force microscopy (AFM). As shown in Figure 1, the device scans the sample surface using a cantilever with a sharp point at the end. The cantilever deflects when the probe moves across the surface of the sample due to attraction or repulsive forces between the tip and sample, which are typically Van Der Waal forces but may also include electrostatic and hydrophobic/hydrophilic forces. A laser that is reflected off the cantilever and into photodiodes measures the deflection. One of the photodiodes produces an output signal that is analyzed and gives information on the vertical bending of the cantilever as it gathers more light. The height of the probe is then controlled by a scanner as it goes over the surface using this data. A three-dimensional topographical image of the sample may then be created using the height variance introduced by the scanner[9], [10].



Figure 1: Atomic force microscope (AFM) equipment simple schematic [libretexts].

Artifacts, which are distortions of the true topography, are often seen in AFM pictures and are typically caused by problems with the probe, scanner, or image processing. The AFM scans slowly, making it more vulnerable to changes in outside temperature that cause thermal drift. Artifacts and incorrect distances between topographical features result from this. It's vital to keep in mind that the tip is not completely sharp and could not provide the ideal aspect ratio, which causes the genuine topography to be confounded. Since the breadth of the probe cannot properly move around the particles and holes on the surface, features seem too big or too tiny as a result. Because of this, tips with reduced radii of curvature provide improved image resolution. If the tip is damaged or blunt, it may also result in deceptive pictures and images with low contrast. Noise, which manifests as streaks or bands in the picture, may be produced by the movement of particles on the surface as a result of the cantilever's movement. Additionally, if the tip's dimensions are not appropriate for the surface being scanned, artifacts may result. It is crucial to use the best probe for the specific application for this reason.

Scanning Probe Lithography (SPL)

The ever-increasing need for nanoelectronics, high-density data storage devices, nanophotonics, quantum computing, molecular circuits, and scaffolds in bioengineering utilized for cell proliferation applications calls for high-throughput and high-accuracy nanofabrication techniques. To fulfill these needs, the key nanofabrication technique of scanning probe lithography (SPL) has the potential to develop into a game-changing atomic-scale fabrication technology. We aim to provide an overview of the SPL fabrication mechanism and the most recent findings in this field through this timely review. We also detail the applications and features of this technique, including the effects of thermal, chemical, and electric and magnetic fields on the mechanics of the functionalized tip interacting with the substrate during SPL. In addition, the evaluation compares different manufacturing capabilities, throughput, and achievable resolution. The publication also makes reference to the fact that the bulk of the cited literature indicates that SPL has not yet reached the full extent of its commercial potential and that it is now primarily a laboratory-based nanofabrication process used for prototyping nanostructures and nanodevices.

The downscaling of nanostructures with feature dimensions below 100 nm is intrinsically tied to the development of nanotechnology. For dense nano-products and electrical devices, nanophotonics, and biomedical research, various nanometric shapes, such as nano-dot arrays, nano-grooves, and even three-dimensional (3D) nanostructures, have been investigated utilizing diamond tip-based machining. Electron beam lithography (EBL), focused ion beam fabrication (FIB), nanoimprint lithography (NIL), and scanning probe lithography (SPL) are the techniques that are most often employed to quickly prototype the nanostructures.

EBL and FIB are extremely suitable techniques to process nanostructures with high precision because they can pattern nanostructures with feature sizes in sub-5 nm and can process a wide range of materials, including metals, alloys, hard and brittle ceramics, semiconductors, and polymers. Vacuum operation is necessary due to the severe processing environment. In terms of processing speed restrictions, FIB is identical to EBL. As an example, the maximum FIB deposition rate is 0.05 m3/s. The kind of electron beam resist affects how quickly EBL processes data. When patterning against SML resist, poly resist, and IM-MFP12-8 resist, for instance, the patterning speed of EBL may reach 17 nm/min, 40 nm/min, and 58 nm/min, respectively. Additionally, via the unfavorable deposition of gallium ions, FIB may be damaging and alter the electrical characteristics of the substrate surface. The cost of the nanofabrication process is further increased by the high cost of the equipment. Compared to EBL and FIB, NIL is less expensive and makes creating a master mold for the nanoimprint

process easier. However, the mold is rigid and can only reproduce the planned nanostructures, which restricts the NIL technique's use.

SPL nanofabrication is a method of nanofabrication that makes use of scanning probe microscopy and has the advantages of minimal machine needs, ease of usage, flexibility in manipulating position, relatively high material removal rate, and non-destructive inspection. Functionalized SPM tips can create high temperatures, strong electric and magnetic fields, strong fluxes of various sorts, and rapid temporal and spatial fluctuations of all of the above and more on the surface of a substrate. They can also image and alter environments at the atomic and sub-nanometer scale. It may provide a distinctive, confined, and manageable "manufacturing environment" that makes novel techniques for controlled nanofabrication feasible. As the main driving force behind this analysis, we examine SPM methodologies.

This article will briefly review the development of SPM before highlighting the fabrication processes, current state of the field, benefits, and limitations of the main SPM-based nanofabrication techniques and their applications. Finally, this study will review and contrast the main SPL nanofabrication methodologies, as well as highlight the existing difficulties and potential future prospects for SPL nanofabrication research.

Optical Microscopies for Nanoscience and Technology

Every laboratory has an optical microscope, which is used to view a broad range of samples. Every scientist has probably used one at some time in their career. They are known as light microscopes. The intricacy of these microscopes varies based on the kind and uses light to illuminate a sample. In essence, photons of light are utilized to illuminate the sample and a collection of lenses are used to magnify it to the desired objective magnification. However, anybody who has used one of these microscopes knows that the magnification is not very great. Some microscopes employ compound lenses to magnify the sample. Optical microscopes are excellent for closely examining samples that you can see with the unaided eye as well as materials that are smaller than a micron.

However, since their finest resolution is just 200 nm and their highest magnification is only 1000 X, they are unable to see nanostructured materials in great detail. Even if you can sometimes view them with an optical microscope, you cannot observe the many characteristics of the nanomaterial since this is larger than the size of the majority of nanomaterials. The incorporation of plasmonic gratings is one of the adaptations that are being researched to lower the resolution to the nanoscale region. The first prototypes created in a research facility at an academic institution have reduced the resolution to 65 nm, thus it's feasible that optical microscopes may soon be a practical method for nanoscale microscopy.

Overall, the various EM techniques can clearly image (with high resolution), analyze, and provide a wealth of information of all different kinds of nanomaterials, nanostructures, and nanoscale surfaces. This is one of the primary reasons why they have developed into a standard technique in many labs that work with nanomaterials. Although optical microscopes may be modified to detect the nanoscale, this option is presently less common compared to other modern microscope technologies.

Despite its drawbacks, light, particularly visible light, provides several benefits when studying matter. The benefit is that since the energy involved is low, light at this energy does not alter matter. Excitations caused by light in matter also result in fluorescence, a phenomenon that may be utilized to analyze substances with a particular chemical makeup. Additionally, light causes inelastic scattering and absorption, both of which may be exploited for imaging. Additionally, they are molecule-specific.

Optical microscopies may be improved in resolution in essentially two distinct methods. The first is for imaging in the far field, while the second is for imaging in the close field. In the former, the lighting takes place just a few nanometers from the surface, whereas in the former it takes place many microns away from the item to be photographed. The latter examines the sample's surface characteristics whereas the former examines the sample's bulk features. The resolution is constrained in the first because the diffraction limit is still in effect. The latter has been shown to have resolution on the order of 20 nm. It seems to reason that far field imaging of tiny objects cannot be accomplished. That is untrue. Confocal microscopy is used for this.

While the basic concept of hyperspectral imaging is the same as that of electronic spectroscopy (UV-Visible absorption), which is an ensemble averaged measurement, hyperspectral imaging may collect data at the single particle level. Some materials absorb a specific portion of the electromagnetic spectrum while transmitting the remainder, either by scattering (such as the plasma absorption by nanoparticles) or electronic transitions like those in semiconductors. The hyperspectral imaging technique makes advantage of this phenomena. The three main steps of the approach are lighting, sample processing, and spectrum capture. In most cases, the illumination system consists of a dark field condenser that lights the sample at a certain angle in the shape of a cone of light. No direct light enters the collecting regime thanks to its shape.

An optically transparent substrate, such as a glass slide, is used to trap the analyte (a nanoparticle or biological cell), which is then put on a scanning platform to enable X-Y mobility. Only the dispersed light continues to the third stage, where an objective lens with a NA lower than the condenser lens collects it. Just as in any other optical spectroscopy, a grating analyzes the energy of the light gathered by the objective. A pixel in the picture is created by such a spectrum. The picture may be created by assembling many (100 pixels/line X 100 lines) spectra using the X-Y scanner. Even though the method is constrained by the optical diffraction limit, it has the benefit of carrying spectral data, which may serve as a proximate indicator of size. According to several scattering theories, even nanoparticles with sizes on the order of a few nanometers scatter light so strongly that the spectral profile relies on the particle size. These well-developed scattering theories allow one to compute the particle's size while taking into consideration the spectral location, profile, and characteristics of the surrounding dielectric medium.

CONCLUSION

The fundamentals of Atomic Force Microscopy (AFM) and Scanning Tunneling Microscopy (STM) have fundamentally changed how we study and work with materials at the nanoscale. Researchers now have access to previously unattainable knowledge on the topography,
chemical makeup, and mechanical characteristics of surfaces and materials thanks to these potent approaches.STM has cleared the path for ground-breaking discoveries in disciplines like nanoelectronics and surface science thanks to its capacity to view individual atoms and control them with atomic accuracy. On the other hand, the adaptability of AFM has found uses in biology, materials science, and other fields for visualizing and measuring forces at the nanoscale.

REFERENCES:

- [1] S. Vahabi, B. Nazemi Salman, and A. Javanmard, "Atomic force microscopy application in biological research: A review study," *Iran. J. Med. Sci.*, 2013.
- [2] R. P. Brand, L. D. B. Mandemaker, G. Delen, N. Rijnveld, and B. M. Weckhuysen, "Behavior of a Metal Organic Framework Thin-Film at Elevated Temperature and Pressure as Studied with an Autoclave-Inserted Atomic Force Microscope," *ChemPhysChem*, 2018.
- [3] H. K. Wickramasinghe, "Scanning probe microscopy: Current status and future trends," J. Vac. Sci. Technol. A Vacuum, Surfaces, Film., 1990.
- [4] V. Grushko *et al.*, "Atomically resolved STM imaging with a diamond tip: Simulation and experiment," *Nanotechnology*, 2014.
- [5] J. K. Kawasaki *et al.*, "A simple electron counting model for half-heusler surfaces," *Sci. Adv.*, 2018.
- [6] R. K. Saravanan, I. Avasthi, R. K. Prajapati, and S. Verma, "Surface modification and pattern formation by nucleobases and their coordination complexes," *RSC Advances*. 2018.
- [7] A. A. Tseng, A. Notargiacomo, and T. P. Chen, "Nanofabrication by scanning probe microscope lithography: A review," *J. Vac. Sci. Technol. B Microelectron. Nanom. Struct.*, 2005.
- [8] I. Muševič, "Atomic force microscopy," Inf. MIDEM, 2000.
- [9] B. De La Torre *et al.*, "Submolecular Resolution by Variation of the Inelastic Electron Tunneling Spectroscopy Amplitude and its Relation to the AFM/STM Signal," *Phys. Rev. Lett.*, 2017.
- [10] S. K. Kulkarni, Nanotechnology: Principles and Practices, Third Edition. 2014.

CHAPTER 5 PHOTOELECTRON SPECTROSCOPY FOR THE STUDY OF NANOMATERIALS

Vishnu Prasad Shrivastava, Assistant Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- vpshrivastava82@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

For the comprehensive study of nanomaterials, photoelectron spectroscopy (PES) has become a potent and adaptable method that provides important insights into their electrical structure, chemical makeup, and surface characteristics. An overview of the PES concepts, methods, and applications in the context of nanomaterial research is given in this work. The essential ideas of PES are first explained in detail, along with how incoming photon interactions with nanomaterial surfaces result in the emission of photoelectrons. It emphasizes how crucial for energy analysis and electron detection are obtaining accurate data nanomaterials. Following that, other PES methods are examined, such as X-ray photoelectron spectroscopy (XPS) and ultraviolet photoelectron spectroscopy (UPS). The advantages and disadvantages of each method are examined, demonstrating how useful they are for analyzing nanomaterials. The synchrotron-based PES, which provides unmatched resolution and depth profiling capabilities, is highlighted in particular.

KEYWORDS:

Chemical State Analysis, Core-Level Shifts, Depth Profiling, Surface Analysis, Valence Band Spectroscopy.

INTRODUCTION

An experimental method for examining the electrical structure of materials is photoelectron spectroscopy. A number of photon sources, including lasers, soft and hard X-rays produced by laboratory sources, and synchrotron radiation, may be used for photoelectron spectroscopy. The method of photoelectron spectroscopy may detect and differentiate between a material's surface and bulk electronic structure based on the broad energy range of accessible photons. Due to its adaptability, photoelectron spectroscopy is a method that is ideal for examining the electrical structure of nanomaterials. The approach may be used to identify the valence states of elements and chemicals, study how valence band electronic structure evolves as a result of magnetic and metal-insulator transitions, and determine band dispersion and Fermi surfaces experimentally. Combining photoelectron spectroscopy with the complementing methods of resonant photoelectron spectroscopy, X-ray absorption spectroscopy, and inverse photoelectron spectroscopy may therefore provide crucial hints to understand the chemical and physical features of nanomaterials[1], [2].

One of the most important methods for understanding the electrical structure of materials is photoelectron spectroscopy. The description of an object's electron energy is called its electronic structure. When atoms are grouped into a solid, liquid, or even a gaseous molecule, the energy of the electrons in an isolated atom changes, but they may still be characterized in terms of their energy levels in an atom. The chemical and physical qualities of a substance are determined by the kind of electrons, the quantity of a certain type in an atom, and the energy they have. For instance, although coming from the same kind of atoms, the energy distribution of a certain kind of electron in a metal differs from that in an insulator. The valency of copper in copper metal as contrasted to insulating cupric oxide is directly responsible for this differential in energy distribution. A parent material's electrical energy levels are also influenced by minute changes in its chemical make-up. The modification of an inherent semiconductor's characteristics brought on by the chemical replacement of a very tiny number of holes and electrons serves as an apt metaphor for this. The finest example is the site-substitution of boron or phosphorus atoms to produce p- or n-type doping in silicon, respectively. The production of a range of electronic devices, from rectifier diodes and light emitting diodes to cutting-edge integrated circuits, like microprocessors, memory chips, etc., is based on the precise control of doping holes and electrons in various semiconductors, such as Si, Ge, GaAs, GaN, etc. Phase transitions are another significant issue in materials science. Depending on a physical parameter, such as temperature, pressure, or other factors, a material may change in terms of its geometric structure and/or other characteristics[3], [4].

DISCUSSION

A phase transition as a function of a physical parameter often results from the conflict between a material's elastic energy and its electronic energy. When we use the same logic to compare a nanomaterial's characteristics to those of its bulk form, we can see that nanomaterials might exhibit electrical properties that may be significantly different from those of their bulk form. This shows that the creation of unique scientific phenomena and features for use in device applications is quite feasible using nanomaterials. As a result, one of the main areas of study in modern research is the clarification of the electron energies of a material in both its bulk and nano-form.

The main instrument for analyzing the electronic structure of solid, liquid, and gaseous materials is PES. Over the last 50 years, it has been widely utilized to examine the electronic structure of solids, and as a result, there is now a huge database of the materials' electronic structures as determined by photoelectron spectroscopy. The German scientist Heinrich Hertz is responsible for the first documentation of experiments describing photoelectrons as part of his research on the nature of electromagnetic radiation and the experimental discovery of the photoelectric effect. Hertz demonstrated via a series of experiments how the proximity of a material to a spark gap directly altered the spark gap's current-voltage properties, providing the first example of the photoelectric effect. Since electrons are responsible for the flow of current across a spark gap, the electromagnetic radiation had an impact on the material's electrons. The photoelectric effect tests could not be explained by the classical or wave nature of electromagnetic radiation since they were conducted before to J.J. Thomson's 1899 discovery of the electron. Albert Einstein subsequently provided an explanation based on the quantum nature of electromagnetic radiation, which states that light is made up of photons, each of which has a unique frequency (v) and energy (h). "For his services to the

development of theoretical physics, and particularly for his discovery of the law of the photoelectric effect," says Albert Einstein's Nobel Prize citation[5], [6].

- 1. The rate at which electrons are released is exactly proportional to the intensity of the incoming light, for a given material and frequency of incident radiation, is one of the key characteristics of the photoelectric effect.
- 2. There is a minimum frequency of incoming radiation for each material below which the photoelectric effect cannot produce electrons, and this lowest frequency is known as the threshold frequency.
- 3. The maximal kinetic energy of the released electron relies on the frequency of the incoming radiation above the threshold frequency, but not on the intensity of the incident radiation.

These characteristics were a clear demonstration of the electromagnetic radiation's particle nature and were crucial in establishing the wave-particle duality theory in quantum physics. The aforementioned equation explicitly states the rule of conservation of energy while also implying the concept of conservation of momentum.

In the photoelectron "spectroscopy" experiment, the intensity of photo-emitted electrons from a material's valence band and core levels is measured as a function of the electrons' kinetic energy. The Kai Siegbahn group at Uppsala University in Sweden did ground-breaking work on the science and technology of photoelectron spectroscopy for the study of electronic structure, or "ESCA." For "his contribution to the development of high-resolution electron spectroscopy," he received the Nobel Prize in 1981. The diagram shows the equipment needed to perform photoelectron spectroscopy.

The typical photoelectron spectroscopy apparatus is made up of stainless steel chambers that are pushed by a mix of rotary/diaphragm pumps and ultra-high vacuum turbo-pumps. A typical stand-alone instrument has three chambers: the main chamber, or analysis chamber, which facilitates sample cooling and heating with the help of an electron energy analyzer, a photon source, and sample manipulator; the sample preparation chamber, where the sample surface is prepared and characterized inside an ultra-high vacuum; and the fast entry load-lock or sample bank chamber, which is the only one that is opened and exposed to air, where the samples are introduced into the p. In order to reduce the amount of time needed to produce ultra-high vacuum for experiments to be carried out in the preparation and analysis chambers, this chamber is essential[7], [8].

The hemispherical electron energy analyzer is often used in spectroscopic investigations to measure the kinetic energies of electrons. This is accomplished by providing a set voltage to the analyzer's hemispherical plates for a certain kinetic energy. Computer-controlled energy analysis and spectroscopy experiment sweep over the observed electrons' kinetic energy to produce a spectrum, or intensity as a function of kinetic energy. By understanding the work function or calibrating the energy scale using a common database of core-level energies, the spectrum may be quickly shown as a function of binding energy.8 Although photon energies of a few eV or even a few keV may be used, photoelectron spectroscopy often uses a constant

photon energy. In the unique instance of resonant photoelectron spectroscopy, it is also carried out as a function of adjustable photon energy received from a synchrotron[9], [10].

The designations or nomenclature used to characterize certain energy levels that are measured in a material, as is known from the energy levels of the electronic states present in the atoms making up the substance, constitutes a further categorization. The terminology is based on how hydrogenic atoms are typically categorized, with s, p, d, and f electrons filling the K, L, M, and other shells, respectively. The following table (Figure 1) provides a more thorough breakdown of electron energy levels from the K-shell to the N-shell (the numbers in parentheses represent the maximum number of electrons that can fit in each shell):

K-shell	1s(2)	K
L-shell	$\begin{array}{c} 2s(2) \\ 2p(6): 2p_{1/2}, 2p_{3/2} \end{array}$	L ₁ L ₂ , L ₃
M-shell	$3s(2)3p(6): 3p_{1/2}, 3p_{3/2}3d(10): 3d_{3/2}, 3d_{5/2}$	$\begin{matrix} \mathbf{M_1} \\ \mathbf{M_2}, \mathbf{M_3} \\ \mathbf{M_4}, \mathbf{M_5} \end{matrix}$
N-shell	$\begin{array}{l} 4s(2) \\ 4p(6): 4p_{1/2}, 4p_{3/2} \\ 4d(10): 4d_{3/2}, 4d_{5/2} \\ 4f(14): 4f_{5/2}, 4f_{7/2} \end{array}$	$egin{array}{ccc} {\bf N}_1 & & & & \ {\bf N}_{2\prime}{\bf N}_3 & & & \ {\bf N}_{4\prime}{\bf N}_5 & & & \ {\bf N}_{6\prime}{\bf N}_7 \end{array}$
	$4I(14): 4I_{5/2}, 4I_{7/2}$	IN ₆ , IN ₇

Figure 1: classification for electron energy.

The core (or inner) levels and valence (or outermost) levels of a material are described and measured using photoelectron spectroscopy, respectively. Auger electron spectroscopy is a method similar to photoelectron spectroscopy. An excited state with a core hole is produced when an electron leaves a core level. The energy of this transition is released as a photon, producing X-ray emission, or it may be employed in a non-radiative mechanism to remove another electron. This hole can be filled by a higher lying electron. The term Auger electron spectroscopy comes from the second step, the Auger effect, which produces an electron emission. The inverse photoelectron spectroscopy, X-ray absorption spectroscopy, and resonant photoelectron spectroscopy, respectively, are three related or complimentary electron spectroscopies of the unoccupied and occupied electron states of a material that will be covered later. Based on the inverse photoelectric effect, which is the absorption of an electron and the emission of a photon, inverse photoelectron spectroscopy (IPES) is a useful technique for determining a material's unoccupied density of states. Due to the low transition probability for the inverse photoelectric process, the intensities are relatively low, making this experiment exceedingly time-consuming and unpopular. Resonant photoelectron spectroscopy and X-ray absorption spectroscopy investigations take comparably little time, but they need the incoming photon energy to be adjustable.

Radiation from a synchrotron

The electromagnetic radiation produced when charged particles follow curved pathways is known as chrotron radiation. Synchrotron radiation is also known as MagnetoBremsstrahlung because in the majority of accelerators, the particle paths are bent by magnetic fields. The radiated spectrum spans a wide range of spectral areas, from the microwave (harmonics of the generating RF field) through x-ray. The radiation is polarized and vertically collimated. If the electron energy E, bending radius, electron current IB, angle with respect to the orbital plane 0, the distance to the tangent point d, and the vertical and horizontal acceptance angles are known, the synchrotron radiation output may be determined.

Synchrotron Radiation Properties

We can compute the synchrotron radiation spectra and other features, such as its dispersion in space, thanks to a formalism that Schwinger developed. The equation for the radiation power for SURF is provided by

$$P(\lambda,\gamma,\psi_{0},\rho,\Delta\lambda,I_{B},\Delta\theta,\Delta\psi) = \int_{\psi_{0}-\Delta\psi}^{\psi_{0}+\Delta\psi} \frac{2}{3} \frac{e_{0}}{\varepsilon_{0}} \frac{\Delta\lambda}{\beta} \frac{\Delta\theta}{\lambda^{4}} \frac{I_{B}}{\gamma^{4}} \left[1 + (\gamma\psi)^{2}\right]^{2} \times \left[K_{2/3}\left(\xi(\lambda,\gamma)\right)^{2} + \frac{(\gamma\psi)^{2}}{1 + (\gamma\psi)^{2}} K_{1/3}\left(\xi(\lambda,\gamma)\right)^{2}\right] d\psi$$

All areas of study, including physics, chemistry, and biology, are finding extensive use for experimental methods that use synchrotron radiation as the incident probe. Unmistakably, the incident particle is a photon. The particles that are released, however, might be photons, electrons, atoms, ions, or molecules. The techniques may examine either the atomic or electronic structure of various materials. Examining the many experimental programs now underway at the NSLS, which has two storage rings covering the VUV and x-ray bands and so offers a great indication of the whole spectrum of experiments, can help us learn more about the potential applications.

Clusters of metal and nanoparticles

The words "cluster" and "nanoparticle" are still not clearly distinguished in the literature. The term "nanoparticle" typically refers to particles with less precise characterization, often associated with a specific size distribution, and thus partially replaces the historical term "colloid." Clusters, on the other hand, are typically thought of as species, precisely defined in chemical composition and structure. $Co4(CO)_{12}$ and $Rh_6(CO)_{16}$ are two examples of common and well-known clusters that include terminal and bridging CO groups as well as direct metal-metal connections. For example, glass (ruby glass) was colored using gold nanoparticles (gold colloids) in antiquity without any scientific explanation. Michael Faraday was the first scientist to examine the production of gold colloid in the middle of the nineteenth century. He formed ruby-red gold sols by reducing a solution of HAuC₁₄ with elemental phosphorus. In the meantime, we discovered that the cause of this color is due to the interaction of visible light with the gold nanoparticles' surface electrons (Mie theory).

As far as we are aware, the color varies on the size, shape, and medium around it. Original gold sols created by Faraday comprised sub-30 nm gold particles with a wide size dispersion. Today, there are a huge number of very precise metal clusters and less highly precise metal nanoparticles. Large metal clusters and nanoparticles serve as a link between the molecular and solid states based on their physical and chemical characteristics. As a result, they often display traits common to both of these ancient fields, making them of enormous interest from both a scientific and practical standpoint. Modern physics and chemistry are driven by the idea that a metallic particle's properties may be created by the amount of atoms in it. The term "size quantization" has been developed to describe how physical and chemical qualities rely on their size.

From a certain size on, clusters or nanoparticles made entirely of metal atoms alter their physical characteristics on their own. Due to the presence of distinct electronic energy levels and the disappearance of overlapping electronic bands, which are characteristics of a bulk metal, metal particles smaller than around 2 nm exhibit typical quantum size behavior even at ambient temperature. Since they serve as a bridge between bulk metals and tiny molecule clusters, they are also known as "artificial big atoms." Along with the fascinating electrical transitions from bulk to molecule or the opposite, other characteristics also change. One example is that the melting temperature of tiny metal nanoparticles is substantially lower than that of the comparable bulk metal. The band gap of semiconductor clusters also changes greatly with size, and magnetic and optical characteristics also often rely on particle size.

CONCLUSION

As a result, photoelectron spectroscopy has become a potent and adaptable tool for the indepth investigation of nanomaterials. The development of nanoscience and nanotechnology has greatly benefited by its capacity to provide insightful information on the electrical structure, chemical makeup, and surface characteristics of nanomaterials.Researchers can accurately ascertain the energy levels of electrons inside nanomaterials, giving insight on their band structures and electrical behaviour via the examination of photoelectron spectra. The method also provides outstanding sensitivity to surface phenomena and interfaces, which makes it crucial for comprehending surface chemistry and reactivity, which are crucial in the development of nanomaterials for a variety of applications.

REFERENCES:

- [1] Z. Wang, F. Tang, H. Fan, L. Wang, and Z. Jin, "Polydopamine Generates Hydroxyl Free Radicals under Ultraviolet-Light Illumination," *Langmuir*, 2017.
- [2] S. A. Kumar *et al.*, "Nitrate reductase-mediated synthesis of silver nanoparticles from AgNO 3," *Biotechnol. Lett.*, 2007.
- [3] L. Rodríguez-Pérez, C. Villegas, M. Á. Herranz, J. L. Delgado, and N. Martín, "Heptamethine Cyanine Dyes in the Design of Photoactive Carbon Nanomaterials," *ACS Omega*, 2017.

- [4] Q. Zhou *et al.*, "Highly sensitive carbon monoxide (CO) gas sensors based on Ni and Zn doped SnO2 nanomaterials," *Ceram. Int.*, 2018.
- [5] B. Li *et al.*, "Preparation of Monolayer MoS2 Quantum Dots using Temporally Shaped Femtosecond Laser Ablation of Bulk MoS2 Targets in Water," *Sci. Rep.*, 2017.
- [6] D. R. Baer *et al.*, "Surface characterization of nanomaterials and nanoparticles: Important needs and challenging opportunities," *J. Vac. Sci. Technol. A Vacuum, Surfaces, Film.*, 2013.
- [7] A. Ananth and Y. S. Mok, "Dielectric barrier discharge (DBD) plasma assisted synthesis of Ag2O nanomaterials and Ag2O/RuO2 nanocomposites," *Nanomaterials*, 2016.
- [8] L. Li *et al.*, "Unraveling Oxygen Evolution Reaction on Carbon-Based Electrocatalysts: Effect of Oxygen Doping on Adsorption of Oxygenated Intermediates," *ACS Energy Letters*. 2017.
- [9] H. Liu and T. J. Webster, "Nanomedicine for implants: A review of studies and necessary experimental tools," *Biomaterials*. 2007.
- [10] H. W. Kim *et al.*, "Photoelectron Spectroscopy Study of the Semiconductor Electrode Nanomaterials for the Dye Synthesized Solar Cell," *J. Korean Magn. Soc.*, 2015.

CHAPTER 6 STRUCTURE OF MATERIALS BY DIFFRACTION TECHNIQUES

Sri Prakash Pandey, Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- pandeysp72@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

At the core of materials science is the study of the atomic and molecular structure of materials, which has significant ramifications for a variety of applications, from electronics to medical. An introduction of diffraction methods used to clarify the structural properties of materials is given in this study, along with a look at some of its many applications and underlying theories. The principles of diffraction are introduced in the first section, emphasizing how particles like X-rays and electrons interact with crystalline lattices as both waves and particles. The mathematical underpinnings of diffraction, such as Bragg's law and the Fourier transform, which serve as the foundation for structural analysis, are covered in depth. The following section provides a thorough analysis of diffraction methods, including X-ray diffraction (XRD), neutron diffraction, electron diffraction, and synchrotron radiation-based approaches. Each method is evaluated in terms of its advantages, disadvantages, and best uses. Recent developments in experimental design, data collection, and analytic techniques are given special consideration.

KEYWORDS:

Crystal Lattice, Powder Diffraction, Reciprocal Space, Single Crystal, X-ray Diffraction.

INTRODUCTION

Radiation bending in the direction of an object's geometric shadow is known as diffraction. Depending on how the dispersed waves are spread, the diffracted beams may produce brilliant or dark fringes in the shadow area. The radiation hypothesis of Huygen's wave might be used to explain this behavior. In the visible portion of the electromagnetic spectrum, the diffraction gratings exhibit these effects. After been discovered seventeen years before, Max von Laue initially used X-rays to illustrate this effect. The inter-planar spacing could be successfully estimated from the separations of brilliant fringes of the diffraction pattern because the crystal lattice is made up of parallel rows of atoms comparable to the parallel lines of the diffraction grating. The likelihood of constructive interference is related to the inter-planar separations according to the traditional Bragg's law of diffraction[1], [2].

DISCUSSION

The r-space density distribution of the scattering object is related to the Q-space scattered intensity distribution in terms of a Fourier transform by a basic theorem in the physics of the

scattering wave by an extended object. This theorem implies that the characteristic width of the intensity distribution in Q-space is inversely linked to the characteristic size in r-space, R. Therefore, a scattering experiment with Q varying in a range around the value of Q = 2/R is required to characterize the size R. Later, effective efforts to advance theory and experimental technique made X-ray diffraction a special instrument for the investigation of solids. In general, the scattering power of an electron is used to represent an atom's scattering factor. The formula for an atom's scattering factor is

$$f = f_0 e^{\frac{-B\sin^2\theta}{\lambda^2}}$$

X-Ray Diffraction

The chemical make-up and crystalline structure of materials are the subject of several analytical problems in the field of materials science. The only laboratory method that correctly and non-destructively gathers data on chemical composition, crystal structure, crystallite size, lattice strain, preferred orientation, and layer thickness is X-ray diffraction (XRD). Therefore, XRD is used by materials scientists to examine a variety of materials, including powders, solids, thin films, and nanomaterials. A flexible non-destructive analytical method called X-ray diffraction (XRD) is used to examine the physical characteristics of powder, solid, and liquid materials, including their phase composition, crystal structure, and orientation[3], [4].

Tiny crystallites make up a lot of different materials. 'Phase' refers to these crystals' chemical make-up and structural kind. Materials may include crystalline and non-crystalline components and can be single phases or multiphase combinations. Different crystalline phases produce various diffraction patterns in an X-ray diffractometer. By comparing X-ray diffraction patterns from unknown materials to patterns from reference databases, phase identification may be carried out. This procedure is comparable to comparing fingerprints at a crime scene. The International Center of Diffraction Data (ICDD) is responsible for maintaining the most complete compound database. Additionally, pure-phase diffraction patterns from your own observations may all be used to create a reference database. In a multiphase mixture, the relative intensities of the patterns from the various phases are utilized to ascertain the sample's whole composition.

The X-ray Diffraction Principles

Constructive interference between X-rays and a crystalline sample causes X-ray diffraction. The employed X-rays have a wavelength that is on par with the spacing between atoms in a crystalline lattice. This results in a diffraction pattern that may be examined in a variety of ways, with the most common being the application of the well-known Bragg's Law (n=2d sin), which is used to determine the size of crystals and their phases. The source's X-rays shine light on the sample. It then reaches the detector after being diffracted by the sample phase. The intensity is determined, and diffraction data are logged, by moving the tube or sample and detector to alter the diffraction angle, the angle between the incident and

diffracted beams). The angle between the incident beam and the sample may be either constant or variable and is often associated with the diffracted beam angle, depending on the geometry of the diffractometer and the kind of sample[5], [6].

XRD applications

Many scientists and industry researchers use X-ray diffraction (XRD) as a method to create novel materials or increase manufacturing effectiveness. Research on novel materials, such as in semiconductor technology or medicinal studies, closely follows advancements in X-ray diffraction. Industrial research focuses on accelerating manufacturing processes' speed and efficiency. In mining and the manufacturing of construction materials, fully automated X-ray diffraction examinations lead to more economical production control solutions.

Qualitative and quantitative phase analyses of pure substances and mixtures are the principal applications of X-ray diffraction. 'X-ray powder diffraction' (XRPD) is a common name for the most used phase analysis technique.

- 1. Analysis of phase shifts in non-ambient investigations under additional particular circumstances, such as temperature, humidity, and applied pressure.
- 2. Examining the 'microstructure' of polycrystalline materials, which is the combination of physical characteristics such crystallite size (diameter), crystal orientation, and residual stress.
- 3. Using a technique known as grazing incidence XRD (GIXRD), many of these approaches may also be used to polycrystalline layered materials, such as coatings and thin films. Using a technique known as microdiffraction, tiny portions of polycrystalline materials are studied.

High-resolution analysis of heteroepitaxial layers (HR-XRD), which uses both Bragg's Law and dynamical diffraction theory for its analysis, is one of several X-ray diffraction methods for materials that are not polycrystalline (such as single crystal semiconductor wafers or epitaxial layers).

Scattering of X-rays

Grazing incidence small-angle X-ray scattering (GISAXS), small-angle X-ray scattering (SAXS), total scattering (also known as pair distribution function (PDF) analysis), and X-ray reflectometry (XRR) are additional techniques used to examine a material's non-crystalline components. Each technique has a unique data analysis algorithm that is based on the basic scattering theory.

Analysis Tools

Following the measurement of an X-ray scattering or diffraction pattern. It requires analysis. Data from X-ray diffraction and scattering experiments may be quite difficult to analyze.

There are several XRD software packages available to handle all the various measurement kinds, making this easy for the user[7], [8].

Advantages of XRD

XRD is often the most precise and trustworthy approach for the unambiguous identification of unknown materials. It is also relatively quick (usually within 20 minutes). This method is well-liked since it requires little sample preparation and may be used to both materials research and industrial process applications. Data analysis may be relatively simple with the correct analytical tools, and for industrial operations, it can even be automated such that in QC applications the operator does not need to be an expert in XRD.

Rietveld Profile Refinement

Over a century ago, the discovery of the first powder diffraction pattern was made. A significant number of randomly aligned crystallites make up the sample of a typical powder diffraction measurement's microcrystalline powder. Diffraction cones are produced when all of these crystallites refract the entering beam simultaneously in all directions. Then, on the 2 axes of the powder pattern, the intensity and distribution of the cones are measured. Due to an unintentional and intentional peak overlap, the collapse of three-dimensional reciprocal space into one-dimensional data sets results in a significant loss of information. The serious "powder problem" is this. The use of powder diffraction in the structural investigation of materials was quite constrained during the first 50 years. Hugo Rietveld wrote the ground-breaking study on the technique that has come to be known as the Rietveld refining method in 1969. As a consequence, during the last 50 years, powder diffraction's use in crystallographic research has undergone a genuine revolution. We created a virtual special issue to highlight the Rietveld method's uses in contemporary chemistry, materials science, and structural sciences in commemoration of this half-century milestone[9], [10].

Peak overlap may be avoided using this strategy in an elegant manner. The fundamental concept is based on simulating a numerical powder neutron diffraction pattern that is specified by a set of parameters. The backdrop, crystal lattice and symmetry, crystal structure, crystal microstructure, instrumental factors, and others are among the many contributions to the pattern that are included in these parameters. Modern software really allows users to add, remove, change, or improve any parameter, making the process modular. The least-squares approach may be used to concurrently fine-tune each of these parameters until the computed pattern matches the data obtained via experimentation. The crystal structure is regarded as polished after a good match is made.

At the University of Western Australia in Perth, Hugo M. Rietveld pursued his interest in physics. He and Ted Maslen conducted the first single-crystal neutron diffraction research on the chemical molecule p-diphenyl benzene in Australia in 1960. Early in his research career, hand-plotted Fourier maps, little automation in data collecting, and laborious data processing all existed. He learned how to utilize the Fortran II-based IBM 1620 computer during this period, which used punched cards for input and output. This inspired him to investigate the automation opportunities made possible by the development of computers. The Ph.D. defense for Rietveld took place in 1964, with Dorothy Hodgkin serving as the examiner. He joined

the neutron diffraction group at the Reactor Centrum Nederland after receiving his PhD. He joined the group there that included profile refinement techniques pioneers Bob van Laar and Bert Loopstra.

Due to the significant overlap of diffraction peaks in the 1960s, dealing with poor symmetry and complicated crystal formations was quite difficult. The answer to this conundrum was to develop the crystal structure using data that included both a single Bragg reflection intensity and a collection of overlapping diffraction intensities. With little success—complicated patterns required fitting of numerous parametersGaussian profiles were manually fitted using least-squares techniques to try to separate the overlapping peaks. Rietveld created the first method for managing massive volumes of data after seeing the promise of computers in this area. This method allows for the simultaneous refinement of up to 33 parameters when run on an Electrologica X1 computer. This was a step in the right direction, but more computational power was still needed. The software was rebuilt when the Electrologica X8 was introduced. The structure and the profile parameters were improved in the new version. As a consequence, in 1969 the groundbreaking work "A Profile Refinement Method for Nuclear and Magnetic Structures" was released.

Although the approach was shown using data from neutron powder diffraction, it was also proposed that it might be used with data from X-ray powder diffraction. There were 27 copies of this software issued to research facilities worldwide. The rest is history. This influential study has received over 18,000 citations to date. The approach was initially given the term "Profile Refinement Method" by Rietveld in recognition of the important contributions made before his work. However, a lot of writers began writing their papers using new terms. Ray Young and Terry Sabine suggested the term "Rietveld Method" at the Neutron conference in Cracow to avoid additional naming ambiguity. The Commission on Neutron Diffraction later approved the name. 172 structures were improved using neutron powder diffraction data in less than 8 years. There are many nowadays. We provide a collection of 17 publications that were made feasible by the "Rietveld refinement method" in this virtual special issue.

The powder diffraction technique was previously only useful for fine-tuning the crystal structures of inorganic salts and tiny organic compounds. We begin our fictitious special issue with a startling rise in complexity the crystal structures of proteins to demonstrate how far we've come. The origins, development, and future prospects of the Rietveld refinement technique in macromolecular powder diffraction were outlined by Margiolaki et al. Without important advancements and integrations of diffraction line profiles in the Rietveld technique, as detailed by Scardi, such enormous structural refinement projects would not be achievable.

The Rietveld method is one of many approaches that must be used in concert to solve and improve difficult and complex crystal structures. In this issue, Kaduk et al. used Rietveld refinement, 3D electron diffraction, and density functional theory optimization to fully study the crystal structure of linagliptin hemihydrate hemiethanolate. Harris et al. have shown that complementing experimental and computational strategies may be used to enhance the structure identification and refinement of multicomponent organic crystalline phases using powder diffraction data. Ramos-Guivar et al. have shown how the Rietveld technique may be used in conjunction with spectroscopic studies like -Raman, XPS, and Mössbauer spectroscopies.

Mechanochemistry may produce crystalline materials that are sometimes impossible to produce using conventional solvatothermal techniques; yet, because of the nature of the approach, mechanochemical reactions often produce powders. As shown by Runevski et al. The only other option left to describe the crystal structure of such materials is Rietveld refinement. The idealized crystal lattice in nature is decorated by imperfections and chaos; perfect crystals only exist in theory. According to Chan et al.'s excellent demonstration using faulty samples of Yb₀.5Co₃Ge₃, Rietveld refinement may aid in a better understanding of these deviations from the ideal order. Scheelite-type solids exhibit rotational disorder, as shown by Rabuffetti et al. The study of porous crystalline materials has benefited greatly from the Rietveld approach. By using time-resolved powder X-ray diffraction, Bon and Kaskel et al. studied the structural development of a highly porous responsive metal-organic framework in this issue. According to Paillaud et al., zeolites' pores were examined for the presence of organic structure-directing agents.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, diffraction methods are an essential tool in materials science and other scientific fields for studying the structure of materials. The knowledge of the characteristics and behavior of a variety of materials, from metals and ceramics to biological molecules and nanomaterials, is greatly impacted by the insights acquired through these approaches. The complicated atomic and molecular configurations seen in crystalline and non-crystalline materials have all been revealed by X-ray, neutron, and electron diffraction. These methods have improved not just our basic knowledge of materials but have also sparked advancements in industries including semiconductor technology, drug discovery, and materials design.

REFERENCES:

- [1] S. J. L. Billinge and M. G. Kanatzidis, "Beyond crystallography: The study of disorder, nanocrystallinity and crystallographically challenged materials with pair distribution functions," *Chem. Commun.*, 2004.
- [2] C. Giannini, M. Ladisa, D. Altamura, D. Siliqi, T. Sibillano, and L. De Caro, "X-ray Diffraction: A powerful technique for the multiple-length-scale structural analysis of nanomaterials," *Crystals.* 2016.
- [3] S. J. Lainé, K. M. Knowles, P. J. Doorbar, R. D. Cutts, and D. Rugg, "Microstructural characterisation of metallic shot peened and laser shock peened Ti–6Al–4V," *Acta Mater.*, 2017.
- [4] I. L. Putama Mursal, "KARAKTERISASI XRD DAN SEM PADA MATERIAL NANOPARTIKEL SERTA PERAN MATERIAL NANOPARTIKEL DALAM DRUG DELIVERY SYSTEM," *Pharma Xplore J. Ilm. Farm.*, 2018.
- [5] R. Sharma, D. P. Bisen, U. Shukla, and B. G. Sharma, "X-ray diffraction: a powerful method of characterizing nanomaterials," *Recent Res. Sci. Technol.*, 2012.

- [6] K. Jurkiewicz, M. Pawlyta, and A. Burian, "Structure of Carbon Materials Explored by Local Transmission Electron Microscopy and Global Powder Diffraction Probes," *C*, 2018.
- [7] N. Widjonarko, "Introduction to Advanced X-ray Diffraction Techniques for Polymeric Thin Films," *Coatings*, 2016.
- [8] T. Pradeep, *Structure of materials by diffraction techniques*. 2012.
- [9] I. Ghamarian, Y. Liu, P. Samimi, and P. C. Collins, "Development and application of a novel precession electron diffraction technique to quantify and map deformation structures in highly deformed materials As applied to ultrafine-grained titanium," *Acta Mater.*, 2014.
- [10] A. A. Bunaciu, E. gabriela Udriștioiu, and H. Y. Aboul-Enein, "X-Ray Diffraction: Instrumentation and Applications," *Critical Reviews in Analytical Chemistry*. 2015.

CHAPTER 7 ELECTROANALYTICAL TECHNIQUES USED FOR NANOMATERIALS RESEARCH

Diptonil Banerjee, Associate Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-nilju82@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

In the field of nanomaterials research, electroanalytical methods have become essential instruments that allow researchers to investigate the electrochemical properties, surface features, and functional uses of nanoscale materials. This article gives a thorough review of the numerous electroanalytical methods used to analyze nanomaterials, explaining their workings, uses, and contributions to the development of nanoscience. The study begins by outlining the basic ideas that underlie electroanalytical methods, highlighting the significance of electron transfer mechanisms and nanoscale electrochemical reactions. It examines the major techniques, such as electrochemical impedance spectroscopy, cyclic voltammetry, and amperometry, each geared toward addressing certain uses and features of nanomaterials.

KEYWORDS:

Carbon Nanotubes, Cyclic Voltammetry, Electrochemical Nanosensors, Faradaic Reactions.

INTRODUCTION

One has to analyze multiple features of nanomaterials by combining a variety of characterization methods, since many of them give complementary data, in order to understand the characteristics of nanomaterials and to connect them with the intrinsic structure. To examine the inherent size and shape dependent redox characteristics of nanomaterials and their assemblies, electroanalytical methods including voltammetry, impedance, and chronoamperometry are particularly important. The existence of an electroactive species in the material is a fundamental condition for these approaches. Even if the nanomaterials themselves are electrochemically inert, researchers may still exploit the redox-active ligands that cap some of these nanoparticles[1], [2].

Cyclic and differential pulse voltammetry (CV and DPV, respectively) are two of the most used electro-analytical methods for nanomaterials. In both methods, the current response is observed by either applying a potential ramp (CV) or a differential of a brief potential pulse (DPV) to the sample. The use of electrochemical impedance, which is based on the measurement of an electrochemical cell's response after applying a tiny amplitude alternating current (AC), is another crucial approach. Additionally, it may provide insightful data on how MPCs assemblies behave in solutions and in the solid state with regard to surface coverage, dielectric constant, diffusion coefficient, and electron transport behavior. The complex impedance representation is often used to analyze the response, and the findings are then translated into appropriate equivalent circuits. This approach, however, has certain built-in restrictions. We go into some depth on each of the approaches in the sections that follow, with a focus on nanomaterials in particular.

DISCUSSION

One of the most adaptable and dynamic electroanalytical methods for examining electroactive species and their redox processes is cyclic voltammetry. With different solvent-supporting electrolyte combinations, this approach may quickly observe redox behavior across a broad potential range. The electrochemical behavior of species that diffuse to an electrode surface, interfacial phenomena at an electrode surface, and bulk characteristics of materials in or on electrodes may all be studied using this method. In light of this, the dynamic electrochemical technique family that scans the potential applied to an electrochemical cell includes the widely used cyclic voltammetry. All dynamical electroanalytical methods share the output of cell current vs. potential and the ability to change the experiment's time scale (for example, from a few mV to millions of volts per second) to fit the phenomenon being studied. As illustrated in Figure 1, a typical three-electrode cell for material research consists of a reference electrode, whose potential is known in a certain environment, a counter-electrode, and a working electrode[3], [4].



Figure 1: A material characterization electrochemical system with three electrodes [springer].

The scanning potentiostat, which regulates the potential of a working electrode vs. the reference in a pre-designed way and simultaneously measures the resultant current as shown

in Figure 2, is the fundamental apparatus for the contemporary cyclic voltammetry shown in this image.



Figure 2: Ideal shape of a cyclic voltammogram for reversible diffusion-controlled electrochemical reactions [springer].

The excitation signal for CV is a linear potential scan with a triangle or cyclic waveform, and it may be thought of as the regulating potential applied between these two electrodes. By monitoring the current at the working electrode during the potential scan, a cyclic voltammogram is produced. A depiction of the current flowing through the electrochemical cell during the cyclic potential scan is the result of cyclic voltammetry. A potentiostatic circuit is used to measure the voltage-current curves. The working electrode potential is maintained at a predefined value in a three-electrode configuration by controlling the potential difference between the working electrode (WE) and the reference electrode (RE). Imagine an electroactive species O solution with an inert metal acting as the working electrody, ranging from 0.01M to 1M, which helps to reduce ionic migration and minimize cell resistance. Let's say that O is quickly and irreversibly depleted.

Since every metal interface is capable of storing charges and this efficiency of charge storage is expressed in terms of double layer capacitance, cyclic voltammetric measurements, for example, can be used to investigate various electrochemical properties of nanoparticles, such as the redox potential, double layer charging, and potential of zero charge (EPZC). Since capacitance is a function of potential, double layer charging, also known as nonfaradiac current, occurs anytime a ramp is applied during voltammetry. Depending on the sign of dE/dt. Similar to this, the point of zero charge which corresponds to the minima in the plot of capacitance vs potential is the potential at which the interface does not exhibit any excess charge. Accordingly, cyclic voltammetry has recently been used to explore the electrochemical characteristics of Ag, Cu, and Au particles[5], [6].

Another crucial electroanalytical approach is electrochemical impedance, which measures how an electrochemical cell responds to the application of an ac current in terms of the resulting ac voltage of a circuit element. The impedance is a function of frequency since any frequency of voltage signal may be applied, and an impedance spectrum shows the impedance of a circuit element as a function of frequency. This method was first used to calculate the double-layer capacitance, and it is presently used in ac polarography to characterize electrode processes and intricate interfaces.

Impedance measurements may provide important information on the surface area, conductivity, carrier concentration, and dielectric constant of nanomaterials in solution and in the solid state, but not about their electron transfer behavior and diffusion coefficients. Impedance interpretation is difficult even if it is a very sophisticated technique. The inability to use a single equivalent circuit and the impedance model changing with frequency make this technique more challenging. Additionally, EIS is unable to provide every remedy. This method alone cannot provide a complete understanding of the interfacial processes; additional methods must be used.

Both quantitative chemical analysis and research into the mechanism, kinetics, and thermodynamics of chemical processes employ differential pulse voltammetry (DPV). It is often used in conjunction with a Static Mercury Drop Electrode (SMDE) or a Dropping Mercury Electrode (DME). Differential Pulse Polarography (DPP), while this term is often used to refer to the whole method, is the nomenclature given when it is employed with any of these electrodes. When compared to other electrochemical methods, DPV has benefits when employed as an analytical tool. Since DPV is so sensitive, direct studies at the ppb (parts per billion) level are often possible. Analysis at the ppt (parts per trillion) level is achievable when employed in a stripping mode. Due to the relatively little pulse period and its differential nature, DPV is sensitive. The measured currents are increased by the short pulse duration, and background processes are distinguished from using the differential measurement[7], [8].

For mechanistic and kinetic research, other methods, including cyclic voltammetry, are often favored over DPV. To the contrary, there are many references in the literature for DPV-based mechanistic and kinetic research. SMDE, DME, rotating electrode, stationary solid electrode, or any combination of these electrodes may be used for DPV. The pulse voltammetry software's DPV script offers mercury-drop generation, solution deaeration, and experiment sequencing that are appropriate for the majority of differential pulse voltammetry or polarography applications.Utilizing the Electrode Setup Panel, choose the electrode type. The DPS (differential pulse stripping) method of pulse voltammetry has additional sequencing stages appropriate for anodic (or cathodic) stripping. Use the DPS approach to automatically produce the single-mercury-drop generating signal at the start of the experiment if you want to run the DPV experiment on a hanging mercury drop (HMDE)[9], [10].

Scanning Electrochemical Microscopy

The local electrochemical activity of a sample in solution is measured using the scanning probe method known as scanning electrochemical microscopy (SECM). By measuring the Faradaic current of a redox mediator that interacts with the sample, the most popular SECM technique, known as feedback mode, produces an intrinsic chemical selectivity. Based on prior research showing that electroactive species may be detected by a microelectrode held

inside their diffusion layer, A. J. Bard first proposed SECM in 1989. Using this study as a foundation, it was shown that the signal detected by a probe biased to interact with a redox mediator in solution was changed when in close proximity to the sample, even though the sample was not biased. This effect was also seen when the sample was an insulator. Additionally, the spacing between the probe and the sample affects the signal that SECM measures. This phenomenon is used by scanning electrochemical microscopy to map a sample's topography as well as its electrochemical activity.

Since its debut and subsequent commercialization, SECM has developed into the most widely used method of scanning probe electrochemistry. With the advent of Alternating Current (ac)-SECM and other constant distance SECM modes, the versatility provided by the Direct Current (dc)-SECM form, which was first offered, has only been enhanced. While the feedback mode, in which just the probe is biased, is the simplest SECM type, it is the only one that will be covered in this article. More information on the other SECM kinds can be found in a prior Learning Center post we wrote on the other SECM types.

SECM Imaging

In Scanning Electrochemical Microscopy an Ultramicroelectrode (UME) probe, biased at a known potential, is held near to a sample to measure the Faradaic current due to an electrochemically active species, the redox mediator, diffusing in the gap and being reduced or oxidized at the UME. The Faradaic current measured reflects the electrochemical activity of the sample. In the simplest form of SECM, feedback mode, the sample is left unbiased at Open Circuit Potential (OCP). The UME probe of SECM is a key working principle of the technique. In SECM a diameter of 25 μ m or smaller is typically used. When an UME is used hemispherical diffusion to the electrode occurs, and the steady state current measured at the probe in bulk electrolyte is determined by the diffusion of the redox species to the UME probe.

Surface Reactivity in Imaging

The classifications of conductive and insulating samples as stated above really refer to limiting circumstances and imply that the rate of electron transport at the sample surface is either very rapid (diffusion regulated) or practically nil, respectively. However, intermediate electron transfer (ET) rates are also conceivable. The SECM experiment is thus schematically shown for three alternative scenarios:

- (a) steady-state diffusion to the tip distant from substrate;
- (b) tip is near a conductive substrate (positive feedback); and
- (c) tip is near an insulating substrate (negative feedback).

Standard kinetic models may be used to estimate the rate constant of the reaction, k, at the substrate surface when the feedback current has a value that is between two extremes.

Examining electrode surfaces is one area of interest since the composition of the electrode material often affects the pace of an electron transfer process. For instance, the typical heterogeneous rate constant for the oxidation of Fe^{2+} to Fe^{3+} on Pt or Au is rather fast, whereas it is very sluggish on carbon. Either feedback mode or tip-generation substrate collection (TG/ SC) mode might be used for SECM imaging. The first technique takes use of the SECM feedback current's sensitivity to substrate mediator turnover rate, while the second is used to analyze systems with irreversible reactions.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, electroanalytical methods have established themselves as crucial instruments in the field of nanomaterials research. By combining nanotechnology with electroanalysis, scientists and researchers may now explore the intriguing world of nanomaterials, learn about their special characteristics, and use them in a variety of ways.Because of the flexibility of electroanalytical methods like cyclic voltammetry and electrochemical impedance spectroscopy, the electrochemical behavior of nanomaterials may be precisely characterized, revealing important details about their structural and chemical characteristics. Additionally, the creation of nanoelectrodes and electrodes based on nanoparticles has improved the sensitivity and specificity of these methods, allowing for the study of nanomaterials to previously unheard-of levels of detail.

REFERENCES:

- [1] N. J. Ronkainen, "Laboratory Experiments and Undergraduate Research Projects Incorporating Electroanalytical Techniques at Benedictine University," *ECS Meet. Abstr.*, 2015.
- [2] S. Chatterjee, "Effortless Devising and Theranostic Applications of Nanomaterial Modified Biosensors: An Expanding Horizon," *ECS Meet. Abstr.*, 2018.
- [3] I. Palchetti and M. Mascini, "Electroanalytical biosensors and their potential for food pathogen and toxin detection," *Anal. Bioanal. Chem.*, 2008.
- [4] N. Thapliyal, T. E. Chiwunze, R. Karpoormath, R. N. Goyal, H. Patel, and S. Cherukupalli, "Research progress in electroanalytical techniques for determination of antimalarial drugs in pharmaceutical and biological samples," *RSC Advances*. 2016.
- [5] R. Sandulescu, M. Tertis, C. Cristea, and E. Bodoki, "New Materials for the Construction of Electrochemical Biosensors," in *Biosensors Micro and Nanoscale Applications*, 2015.
- [6] A. K. Srivastava, S. S. Upadhyay, C. R. Rawool, N. S. Punde, and A. S. Rajpurohit, "Voltammetric Techniques for the Analysis of Drugs using Nanomaterials based Chemically Modified Electrodes," *Curr. Anal. Chem.*, 2018.

- [7] Rangeetha. S, Rilvana Fathima. B, Sanjana. R, and Nivetha Rajam. S, "Arduino based Smart Walking Stick for Visually Impaired to Identify Bus Route," *Int. J. Eng. Res.*, 2016.
- [8] M. Sankararao and J. Mathiyarasu, "Mediator-Less Catalytic Oxidation of NADH Using Oxygen Plasma Treated Screen Printed Carbon Electrodes," *ECS Meet. Abstr.*, 2015.
- [9] K. Sipa, M. Brycht, A. Leniart, A. Nosal-Wiercińska, and S. Skrzypek, "Improved electroanalytical characteristics for the determination of pesticide metobromuron in the presence of nanomaterials," *Anal. Chim. Acta*, 2018.
- [10] A. Oltean *et al.*, "Cereal Straw Production," *Cereal Straw as a Resour. Sustain. Biomater. Biofuels*, 2016.

CHAPTER 8 INSTRUMENTATION FOR RAMAN SCATTERING AND APPLICATION

Amit Kumar Gangwar, Assistant Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- amitkumargangwar852@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

As a potent analytical instrument that provides distinctive insights into the vibrational and structural properties of materials, Raman scattering spectroscopy has developed throughout time. The Raman spectroscopy equipment and its many applications in a range of scientific fields are thoroughly examined in this study. The basic concepts of Raman scattering are first explained, along with how incoming photons interact with molecule vibrations to produce Raman scattered light. It emphasizes the importance of energy changes in Raman spectra, which may disclose details about molecular structure and chemical interactions.

KEYWORDS:

Bandpass Filter, Confocal Microscopy, Excitation Laser, Fourier-Transform Raman Spectroscopy (FT-Raman), Micro-Raman Spectroscopy.

INTRODUCTION

One of the most crucial factors in comprehending the world around us is the interaction of light with matter. A strong tool to extract new information from materials, particularly at the nanoscale, is light in general and laser light in particular. One such interaction between light and matter, known as laser Raman scattering, may accurately disclose fascinating features of substances like molecules and materials. This approach has developed through time into one of the most important ways to characterize nanomaterials and has turned into an essential tool for today's nanoscience and nanotechnology. This chapter teaches the fundamentals of Raman scattering and opens a door to further in-depth study[1], [2].

It is widely known throughout the history of science that the investigation of certain natural phenomena has served as the impetus for the growth of new fields of research. The example that follows is one of such. Sir C.V. Raman was researching the diffraction and molecular light scattering phenomena in 1919, particularly as they related to liquids. An intriguing experiment that included shining a beam of white light into a tank filled with a solution piqued his interest in this subject. This solution was then given more chemicals, which progressively turned it from a clear liquid into a turbid one. This resulted from the creation of particles that afterwards stayed suspended in the liquid. As the turbidity grew, the transmitted light's intensity naturally reduced until, at one point, the light was all but lost. It was interestingly discovered that as more time passed, not only did the transmitted light's strength

rise, but also its color changed with time, going from indigo to blue to blue-green to greenishyellow to white. Why did this take place?

A justification was required. Lord Rayleigh was able to explain the early drop in transmitted light strength, but he was stumped by the subsequent unusual apparition of colors. This might be explained by Raman. He first thought about how the light wave is diffracted by the individual particles, and then how the many diffracted waves combine to create an overall impact, either constructively or destructively. There was one more fascinating scenario: What if the diffraction was caused by a molecule rather than a suspended particle? Raman made his first trip outside of India in 1921, and he was sailing back to his home country. He was mesmerized by the Mediterranean's rich blue hue and started to ponder why the water is blue. The much-admired dark blue of the deep sea has nothing to do with the color of water, but is merely the blue of the sky seen in reflection, according to Lord Rayleigh, who had correctly explained the blue color of the sky. Lord Rayleigh's answer was, in essence, that the water looks blue because it is only reflecting the sky's color. Raman conducted a thorough investigation after being unsatisfied with this explanation. His findings showed the following:

The blue color of the sea is caused by this molecular scattering, just as the blue of the sky is. Light may be dispersed by water molecules just like it can by air molecules. "In this phenomenon, as in the parallel case of the color of the sky, molecular diffraction determines the observed luminosity and in great measure also its color," Raman said in his seminal article on the molecular scattering of light. Raman was able to demonstrate that the sea appears blue because water molecules deflect light similarly to air molecules. This was a significant finding that not only refuted Lord Rayleigh's theory but also had additional ramifications for our knowledge of how light interacts with molecules, particularly in the setting of the Raman effect[3], [4].

DISCUSSION

Elastic and inelastic light scattering concepts

When photons interact with matter, two fundamental processes take place that provide important insights into the characteristics and actions of tiny particles. These processes are elastic and inelastic light scattering. Rayleigh scattering, also name for elastic light scattering, is the process by which photons interact with molecules or particles without altering their energy or wavelength. Shorter light wavelengths, like blue and violet, are dispersed more effectively by the molecules in the Earth's atmosphere, which results in the blue hue of the sky. When the energy of the incident photon is conserved that is, when the scattered photon has the same energy, frequency, and wavelength as the input photon elastic scattering takes place. The dispersed photons preserve their phase connection with the incident photons since it is a coherent process. Elastic light scattering has been used for the characterisation of aerosols, the investigation of particle size, and the creation of laser-based diagnostic methods.

A change in the energy, wavelength, or frequency of the scattered photons occurs as a consequence of interactions between photons and particles or molecules, as opposed to elastic scattering. This is known as inelastic light scattering. There are two typical forms of inelastic light scattering: Raman scattering and Brillouin scattering. Raman scattering happens when

there is a difference in energy between the scattered photon and the incident photon as a result of the exchange of energy with the vibrational or rotational modes of the material. This method is widely utilized in molecular structure research, materials characterization, and chemical analysis. On the other hand, Brillouin scattering includes the scattering of photons by acoustic phonons in a material, resulting in a change in the frequency of the scattered light that is connected to the mechanical characteristics of the material, such as sound velocity and elasticity. Brillouin scattering is used in many disciplines, including as solid-state physics and material science[5], [6].

In summary, elastic light scattering is the scattering of photons with no change in energy or wavelength, while inelastic light scattering is the scattering of photons with interactions that cause an energy, wavelength, or frequency change. Science and technology offer many uses for both elastic and inelastic light scattering methods, allowing us to learn important things about the characteristics and behavior of materials at the microscopic level.

Scattering by Raman

Analytical chemistry and materials science use the potent method of Raman scattering, sometimes referred to as Raman spectroscopy, to look into the vibrational and rotational modes of molecules. This phenomenon, which bears Sir C.V. Raman's name, happens when light interacts with materials and suffers an energy shift as a result of the inelastic scattering of photons. Raman spectroscopy is a crucial instrument in many fields of science since it offers useful data on molecular structures, chemical compositions, and even crystallography. Raman scattering works on a simple underlying idea. Most incoming photons are elastically dispersed when a monochromatic light source, usually a laser, lights a sample, meaning they keep their original energy and wavelength. The vibrational and rotational modes of the sample interact with a tiny portion of the scattered photons, changing their energy. These energy variations may be seen and evaluated since they are indicative of the molecular structure of the material[7], [8].

Raman spectroscopy uses the frequency shift between incoming and scattered light to calculate the energy changes brought on by molecular vibrations. The Raman shift is this change, and the letter v stands in for it. The Raman spectrum, which is a plot of intensity versus Raman shift, allows researchers to pinpoint individual chemical bonds and functional groups as well as calculate the relative amounts of various chemicals in a sample. Raman spectroscopy is useful for a variety of scientific and commercial applications since it is nondestructive and may be used on solids, liquids, and gases. The Raman effect is very useful in the domains of biology, chemistry, materials science, and pharmaceuticals because it reveals a plethora of information on molecular dynamics and interactions. Raman spectroscopy is used in pharmaceutical research for medication development, quality assurance, and investigating drug-protein interactions. It helps characterize and comprehend the characteristics of materials including semiconductors, nanomaterials, and polymers in materials science. Raman spectroscopy is a tool used by biologists to examine biological molecules and study cellular components. In conclusion, Raman spectroscopy, also known as Raman scattering, is a crucial instrument in the scientific community that allows researchers to examine the rotational and vibrational modes of molecules and learn more about their

structures. Its adaptability and non-destructive nature make it a vital technology in a variety of scientific and industrial applications, advancing a number of academic disciplines[9], [10].

Spectroscopy Raman Scattering Equipment

Significant advancements in Raman spectroscopy instrumentation have been made recently as a consequence of improvements in optical instrumentation technology. Modern Raman microscopes are good in characterizing molecules and materials. Here, we'll talk about a few key components of a conventional Raman microscopy setup. A schematic of a typical, upright Raman microscopy apparatus is shown in Figure 1. A band pass filter allows Raman excitation light from a solid-state laser or gas laser to pass through before entering the input port of an upright microscope. A dichroic mirror is used to direct the laser beam towards the sample. With the help of a high numerical aperture objective lens, the incoming light is sharply focused on the sample. An objective lens serves two purposes: to incident laser light and to gather backscattered light.

Different objective lenses are employed depending on the kind of sample. A high numerical aperture, dry objective lens works best for solid, dry materials like single crystals, powders, substrates, etc., whereas a water-immersion objective lens works best for watery samples like nanoparticle solutions, biological cells, etc. It should be noted that the kind of objective lens being employed has a major impact on the collecting efficiency of Raman scattering. After that, an edge filter located at the microscope's output port filters the backscattered light the objective lens has captured. An edge filter's function is to exclude the strong Rayleigh scattered light from the gathered signal. A notch filter enables both the Stokes and anti-Stokes components of the scattered light, while edge filters only permit the Stokes component of the Raman spectrum. Now, an optical fiber (F) is the object of the focussed filtered light.



Figure 1: Schematic of a micro-Raman system built using a simple viewing microscope with an epi-fluorescent attachment [springer].

The Raman spectrograph's f-number is matched to the optical fiber's opposite end. The spectrograph features a turret that carries three gratings for various measurements and an adjustable slit that is computer-controlled. Various gratings and slit widths are used based on the requirements of spectral resolution. The majority of Raman spectrographs use one of three types of gratings, each having 600, 1200, or 1800 grooves per millimeter. The spectral resolution will be higher with more groves, but the throughput will be lower. The CCD camera receives the collected light at this point, and it transforms it into electrical signals for further processing. The concentrated laser spot may be registered using a digital camera mounted on top of the microscope, which also records video in addition to optical images. Samples are placed on a computer-controlled X-Y-Z translational stage, and signal is captured along the sample's X, Y, and Z axes to conduct Raman mapping. To rebuild a spatially resolved Raman map, the translational stage also coordinates with the CCD camera[11].

For characterizing and studying a broad range of materials, Raman spectroscopy is often utilized in materials research. Here are some instances of its uses in detail:

- 1. Analysis of Graphene and Carbon Nanotubes: Raman spectroscopy is essential for understanding Graphene and Carbon Nanotubes. It may provide details on these materials' chirality, structural flaws, and quality, all of which are important for their use in nanotechnology and electronics.
- 2. Pharmaceuticals and medication Formulation: Raman spectroscopy is utilized in pharmaceutical research to evaluate medication formulations. It aids in the identification and quantification of various pharmaceutical product components, guaranteeing quality control and uniformity in medication production.
- 3. Raman spectroscopy is used to analyze polymers and polymer composites. Polymer Characterization. It has the ability to ascertain the conformation of polymer chains, spot additives or contaminants, and track polymer aging and degradation—all crucial capabilities for materials used in the packaging and automotive sectors, among others.
- 4. Raman spectroscopy is used to evaluate semiconductor materials and apparatus. It helps in the characterisation of semiconductor structures and the creation of cutting-edge electronic components by detecting lattice vibrations and strain in semiconductors.
- 5. Raman spectroscopy is useful for detecting and researching crystals and minerals in crystallography. Geologists and mineralogists may use it to make distinctions between various mineral phases, spot impurities, and evaluate the crystal quality.
- 6. Raman spectroscopy is used by scientists to examine thin films and coatings that are used in optical, electrical, or protective applications. Understanding film thickness, composition, and structural integrity is a benefit since these factors are essential to sectors like optics and electronics.

- 7. Nanoparticles and nanomaterials are both very difficult to characterize, however Raman spectroscopy is quite useful in this regard. For nanotechnology applications, it may provide information on the size, shape, and surface chemistry of nanoparticles.
- 8. Raman spectroscopy may be used to investigate corrosion byproducts and surface coatings on metals. It assists in comprehending the causes of corrosion, locating corrosion-resistant coatings, and assessing their effectiveness in varied conditions.
- 9. Raman spectroscopy is used in the characterisation of catalysts used in chemical reactions. It may contribute to the creation of more effective catalytic systems by offering knowledge about the structure, active sites, and catalytic processes of catalysts.
- 10. Analysis of Biomaterials and Tissues Raman spectroscopy is used to examine biological tissues and biomaterials. It is an important technique in biomedical research since it may be used to analyze cell and tissue architecture, identify particular biomolecules, and diagnose illnesses using spectroscopic signatures.

These examples demonstrate the adaptability of Raman spectroscopy in materials science, where it is used in a variety of fields and businesses to learn more about the make-up, structure, and characteristics of different materials, from bulk materials to nanoscale structures.

Inorganic and organic nanomaterials' Raman Spectroscopy

Phonons, quantized lattice vibrations that are crucial for understanding the electrical and structural characteristics of solid nanomaterials. Many of the optically active and richly band-structured phonon modes of vibration in materials may be successfully detected using infrared and Raman spectroscopy. Raman spectroscopy is often used as the optical characterisation method to examine inorganic and organic substances because, unlike infrared spectroscopy, ordinary lasers are used as the Raman excitation source. Raman spectroscopy has helped solid-state physics and chemistry comprehend several crucial condensed matter features throughout the years. Raman spectroscopy is used to examine a wide range of inorganic semiconductors, including Si, Ge, GaAs, GaP, InP, and many more. It is also used to examine superconductors, magnetic materials, plasmonic materials, thermoelectric materials, and many other types of materials.

Polyacetylene, polyalinine, polythiophene, etc., as well as other heterocyclic chemical compounds, have all been successfully probed using it. In light of several applications, including bio labels, phosphors, and light-emitting diodes, substantial research has been done on the optical and vibrational characteristics of II-VI compound semiconductor nanoparticles (NPs). A rising need for bio-applications also encourages the synthesis of inexpensive NPs. Studies of the vibrational characteristics of nanostructured materials aim at a deeper knowledge of the underlying physical characteristics of severely confined electrons and phonons in addition to the application objective. Numerous Raman investigations of semiconducting NPs found that phonon confinement-induced lowering of the NP diameter d resulted in a redshift of the fundamental vibrational (LO) mode.

Due to the different thermal expansion coefficients of glass and NP material, the influence of the matrix has also been seen in a blue shift of the LO peak, with the degree of the shift depending on the NP size and type of glass. Additionally, it was shown that NPs with thin lattice-mismatched semiconductor or organic molecule shells on top, as well as free-standing NPs, all exhibit observable stress. In order to better understand the optical and electrical characteristics of semiconductor nanostructures with significant confinement of electrons and phonons, it is crucial to investigate electron-phonon coupling (EPC) using Raman spectroscopy. Even though II-VI and other semiconductor nanostructures have been the subject of several theoretical and practical research, there are still differences about how the EPC strength varies with NP size. The 'preparation history' of the materials and the NP environment at the time of the Raman observations are two potential causes of these inconsistencies.

Emerging Techniques in Raman Scattering Over the past few years, Raman spectroscopy has advanced significantly as a characterisation tool due to rapid instrumentation advancements and the availability of theoretical techniques for the precise calculation of the Raman spectrum, greatly facilitating the interpretation of Raman data. Recent studies on Raman spectroscopy have shown that it is widely used in the following fields:

- 1. the arts and archaeology
- 2. Biosciences
- 3. Analytical chemistry and vibrational studies,
- 4. solid state physics (materials like minerals, crystals, glasses, and ceramics),
- 5. liquids and their interactions,
- 6. Nanomaterials, such as nanotubes and nanoparticles
- 7. a variety of phase transitions, including liquid crystal transitions Resonant Raman scattering,
- 8. pharmacological research,
- 9. the physics and chemistry of high pressure,
- 10. forensic science, etc.

To efficiently use this technology, several linear and non-linear techniques in Raman scattering have been devised. Some of these include coherent anti-Stokes Raman scattering (CARS), stimulated Raman scattering, hyper-Raman scattering, inverse Raman scattering, photo-acoustic Raman scattering, high-pressure Raman scattering, and surface-enhanced

Raman scattering (SERS), among others. Here, we'll go through the fundamental ideas and uses of these strategies.

CONCLUSION

According to the development of science, the study of the relationship between light and matter has produced many important findings, including the photoelectric effect, Comton effect, Raman effect, etc., as well as innovations, including lasers, radars, global positioning systems (GPS), etc. The intricate structure of the interplay between light and matter has revealed new occurrences in nature. In order to adapt and develop, both plants and animals utilise the laws of light scattering. This provides more incentive to research light scattering. According to a prospective perspective, light scattering techniques like Raman and Brillouin scattering offer enormous promise in a number of scientific and technical fields. It is an essential tool for analytical applications in addition to being a high-end optical instrumentation approach. Condensed matter light scattering still faces many problems that need to be investigated, and the development of nanotechnology offers another excellent chance to use these techniques. Thus, it is clear how the Raman effect was discovered as a result of observations of natural phenomena like the sky's and the sea's blue hues. What began as a puzzling finding has evolved into one of the analytical sciences' most potent features. New inquiries have resulted, and new applications have developed as a result.

REFERENCES:

- [1] R. Li, X. Wang, Y. Zhou, H. Zong, M. Chen, and M. Sun, "Advances in nonlinear optical microscopy for biophotonics," *J. Nanophotonics*, 2018.
- [2] L. Wei et al., "Super-multiplex vibrational imaging," Nature, 2017.
- [3] Z. Meng, G. I. Petrov, and V. V. Yakovlev, "Pure electrical, highly-efficient and sidelobe free coherent Raman spectroscopy using acousto-optics tunable filter (AOTF)," *Sci. Rep.*, 2016.
- [4] S. Laing, L. E. Jamieson, K. Faulds, and D. Graham, "Surface-enhanced Raman spectroscopy for in vivo biosensing," *Nature Reviews Chemistry*. 2017.
- [5] A. Ehn, J. Zhu, X. Li, and J. Kiefer, "Advanced laser-based techniques for gas-phase diagnostics in combustion and aerospace engineering," *Applied Spectroscopy*. 2017.
- [6] C. Krafft, I. W. Schie, T. Meyer, M. Schmitt, and J. Popp, "Developments in spontaneous and coherent Raman scattering microscopic imaging for biomedical applications," *Chemical Society Reviews*. 2016.
- [7] G. W. Auner *et al.*, "Applications of Raman spectroscopy in cancer diagnosis," *Cancer Metastasis Rev.*, 2018.

- [8] A. Paudel, D. Raijada, and J. Rantanen, "Raman spectroscopy in pharmaceutical product design," *Advanced Drug Delivery Reviews*. 2015.
- [9] Y. S. Li and J. S. Church, "Raman spectroscopy in the analysis of food and pharmaceutical nanomaterials," *Journal of Food and Drug Analysis*. 2014.
- [10] N. Djaker, P. F. Lenne, D. Marguet, A. Colonna, C. Hadjur, and H. Rigneault, "Coherent anti-Stokes Raman scattering microscopy (CARS): Instrumentation and applications," *Nucl. Instruments Methods Phys. Res. Sect. A Accel. Spectrometers, Detect. Assoc. Equip.*, 2007.
- [11] J. X. Cheng and X. S. Xie, "Coherent anti-Stokes Raman scattering microscopy: Instrumentation, theory, and applications," *J. Phys. Chem. B*, 2004.

CHAPTER 9 ADVANCED TOOLS OF MASS SPECTROMETRY RELEVANT TO NANOSCALE MATERIALS

Parag Agarwal, Associate Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- paragagarwak.2008@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

In the field of studying nanoscale materials, mass spectrometry (MS) has emerged as an essential analytical method. This study offers a thorough review of the cutting-edge mass spectrometry methods and techniques that are crucial for the characterisation and evaluation of nanoscale materials. The first section of the article explains the underlying ideas behind mass spectrometry, with special emphasis on the processes of ionization and mass analysis that form the basis of this method. The discussion then moves on to the state-of-the-art equipment and methods that have elevated mass spectrometry to the top of the nanomaterials research food chain.

KEYWORDS:

Nanoparticles Analysis, Proteomics, Tandem Mass Spectrometry (MS/MS), Top-Down Proteomics.

INTRODUCTION

One of the most delicate analytical methods for characterizing molecular compounds is mass spectrometry. Although it has long been a crucial approach for understanding the structures of organic molecules, advancements over the past 20 years or so have allowed it to be used to any kind of material, including organic, inorganic, biological, and environmental materials. Mass spectrometry has become more versatile at this time, being able to analyze anything from basic molecules to intricate macromolecules and proteins. The development of soft ionization techniques, which enable it to desorb and ionize practically any substance intact, has made all of these possibilities conceivable. Electrospray ionization and matrix aided laser desorption ionization, both of which create molecular ions from any kind of molecule, are two methods that are useful in this respect[1], [2].

These methods will be covered later in this chapter. In the past, gaseous molecules or atoms were introduced into a vacuum system and ionized by high energy electrons on the order of 100 eV to perform mass spectrometry. This ionization is difficult because it creates ions in an internally excited state with sufficient internal energy to break up into smaller molecule ions. As a consequence, the entire molecule ion is often not visible. This is a significant issue with material characterization. In these circumstances, soft ionization methods are quite helpful. The mass analyzers, which are often magnetic sectors, quadrupoles, ion traps, or time of flight analyzers, collect and separate the ions, which are normally positive in charge, and then

a conversion dynode-electron multiplier detection system detects them. Only those species that can be evaporated or added to a vacuum chamber are suitable for this kind of mass spectrometry[3], [4].

DISCUSSION

For a range of molecules, such as organometallic compounds, metal complexes, or big biomolecules that do not evaporate intact, this is not feasible. They often break down during the evaporation process. There are several more situations in which the molecule being studied is present on the surface as a sub-monolayer and is present at very low concentrations. Additionally, soft ionization techniques are advantageous for nanoscale entities made of delicate species, such biomolecules. Quantum clusters, which are a more modern family of similar materials, will be discussed in a later portion of the book. Since they are sub-nanometer in size and only contain a few metal atoms, these materials are too tiny to be seen using the standard electron microscopy instruments covered in this book. The finest technique is mass spectrometry to comprehend the cluster's chemical make-up. As with any conventional catalysis, mass spectrometry, are heavily used in the investigation of nanomaterials-based catalysis[5], [6].

Mass spectrometry of secondary ions

High energy ions may be employed in a variety of applications in addition to being analyzed in mass spectrometry. Focused ion beam lithography and secondary ion mass spectrometry are two popular ion-based methods. Today, structures in the sub-10 nm realm may be produced via ion lithography. No other method can get chemically specific, isotopically resolved elemental information at a spatial resolution of 50 nm as well as secondary ion mass spectrometry in the spatially resolved mode. Nanometer thin films produced on surfaces may be analyzed with isotope specificity since ion ejection is particularly surface-sensitive and surface damage can be relatively minimal. At trace levels, this analysis may be quantitatively performed.

These characteristics highlight the significance of SIMS imaging. When using SIMS, one is interested in the mass spectrometry of primary particles that have been ionized as a consequence of contact with a surface. The fundamental particles may be electrons, ions, neutrals, or photons, and the surface may be liquid or solid. Electrons, neutral or ionic atoms or molecules, and neutral or ionic clusters are the secondary particles released from a surface. Because the neutrals ejected are often post-ionized and subjected to mass analysis, as in sputtered neutral mass spectrometry, the main focus in SIMS is solely with the ions. Emission and ionization are separated, enabling quantitative elemental analysis. The majority of current uses are in dynamic SNMS, and lasers made this feasible. Sputtering is a secondary particle emission process.

Although most of them will be neutrals, some ions also emerge. These ions' mass analysis is done in a variety of ways, including magnetic sector-based techniques, time of flight techniques, and quadrupole techniques. Sir J.J. Thompson first saw the emission of positive ions from the surface of a discharge tube when primary ions collided with it in 1910, which is

when the idea for SIMS first emerged. Currently, the instruments' main parts are an ion cannon that produces ions or atoms with energies between 0.5 and 50 keV, ion optics that transmit the ions to a mass spectrometer, and a detector. Time of flight, quadrupole, or magnetic mass spectrometers are all options[7], [8].

In SIMS imaging, pictures are created using the mass spectral intensities that are gathered from a surface. The method's spatial resolution is based on the size of the sampled region. Therefore, either a highly concentrated ion beam or a highly focused collection of ions are required. The sample is traversed by a concentrated ion beam, and the spectra at each location are recorded. The lateral resolution of this technique, known as microprobe mode, is on the order of sub-micron levels. The other option is the direct mode, sometimes known as the microscope mode. In this case, ion lenses concurrently collect the ions from different spots on the sample, which are then measured on a position-sensitive detector. There is no rostering in the main ion beam. There are typically two methods used for SIMS imaging.

The dynamic and static modes are the two ways that SIMS is used. In the dynamic mode, where there is a high rate of material removal and a large primary ion flux. This causes a new surface to constantly be exposed to the main beam. However, only a small portion of the surface is sampled in static SIMS. Surface damage is negligible as a result. Because high-quality data gathering is required, time-of-flight-based approaches are often the analyzer utilized in static SIMS. Thus, TOF SIMS is another name for static SIMS. Quadrupole and magnetic sector analyzers are used in the dynamic SIMS.

A lateral resolution of 50 nm can be acquired by imaging SIMS using the most recent instrumentation advancements. Intriguing topics to investigate include the selective accumulation of ions in catalysis, integration of certain molecules in cell structures, separation of ions at grain boundaries, etc. The application domains include metallurgy, heterogeneous catalysis, biology, and others. Many of the cell organelles are visible for high-quality chemical imaging at sub-100 nm resolution. When an ion or atom bombards a surface, the energy of the main projectile is transmitted using a method akin to a billiard ball. The target atoms then collide many times, with some of these collisions returning to the surface and ejecting atoms and clusters, some of which get ionized in the process. The ionization and sputtering occurring simultaneously is the main worry in SIMS quantification. As a result, calibration is a crucial component of quantification. Continuous particle bombardment alters the surface, therefore low dosages are required for accurate surface characterization.

Nanoscience-Related Mass Spectrometric Methods of Interest

Using the ²⁵²Cf fission fragments to generate sputtering, similar to plasma desorption mass spectrometry, is another way to do SIMS. These pieces hit with the back of a thin foil coated with the analyte at a MeV energy, ejecting molecular ions with high masses. To accomplish the same goal, ¹²⁷I+ high-energy ions from a tandem accelerator have also been employed. Neutral atoms with high energy are further employed for sputtering. Fast atom bombardment mass spectrometry, often known as this kind of mass spectrometry, is typically used for organic analytes with suitable matrices. The analyte species undergoes gentle ionization as a consequence. Soft ionization means ion formation with lower internal energy, which results in lesser fragmentation.

Since clusters are more easily fragmented after ejection to the gas phase and are confined by lower energies, soft approaches are crucial for cluster investigations. Soft ionization techniques are crucial for analyzing nanoparticles using mass spectrometry, which is a prominent technique nowadays. Another gentle approach for desorption ionisation is laser desorption. Modern methods for doing this include matrix aided laser desorption mass spectrometry, which desorbs the analyte using a low power UV laser. In order to achieve a low analyte concentration, the analyte is combined with a matrix. The mass analysis is often done using the time of flight technique since laser is pulsed, which may offer a start time for data collection and ions need to be gathered at high efficiency[9], [10].

Additional advantage of time of flight analysis is that there is no mass limit for the analysis in theory and the approach is ideally suited for massive macromolecules. Particularly for the investigation of nano-bio conjugates, this technique is helpful. As an example, consider the comparison between the MALDI mass spectra of myoglobin and hemoglobin and Mb and Hb coated Au nanoparticles. It can be shown that the original proteins' mass spectra and those of the nanoparticle conjugates are identical. Here it is shown how effective the MALDI-MS spectra are in identifying proteins and other biomolecules on nanoparticle surfaces. The mass spectral studies might also be expanded in order to comprehend the chemistry and biology of proteins on nanoparticle surfaces.

The other soft ionization method is electrospray ionization mass spectrometry (ESI MS), which creates ions from a solution by spraying it in the form of tiny droplets in a strong electric field. The solution is electro sprayed after passing through a thin needle, and the ions that are created are often multiply charged. Due to their low m/z value, this enables the analysis of big molecules in low mass range devices. Both of these methods allow for high-resolution femtomole analysis and are quite sensitive. Today, ESI MS is a common method for the investigation of sub-nano clusters that are difficult to observe in TEM. Ions that have been ionized by electrospray are normally collected and ionized in an orthogonal geometry. In other words, the collection of ions often occurs at a 90° angle to the spray axis.

With a pump inlet positioned just under the spray, it is now feasible to collect ions without using a significant amount of solvent molecules. This enables significantly more effective solvent collection at a lower cost of pumping. This geometry is ineffective, nevertheless, in gathering organisms with large molecular masses. As a consequence, a number of newly found gold clusters cannot be effectively gathered by orthogonal mass spectrometers. Unfortunately, orthogonal devices make up the majority of mass spectrometers produced today. Despite this, several clusters have been examined using tools from the business world. In a subsequent chapter, a number of ESI MS and MALDI MS cluster examples will be provided. In the author's laboratory, the components of complete clusters formed in solutions from tens to hundreds of atoms have been identified.

Multiply charged species are created by electrospray, and in order to get singly charged ions, the spectra must be deconvoluted. The singly charged spectra are generated using various techniques. These all focus on a string of peaks in the mass spectrum at charges n, n+1, n+2, etc. The isotopic separations between peaks and the change in peak separation with charge change are factors that better algorithms constantly include. Using this knowledge, peaks that may be attributed to species with multiple charges are isolated. Similar to this, several series

of peaks belonging to different molecular species are seen. Additional work and knowledge of the ions' potential chemical structures are needed to link these peaks to particular ions.

FIB, or focused ion beam

Utilizing a liquid metal ion source, the focused ion beam (FIB) approach uses the interaction of high energy ions with the material to study or alter it. The sample is struck by the ion beam, resulting in collisions of elastic and inelastic nature. Atoms sputter as a result of elastic collisions, whereas secondary electrons and X-rays are produced by inelastic collisions. Moreover, ions are expelled. The surface may be imaged using the expelled ions and electrons. Applications for milling may be done using the ion beam itself. The ion beam may cause material deposition and be used to material repair applications when organometallic species are present. For TEM in particular, ion beam milling may be used to prepare samples. Ions move at a slower speed than electrons for a given amount of acceleration energy, but they have a larger momentum overall.

Their collision caused further sputtering as a result. Compared to electrons, ions have substantially less penetration depths. The particles are scanned on the surface to be analyzed in SEM and FIB. Imaging in FIB uses the secondary particles (ions and electrons). The Lorentz force, which is the force applied to a charged particle in an electromagnetic field, is smaller for the ions because they move at considerably lower speeds. The electric field of qE and the magnetic field of qv B both exert forces on the particle. F = q(E + v B), where E is the electric field, B is the magnetic field, q is the particle's charge, v is its instantaneous velocity, and is the cross product, together produce the Lorentz force. Ion milling is another use for FIB besides imaging.

Gas aided etching (GAE), a technique that involves introducing one of the halogen gases to the working surface and creating volatile species, may be used to produce selective sputtering. Deposition of specific atoms, such as Pt from a Pt precursor molecule in the presence of the ion, might result from the breakdown of an organometallic molecule that has already been deposited on the surface. Chemical vapor deposition (CVD) may be utilized to accomplish the following growth after the gas phase deposition technique is employed to nucleate specific growth at the surface. Ion implantation may also be carried out using FIB. The capabilities of FIB and SEM may be combined using an ion beam and an electron beam combination in addition to a single ion beam. This enables simultaneous lithography, imaging, and characterization. Numerous nanotechnology applications may be made with such a device.

It is well-known that water contact angles of 90° and $> 90^{\circ}$ might, respectively, indicate a surface's 'hydrophilicity' or 'hydrophobicity'. Superhydrophobic surfaces are very hydrophobic surfaces with water contact angles greater than 150 degrees. Chemical reactions and the creation of bonds via water are restricted on these superhydrophobic surfaces due to their limited water contact area. As a result, it is anticipated that several processes, including the adhesion of snow or raindrops, oxidation, and friction drag, would be hindered or decreased on such a surface. Surface roughness and low surface energy are both necessary for superhydrophilicity. This phenomenon is shown by nature in "lotus leaves," which are
thought to have a combined micro and nanoscale morphology on their surface and use the roll-off motion for self-cleaning of leaves.

In further detail, the lotus leaf's surface is patterned with micron-sized hills and valleys that are adorned with nanometer-sized fragments of a hydrophobic wax-like substance that stop water from penetrating the valleys. Super hydrophobicity results from the inability of water to moisten the surface and the formation of almost spherical water droplets. Due to the fundamental relevance of molecule level surface energy manipulation and subsequent implications in commercial applications ranging from self-cleaning window glasses, paints, and fabrics to low-friction surfaces, various strategies to develop artificial superhydrophobic surfaces (analogous to lotus leaf) have attracted significant attention in recent years. For uses like coatings for optical devices and photovoltaics, the superhydrophobic surface's antireflectivity is especially crucial. Various techniques have been used to create artificial superhydrophobic (hierarchical surfaces), including generating rough surfaces first, then modifying them with low surface energy molecules, or roughening the surface of hydrophobic materials by forming well-ordered structures using micromachining and etching.

Using this theory, a number of techniques, including as electrochemical deposition, plasma fluorination, sol-gel, UV irradiation, and others, have recently been suggested to produce superhydrophobic surfaces. It is generally known that a solid surface's wetting characteristic is determined by both its chemical makeup and geometric microstructure. A few techniques for creating superhydrophobic coatings on silica particles have also been reported, including layer-by-layer polyelectrolyte multilayer films and the Langmuir-Blodgett (LB) technique, which forms a thin film of silica particles on a substrate before forming an alkylsilane SAM to create hydrophobic surfaces. Better approaches are sought to increase the stability of these superhydrophobic films since existing processes are tiresome, complex, time-consuming, and difficult to manage precisely. Reproducible investigations need precise control of the temperature, relative humidity, and liquid vapour pressure since CA relies on the purity of the liquid, the temperature, as well as statistical mistakes in the actual measurement of CA. CA measurements should be performed in a vibration-free environment, ideally utilizing a sturdy table fitted with shock absorbers in addition to employing a drop of set volume and an accurate syringe, in order to minimize these reading mistakes. Working in an enclosed, insulated space with a tiny beaker filled with the liquid under investigation and nitrogen saturated in water can help accomplish this.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the development of mass spectrometry methods has greatly broadened the field of nanoscale materials research. These cutting-edge techniques have created a vital link between the macro and nano worlds, allowing scientists and researchers to solve the atomic and molecular riddles of materials. Mass spectrometry's extraordinary sensitivity, resolution, and adaptability have enabled scientists to study nanomaterials in unprecedented depth. New areas of materials science, chemistry, and biology have been made possible by the capacity to accurately measure elemental composition, isotopic patterns, and molecular structures. Mass spectrometry has proved beneficial in defining and comprehending the behavior of nanoscale objects, from the study of nanoparticles to the study of biomolecules and beyond.

REFERENCES:

- [1] K. Heister, C. Höschen, G. J. Pronk, C. W. Mueller, and I. Kögel-Knabner, "NanoSIMS as a tool for characterizing soil model compounds and organomineral associations in artificial soils," *J. Soils Sediments*, 2012.
- [2] J. F. Parker, C. A. Fields-Zinna, and R. W. Murray, "The story of a monodisperse gold nanoparticle: AU251 18," *Acc. Chem. Res.*, 2010.
- [3] S. Rauschenbach, M. Ternes, L. Harnau, and K. Kern, "Mass Spectrometry as a Preparative Tool for the Surface Science of Large Molecules," *Annu. Rev. Anal. Chem.*, 2016.
- [4] S. Bessette *et al.*, "Nanoscale Lithium Quantification in LiXNiyCowMnZO2 as Cathode for Rechargeable Batteries," *Sci. Rep.*, 2018.
- [5] S. Lin *et al.*, "Understanding the transformation, speciation, and hazard potential of copper particles in a model septic tank system using zebrafish to monitor the effluent," *ACS Nano*, 2015.
- [6] S. Samavat *et al.*, "Diagnostic urinary proteome profile for immunoglobulin a nephropathy," *Iran. J. Kidney Dis.*, 2015.
- [7] D. Chandra, N. Mukherjee, A. Mondal, and A. Bhaumik, "Design and synthesis of nanostructured porous SnO2 with high surface areas and their optical and dielectric properties," *J. Phys. Chem. C*, 2008.
- [8] S. S. Hinman, C. Y. Chen, J. Duan, and Q. Cheng, "Calcinated gold nanoparticle arrays for on-chip, multiplexed and matrix-free mass spectrometric analysis of peptides and small molecules," *Nanoscale*, 2016.
- [9] S. Lorscheidt and A. Lamprecht, "Safety assessment of nanoparticles for drug delivery by means of classic in vitro assays and beyond," *Expert Opinion on Drug Delivery*. 2016.
- [10] D. Gao, X. Huang, and Y. Tao, "A critical review of NanoSIMS in analysis of microbial metabolic activities at single-cell level," *Critical Reviews in Biotechnology*. 2016.

CHAPTER 10 SYNTHESIS OF NANOMATERIALS: GENERAL ISSUES OF CONCERN

Ajay Kumar Upadhyay, Associate Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- ajay_kup@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

The creation of nanomaterials is at the forefront of technical and scientific advancement, offering a broad range of applications in a variety of fields. However, a number of broad causes for worry have surfaced in this developing profession. This article gives a broad overview of these important issues, illuminating the difficulties and factors that researchers must take into account while creating nanomaterials. The crucial topic of nanoparticle size and its exact control is covered first in the debate. As the size of nanomaterials directly affects their characteristics and capabilities, achieving consistency in size is crucial. In order to achieve the appropriate nanoparticle size and shape, the research examines alternative synthesis techniques, highlighting the necessity for rigorous control over reaction conditions, temperature, and chemical precursors.

KEYWORDS:

Biocompatibility, Chemical Precursors, Contamination, Crystallinity, Dispersion.

INTRODUCTION

Different processes are used to create nanomaterials. There are techniques that begin with bulk materials and techniques that begin with atoms. While chemical processes begin with atoms, physical approaches utilise bulk materials. In the latter, atomic accuracy in size purity may be obtained, but strict control of size is challenging in the former. Chemical approaches are chosen for form control. Only a few techniques, maybe even just one, are accessible in some circumstances. The flexibility of the synthetic material in terms of redispersibility, thermal and chemical stability, monodispersity, etc. affects the approach that is chosen. The synthesis of a wide range of nanomaterials is the topic of this chapter. Nanoparticles, including spherical and various forms, nanotubes, and nanomolecules, make up the materials that are created. They must be synthesized using a variety of techniques, and these processes must be improved so that the materials produced may have a wide range of chemical compositions and have their physical characteristics easily changed. If acceptable applications are discovered, the synthetic processes should, at least in some circumstances, be flexible enough to be developed in order to allow for commercial exploitation. We'll concentrate on a few of the most popular techniques for the most typical types of materials in this presentation[1], [2].

The less common ways, such as materials created in porous media, such zeolites, embedded particles in glasses, etc., will be mentioned. However, I'll keep this conversation quick. Physical and chemical approaches may be used to categorize synthesis procedures broadly speaking. Physically, the method entails taking the bulk material or component materials from which nanomaterials are derived and producing the conditions necessary for their formation. These synthesis techniques are referred to as top-down procedures since they begin with bulk materials. In each of them, the environment that evaporation occurs in may be managed. For instance, metals may evaporate in an oxygen-rich environment, resulting in the production of oxides. The processes may produce a lot of materials quickly and efficiently. The approaches' biggest flaw, however, is that they result in a wide range of particle sizes. A variety of strategies are utilized in chemical processes, which we will be detailing in more depth in the next sections. Nanomaterials are created in each of these processes beginning with atoms. Nanomaterials are constructed from assembled atoms, which are often produced from ions in liquids. These techniques are sometimes known as "bottom-up approaches" since the assembly starts with the atoms[3], [4].

DISCUSSION

Atoms make up nanoparticles just as they do in every other system. In general, a dispersed phase in a dispersion medium may be used to categorize a two-phase colloidal system. Except for the fact that the first category, i.e., gas in gas, is unknown, the dispersed phase and the dispersion medium may both be one of the three phases, namely, gas, liquid, or solid. As a result, a solid nanoparticle distributed in an amorphous solid may be thought of as a colloidal system, and as a result, as a nanofluid. The word "nanofluid" describes how nanoparticles are dispersed in a fluid medium. Because we only examine liquids under normal pressure and temperature conditions, supercritical fluids and gases will not be taken into account while describing the dispersion phase[5], [6].

It should be mentioned that the production of nanoparticles in various media, namely solid matrices and supercritical fluids, is a significant and cutting-edge field of study. It's crucial to keep in mind from a historical standpoint that some of the first uses of nanoparticles used glass-encased particles. The study of supercritical fluids is a relatively new field in nanoparticle research. Colloids are the most popular name for these fluids. The resulting nanoparticles may take the shape of a solid or a liquid. These materials will often be used in the form of nanofluids, which are solutions or dispersions. They may also be employed as nanomaterials, which are powders. You may also utilize emulsions, pastes, particle films, and many more forms[7], [8].

Concerning Things in General

When evaluating a certain synthetic technique, there are numerous considerations to take into account. These might be classified as:

- 1. Thermal consistency
- 2. Dispersibility across several mediums

3. compatibility with chemicals and simplicity of surface manipulation

Below, each of these factors is briefly addressed. It should be noticed that some of them have close relationships with one another.

Thermal Constancy

Systems called nanoparticles are metastable. As a result, they will change into stable materials with global energy minima in the free energy spectrum. Nanoparticles exist at a greater energy than bulk materials when the free energy of the system is plotted for a fixed quantity of the material, yet a particular nanostructure may have a local minimum in relation to other structures. The magic numbers with these local minima in the limit of very tiny particles have peculiar structural and electrical stabilities. Clusters are the name given to these particles; they will be discussed in a later section. The total energy is much higher in isolated atoms and molecules than in the bulk. The energy in the regime of nanoparticles is intermediate between that of bulk materials and molecules/atoms. By using physical or chemical methods, it is possible to change one form into another. Nanoparticles may be thought of as "nanocluster molecules" in the lower size domain of less than 1 nm since they have distinctive structural characteristics. One of these clusters may be more stable than the other, and each of these clusters may contain isomeric structures. Large variations in attributes may exist across different constructions of the same size[9], [10].

Multiple structural forms are possible in the greater size regime, although it is challenging to tell them apart. On the basis of their electrical characteristics, distinctions may be identified when it comes to significant changes in geometry, such as in the case of nanoparticles and nanorods. In the case of a few metals and ceramics, synthetic manufacturing techniques may be used to create some of those structures. Nanoparticles would return to the bulk at any moment since they are metastable. The stability of Faraday's colloids, created in 1857, means that the time factor in numerous circumstances has little practical significance.1 The bulk metal is more stable, but this is similar to thinking about the stability of graphite in compared to diamond. Even if stored for a millennium, diamond, although being metastable, does not turn into graphite under normal pressure and temperature circumstances. Diamond to graphite conversion has an extremely sluggish kinetics, making it inconsequential under typical circumstances. "Kinetic stability" refers to the state of nanoparticles in suitable mediums, which is comparable[11].

Dispersability

A nanoparticle is made up of two parts: a thin "shell" that might be ionic, molecular, polymeric, ceramic, metallic, or metallic with a "core" that is often ceramic, metallic, or polymeric. Most often, we find a molecular shell around a ceramic or metallic core. The nanoparticle's qualities are primarily determined by its core, and its shell serves as a protective layer. When it comes to a variety of uses, including the particles' luminescence, the nature of the shell is often of utmost importance. Both the shell and the core could include several entities and have underlying structures. The chemical composition of a nanoparticle's shell determines how easily it may dissolve. The word "solubility" is incorrect since the resulting "solution" or fluid is really a dispersion that can be physically separated via

centrifugation. A homogenous combination of components in any phase that cannot be separated as seawater is referred to as a solution.

Due to certain atoms or groups, the molecular shell has a distinctive chemical affinity to the nanoparticle core. The metal at the surface of an oxide nanoparticle, for instance, may bond with an alkoxide. A Sulphur atom of the thiolate may bond with a metal nanoparticle, such as gold, in this situation. A protective monolayer, also known as a capping layer, is such a connection that runs the length of the nanoparticle's surface. The resultant nanoparticle is known as a shielded or capped nanoparticle. Due to its unique chemical affinity, the sulfur at the end functions as a surface-active head group that binds with the surface of nanoparticles. The system of nanoparticles is thermally stable thanks to the chemical link that has been created. The easier it desorbs from the surface and the less stable the nanoparticle, the weaker it is.

Because the thiolate only desorbs from the metal surface above 270°C and the Au-S bond has a bond strength of 50 kcal mol-1, the metal-active head group binding is a crucial factor in determining the thermal stability of the nano system. The molecule may alter when the nanoparticle is being formed and the monolayer is being bound. For instance, the H is lost when the thiol attaches to gold to create RS. There are several possible methods for such a loss to happen, and this has been up for discussion. The core determines the kind of monolayer and its structural characteristics. In this talk, we primarily focus on big nanoparticles, whose usual sizes range from a few nm to several. The domain of materials with core dimensions below 1 nm, on the other hand, is substantially smaller and has recently drawn a lot of interest. In a later chapter of this book, we will talk about this class of components, known as clusters. The nanoparticle core of big nanoparticles has thousands of atoms.

Considered as a sphere, a 3-nm gold particle, for instance, comprises around 1100 atoms. These particles really have "faceted" surfaces, or the outer surfaces end at certain crystallographic planes. The head groups of the protective molecules occupy certain positions on these planes, which are determined by the available room, the packing density, and the molecules' van der Waals diameter. Alkyl chains are grouped close together and their interchain van der Waals interactions become significant if there are more monolayers present on each of the crystallographic planes. This increases the system's stability. To destabilize the nanoparticle, the van der Waals connection must also be destroyed in addition to the nanoparticle head group interaction.

When compared to the head group-nanoparticle contact, the inter-chain interaction is often weaker. The center of the monolayer assembly becomes inaccessible to ions and molecules in the medium as it becomes organized, as is the case with long-molecule monolayers. As a result, the core's chemical stability is improved. With an increase in chain length, the van der Waals interaction becomes stronger. Chemical bonds in the shell are equivalent to or stronger than those in the nanoparticle core in the limiting case of a polymer or ceramic shell. The group at the tail interacts with the dispersion media or solvent. Nanoparticles distribute in the medium as a consequence of favorable contact. Therefore, a hydrophilic coating is needed to make nanoparticles soluble in water. A hydrophobic coating, on the other hand, renders the nanoparticle soluble in organic fluids like toluene. It is feasible to disperse the system in liquids with varied dielectric constants by altering the polarity of the tail group. A hydrophilic monolayer's shell contains groups like - COOH or -NH₂, which may be ionized to produce -COO- or NH3 +, respectively, which will leave the metal surface with a net positive or negative charge per monolayer chain. The nanoparticle may have many charges since it includes numerous of these bonded ions. The particle may have both positive and negative charges on it, and the total result of all these charges will be represented in the system's charge.

At a certain pH, the particle's net charge is zero; for instance, all the monolayers on an amineterminated surface will be in the form of -NH2 and not -NH3 +. The "isoelectric point" is this pH. This is often the case with proteins since each molecule might be a "zwitter ion." This happens in the case of proteins since they contain both -COO- and NH3 + on the same molecule. The molecule is not ionized anywhere other than the isoelectric point. As was already established, a molecule is not required for the substance that makes up the shell on the nano surface. In a few instances, the shell is a natural component of the core. For instance, silica nanoparticles often have a coating of hydroxyl groups covering their surface, making it simple to float the particles in water. A hydrocarbon monolayer, on the other hand, will cause the particle to scatter in organic liquids.

Similar techniques may be used to make gold nanoparticles hydrophilic or hydrophobic. Reactive nanoparticles like copper may readily have their shells oxidized, and there is always a coating of oxide on their surface. This is particularly true when the particles are exposed to air. As previously established, the tail group's personality might vary based on the medium. This is especially important when the group is -COOH, -NH₂, -OH, etc., since the pH of the medium may significantly alter the nature of the group in these situations. For instance, in the case of a monolayer with a -COOH termination, we get -COOH in acidic conditions and -COO- in alkaline media. The pKa of the acid in issue affects the pH values of a nanoparticle-dispersion. The alteration significantly alters the charge on the nanoparticle surface. This alters the particle's zeta potential, which may have an impact on the particle's characteristics. Modifications to the surface charge are crucial for applications like medication delivery. It's conceivable that the core is impacted when a condition, like pH, changes.

Compatibility with chemicals and ease of chemical manipulation

If the same core size has to be utilized in a variety of applications, these factors are important. The circumstances of nanoparticle synthesis determine their size, shape, and other characteristics. This is what one would anticipate from a process that creates a metastable system. As is well known, the ultimate outcome depends greatly on the synthetic parameters since a particular nanoparticle is kinetically confined in a local minimum of free energy. Thus, it is crucial to use the same process in order to maintain the core size. This often results in limits in the system's capacity to respond to different chemicals and environmental factors. For instance, if a system is sensitive to a certain chemical because of its core or shell, the shell may be appropriately changed to prevent the chemical from accessing it and having any effect on it.

This indicates that after the creation of the nanoparticles, the shell must be modified. This is indeed feasible if a suitable shell is selected that has different chemical properties that enable it to be functionalized. Solvent compatibility was achieved by altering the whole monolayer in a post-synthetic procedure. The process of exchanging the ligand that makes up the monolayer for another one in the medium is known as ligand exchange. By repeating this procedure a few times, full exchange may be accomplished in a number of circumstances. This exchange process results in an equilibrium between the molecules in the adsorbed and free states. Similar to solution chemistry with simple molecules, chemical manipulation of the monolayer is possible. Similar to free molecules, the chemistry of the monolayer is used to effect the necessary post-synthetic modifications. For instance, using functional group chemistry, a specific monolayer may be polymerized or added to a polymeric matrix. To do this, you may use chemical, thermal, and photochemical techniques.

A big molecule's cavity may be used to capture the nanosystem during manipulation, encasing it and allowing it to be transported into a suitable medium. Dendrimers and cyclodextrins are two examples.

Synthetic Techniques: Common Problems

Metal nanoparticles in particular, as well as nanoparticles in general, are studied from a variety of angles. The most significant of them include catalysis, biology, drug delivery, materials science, photo physics, and new phenomena. Although there is some overlap in the synthetic techniques, each of these areas has a distinct focus. The particles could need to be displayed in various ways, and in order to do so, particular adjustments to the synthetic technique are required. There are several books on nanoparticles that are accessible that may be reviewed for detailed information on how well a certain approach fits a given application. In spite of the fact that carbon nanotubes and nanoparticles are both nanosystems, certain synthetic processes are completely unrelated to one another. Any synthetic process generates particles with a certain size distribution. One linear dimension, namely diameter, is sufficient to characterize the size of the particles in the most basic instance of spherical particles. The best way to explain particle size is via statistical analysis. Here, we start with an assortment of N particles. The particles are initially sorted by classes using a class mark and artificial intelligence (AI) with tighter size distributions. There is a distribution and a midpoint for the class.

In a generalized method for creating nanoparticles in solution, the precursor species are chemically reduced, degraded, or hydrolyzed, depending on the situation, while being stabilized as needed. The medium's parameters are tuned such that particle nucleation occurs quickly and that the stabilizer protects the newly formed particles' surfaces. The synthetic conditions vary depending on the kind of reaction; the most often employed factors are temperature, pH, and medium. Conditions are more complicated and the method may be carried out in inert atmospheres when there is thermal degradation of the precursors or when there are more complicated reactions. By changing the solvent polarity or by solvent evaporation at low pressures, the particles produced in a liquid media may be precipitated out of the medium. Depending on the situation, the material may be purified by repeated solvent washing, dialysis, or re-precipitation.

Size Limits

Size exclusivity may not be possible using a synthetic technique. This indicates that the synthesized particles may come in a range of sizes. The choice of a certain size necessitates post synthetic methods. There are various such procedures, with size exclusion chromatography being the first. In this, a mixture of nanoparticles is passed through a stationary phase that is size selective, such a gel with set pore diameters. Depending on the material's size, the eluent (solvent medium) is employed to elute it. Sephadex and Agarose are the two often utilized media. Precipitation using solvent selection is the alternative technique. In this, the medium's polarity is gradually adjusted (from low to high), causing bigger particles to precipitate out of the mixture. Repeating this procedure allows for adequate size control, albeit the material's stability in various mediums may vary. The other method is known as digestive ripening, in which the nanoparticle is digested together with the synthesis-used protective agent at high temperatures across a predetermined range of temperature steps. Smaller-sized particles are consumed throughout the process. Similar methods include Ostwald ripening or particle coarsening, which involve aging the "as prepared particles" for a certain amount of time. During this time, larger particles expand at the cost of smaller ones, narrowing the particle size distribution. Combining temperature cycling with this may be possible.

Anisotropic Nanoparticles

Although spherical forms are often associated with nanoparticles, there are also many anisotropic shapes. These describe all forms except spheres. To accurately define these forms, more than one parameter is needed. Nanorods and nanotriangles are the most prevalent ones. Other forms including stars, flowers, sheets, tripods, and tetrapods are also well-known, although in certain instances, synthetic flexibility is not present. Many of these forms serve as the foundation for the creation of more complicated shapes. Recently, a number of anisotropic nanoparticles have been synthesized, and their applications have been discussed. However, the majority of them cannot be obtained in solution phase. Some of these resources will be covered later in this book. The topic of rods and tringles is brief after that.

CONCLUSION

We covered nanomaterial fabrication techniques in this chapter. Anisotropic nanostructures, fullerenes, nanotubes, metal and semiconductor spherical nanoparticles, and other nanosystems were studied. The pathways of synthesis via chemical, physical, mechanical, and biological means were described. In the case of nanoparticles, discussion focused mostly on solution chemistry methods. The strategies for creating stable and redispersible nanoparticles were the main topic of debate. The numerous techniques used for the synthesis of distinct nanoparticle systems are briefly summarized. In the full spectrum of particle sizes, from nanoparticles to clusters, the methodologies for their characterization were described with concrete examples. The involved synthetic concerns were briefly covered. The information provided makes it evident that almost the whole periodic table might be translated into a nano form.

REFERENCES:

- [1] K. S. Krishna, Y. Li, S. Li, and C. S. S. R. Kumar, "Lab-on-a-chip synthesis of inorganic nanomaterials and quantum dots for biomedical applications," *Advanced Drug Delivery Reviews*. 2013.
- [2] P. R. Makgwane and S. S. Ray, "Synthesis of nanomaterials by continuous-flow microfluidics: A review," *Journal of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology*. 2014.
- [3] L. L. Li, X. Li, and H. Wang, "Microfluidic Synthesis of Nanomaterials for Biomedical Applications," *Small Methods*. 2017.
- [4] G. Zan and Q. Wu, "Biomimetic and Bioinspired Synthesis of Nanomaterials/Nanostructures," *Advanced Materials*. 2016.
- [5] S. Dąbrowska, T. Chudoba, J. Wojnarowicz, and W. Łojkowski, "Current trends in the development of microwave reactors for the synthesis of nanomaterials in laboratories and industries: A review," *Crystals.* 2018.
- [6] T. Prasad Yadav, R. Manohar Yadav, and D. Pratap Singh, "Mechanical Milling: a Top Down Approach for the Synthesis of Nanomaterials and Nanocomposites," *Nanosci. Nanotechnol.*, 2012.
- [7] D. S. Bernatal Saragih, Ika Karyati, "PENGARUH PEWARNA EKSTRAK CAIR ALAMI BAWANG TIWAI (Eleutherine americana Merr) TERHADAP MUTU SELAI KULIT PISANG KEPOK (Musa paradisiaca Linn)," *J. Tenknologi Pertan.*, 2010.
- [8] S. T. Aruna and A. S. Mukasyan, "Combustion synthesis and nanomaterials," *Current Opinion in Solid State and Materials Science*. 2008.
- [9] S. K. Das, S. U. S. Choi, W. Yu, and T. Pradeep, "Synthesis of Nanofluids," in *Nanofluids*, 2007.
- [10] T. M. Tolaymat, A. M. El Badawy, A. Genaidy, K. G. Scheckel, T. P. Luxton, and M. Suidan, "An evidence-based environmental perspective of manufactured silver nanoparticle in syntheses and applications: A systematic review and critical appraisal of peer-reviewed scientific papers," *Science of the Total Environment*. 2010.
- [11] A. Tasker, F. Sainsbury, and S. Puttick, "Particle-stabilized fluid-fluid interfaces: The impact of core composition on interfacial structure," *Frontiers in Chemistry*. 2018.

CHAPTER 11 THEORETICAL UNDERSTANDING OF NANOSYSTEMS

Vishnu Prasad Shrivastava, Assistant Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id- vpshrivastava82@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

The theoretical knowledge that underpins both nanoscience and nanotechnology offer vital insights into the atomic and molecular behavior of nanosystems. This study examines the wide range of theoretical methods that have been used to clarify the characteristics, behavior, and possible uses of nanoscale systems. The underlying framework for comprehending nanoscale phenomena, quantum mechanics, is explored in depth at the beginning of the study. In order to create customized materials and innovative device designs, quantum mechanical models and computations allow the prediction of electronic structures, energy levels, and bonding interactions in nanosystems.

KEYWORDS:

Electronic Structure, Molecular Dynamics, Nanoparticles, Nanoscale.

INTRODUCTION

Interesting phenomena are produced when electrons are confined in tiny spaces. Here is a theoretical explanation of these traits. Additionally provided is confinement's spectroscopic manifestation. The qualities that are discussed in previous sections of this book have this as a basis. Large-surface effects, which have a wide range of technological uses, control the thermodynamic characteristics of the nanosystems. Furthermore, the system's precise chemical makeup becomes crucial because to the small-length scales associated with many processes. Both of them make it challenging to comprehend nanosystems theoretically. In this chapter, we emphasize the challenges brought on by large-surface effects. We next provide an example of how computer simulations help clarify some of these problems. To this purpose, we talk about the fundamental methods used in simulations of stochastic dynamics, Monte-Carlo, and molecular dynamics. In order to demonstrate how the fundamental algorithms are really employed in research and to highlight the ongoing work on the fundamental algorithms that aims to comprehend increasingly complex phenomena, we also evaluate a few recently published papers[1], [2].

Many people find the word "quantum dots" itself to be both interesting and inventive. It suggests both the quantum effects' manifestation and the exceedingly tiny scale. This phrase often refers to semiconductor material nanostructures in which electrons are constrained to specially crafted, low-dimensional structures with appropriate potential barriers. However, in low-dimensional structures of varied dimensions, electrons may be contained to various

degrees. It is crucial to take a quick glance at the characteristics of bulk semiconductors in order to comprehend the intriguing physical features of these materials[3], [4].

Aspects of Bulk Semiconductors' Optical Properties

Since solids are collections of essentially infinitely many atoms, the energy levels of the individual atoms have a tendency to combine to create energy bands, which are zones of permissible electron energy. In crystals of insulating or semiconducting materials, the valence band and conduction band are the two areas of permitted values where electrons cannot absorb energy. The band gap, or prohibited energy gap, is a defining attribute of the material that refers to the energy range between these bands. This energy gap typically has magnitudes of a few electron volts for semiconductors and several electron volts for insulators.

The energy band gap, a crucial factor that controls the material's optical and electrical characteristics, is what defines semiconductors. The explanation of the behavior of electrons in crystalline materials by quantum mechanics gives birth to the concepts of energy bands and band gaps. A hole or electron in a crystal encounters a potential that is considerably different from the Coulomb potential that electrons in solitary atoms experience because crystals exhibit long-range periodicity in all three dimensions. As a result of the positive ion arrangement's translational periodicity inside the crystal, the potential V(x) in this instance is periodic. V(x) equals V(x + a), where an is the crystal's lattice constant. The electrons' wave function similarly follows a periodic pattern with the same frequency. Standard text texts on solid state physics provide a quantum mechanical description of electrons in crystalline materials that involves the Schrodinger wave equation solution and introduces the idea of energy bands[5], [6].

Because the energy gap is bigger than the quantum energy that corresponds to the visible light spectrum, insulating crystals are transparent. Incident photons with quantum energies equal to or higher than the band gap energy may be absorbed by crystals. A result of this absorption is the excitation of an electron across the band gap, from the valence band to the conduction band.

The crystals are thus opaque to electromagnetic waves with quantum energies larger than the band gap energy and transparent to those with energies below. While PbS (band gap: 0.41 eV) and silicon (band gap: 1.11 eV) seem black and impenetrable to light in the visible area, crystals of materials such as ZnO (band gap: 3.37 eV) are transparent to most visible and infrared parts of the electromagnetic spectrum. Materials with color and selective color light transmission include CdS (band gap: 2.4 eV) and CdSe (band gap: 1.73 eV). The band gap energy of a semiconductor material is often challenging to alter at a given temperature and pressure.

By capturing an optical absorption spectrum of the sample, where the optical absorption coefficient is plotted as a function of the wavelength of the light impinge on the crystal, the optical characteristics of the sample are characterized. Semiconductor crystals' optical absorption spectra show a distinction between the wavelength ranges where the crystal is transparent and opaque. An estimate of the band gap may be obtained by analyzing this spectrum[7], [8].

DISCUSSION

Low-Dimensional Quantum Mechanical Structures

The majority of the physics relating to bulk semiconductors is well known and has been covered in widely used textbooks. However, the construction of low-dimensional structures enables the confinement of electrons and holes in quantum mechanics in many geometries. In a crystal of a bulk semiconductor, electrons, holes, and excitons are free to flow in any of the three dimensions. As they are constrained to smaller dimensions, their flexibility is diminished, which has an impact on their quantum states, influences their state density, and subsequently changes their physical characteristics.

Quantum wells: For instance, two layers of a different semiconductor with a greater energy gap may be placed between a very thin layer of a low-band gap semiconductor material. The electrons in the middle layer are therefore constrained to two dimensions since moving out from the layers' plane in that direction encounters a potential barrier. Here, the intermediate layer's thickness is often far smaller than its length or width, making it possible to think of this layer as being almost two-dimensional. Quantum wells are these kinds of structures. In the structure shown at the top, the potential encountered by an electron is represented as a function of the distance along the structure's length. A multiple quantum well may be created by successively stacking thin layers of two suitable semiconductors with differing band gaps, such as AlGaAs and GaAs, in an alternating pattern[9], [10].

The invention of quantum well architectures for device applications was a consequence of research into quantum mechanical confinement in two-dimensional semiconductors. In a quantum well, electrons can only go in two directions and encounter a possible obstacle while attempting to flow in the third direction. A one-dimensional potential well issue is used to simulate such a system. In this problem, the electrons are contained in a deep potential well and are exposed to steep potential walls, which restricts their travel along one of the dimensions, such as the z-axis.

Quantum wires: By creating an incredibly thin metallic or semiconducting wire that is immersed in a dielectric medium, it is possible to further confine electrons to quasi-one-dimensional structures known as quantum wires. By using electron beam lithography, quantum wires may also be created from quantum wells. Quantum mechanics may be used to confine the electrons to one dimension, such as along the z-axis, and determine the energy eigen values as

$$E_n = \frac{\hbar^2}{2m_e} \left\{ \frac{n_x^2 \,\pi^2}{L_x^2} + \frac{n_y^2 \,\pi^2}{L_y^2} + k_z^2 \right\}$$

Quantum dots: By creating "quantum dots," which are quasi-zero-dimensional nanostructures in the shape of small islands of the semiconducting material surrounded by an insulating neighborhood, quantum confinement may be stretched even farther. Compared to quantum wells and quantum wires, these systems, also known as quantum dots, have been investigated in great depth. Potential barriers in these materials restrict electrons in each of the three dimensions. The electron (hole) wave function for a quantum dot with dimensions Lx, Ly, and Lz along the appropriate coordinate axes is stated as:

$$\Psi^{e,h} = \Psi_x^{e,h}(x) \Psi_y^{e,h}(y) \Psi_z^{e,h}(z),$$

The density of states of a quantum dot is a set of delta function given by

$$N(E) = 2 \sum_{n_x, n_y, n_z} \delta(E - E_{n_x, n_y, n_z}^{e, h}).$$

As a consequence, in the case of a quantum dot, the energy bands in a bulk material show some degree of discreteness, giving rise to the appearance of energy levels. Additionally, the oscillator strength, which was previously dispersed throughout the continuum states in the energy bands for bulk material, is now focussed on these distinct exciton levels.

Confinement of Exciton in Quantum Dots

By analyzing the behavior of the exciton in the semiconductor nanocrystal, one may comprehend quantum confinement. The exciton is a pair of bound electrons and holes that exist in the lattice and are quantum mechanically connected with one another. A particular exciton's electron and hole may be physically adjacent to one another in the crystal, as is the case with Frenkelexcitons, or they may be physically separated by a few lattice spacings, as is the situation with Mott-Wannierexcitons. In the case of bulk semiconductors, the Mott-Wannierexciton is a well-known and extensively researched phenomenon. It is an electronhole pair that was produced by the semiconductor's interaction with photons and is loosely bound. Its positive and negative charges are kept together by the coulomb interaction, making it a quantum mechanical system comparable to the hydrogen atom. The energy levels of the exciton, which is a quantum mechanical system made up of an electron and a hole, are anticipated to resemble scaled-down versions of the energy levels of a hydrogen atom ensconced in a dielectric medium with matching Bohr-like orbits. Since the exciton is a part of the semiconductor lattice, the lattice constant serves as the scaling factor. For various semiconductors, these calculations have been done to estimate the exciton Bohr radius aB of the bulk exciton, which is given by

$$a_{B} = \frac{\hbar^{2} \varepsilon}{e^{2}} \left[\frac{1}{m_{e}} + \frac{1}{m_{h}} \right]$$

When m_e and m_h stand for the effective masses of the electron and hole, respectively, and is the bulk optical dielectric constant, e is the electronic charge. When the size of the nanocrystal is less than the exciton Bohr diameter of the semiconductor, it is claimed that the exciton is in the strong quantum confinement regime. For example, this size is 6 nm in the case of CdS and 9 nm in the case of PbS[11], [12].

In the realm of strong quantum confinement, the consequences of spatial confinement are quite noticeable. The average speed of the electron in the nanocluster must be much higher than that in the bulk, according to the principle of uncertainty. Therefore, the electron may be thought of as doing multiple rotations in the exciton until thermal motion destroys it by electron-hole recombination. Because the exciton has a longer lifetime in nanocrystals than it does in the bulk, it is possible to see exciton characteristics in optical absorption spectra of semiconductor nanocrystals at room temperature, in contrast to the bulk. At room temperatures, it is also possible to see exciton fluorescence.

Quantum Mechanics of Confined Nanoclusters

grasp the behavior of particles at the nanoscale, especially in the setting of constrained nanoclusters, requires a basic grasp of quantum mechanics. Due to their tiny size and the effects of quantum confinement, these nanoclusters, which are made up of a small number of atoms or molecules often hundreds or even thousands display distinctive electrical, optical, and chemical features. The quantization of energy levels is one of the most remarkable characteristics of restricted nanoclusters. While electrons are dispersed throughout energy bands in bulk materials, distinct energy levels are more noticeable in nanoclusters. Similar to the electron orbits in an atom, this quantization causes the development of distinct energy states or energy "shells" inside the cluster. Different electrical and optical characteristics, such as discrete absorption and emission spectra, are produced by these quantized energy levels. These characteristics may be investigated by scientists using a variety of spectroscopic methods, providing information on the cluster's dimensions, structure, and electrical arrangement.

The Heisenberg uncertainty principle, which stipulates that it is impossible to accurately estimate a particle's location and momentum at the same time, also controls how electrons behave in confined nanoclusters. Since electrons are spatially constrained to a limited space in nanoclusters, their momentum is subject to greater uncertainty, which causes a significant dispersion in energy levels. The "particle-in-a-box" effect causes the energy gaps between quantum states to expand and may produce unusual electrical features including quantum size effects and quantum dots.

Additionally, according to quantum physics, electron behavior is probabilistic, and electrons contained in nanoclusters behave like waves. Because of this wave nature, interference patterns are produced when the probability distributions of electrons cross across. This phenomenon is known as wave interference. The optical and electrical characteristics of nanoclusters may be impacted by these interference effects, which can also have an impact on luminescence and the adjustable characteristics of nanoparticles utilized in many applications, such as quantum dots for displays and sensors.

Other quantum particles like phonons, which are quantized vibrational modes in materials, are also affected by quantum confinement effects, which are not only confined to electrons. Due to their small size, nanoclusters' phonon energies are likewise quantized, changing their mechanical and thermal characteristics. Thermal conductivity and mechanical stability are important factors in the design of nanoscale materials, and they may be impacted by these quantum mechanical effects on phonons.

Finally, we show that the peculiar features of confined nanoclusters are strongly influenced by the quantum mechanics. Quantized energy levels, probabilistic electron behavior, and wave-like phenomena are all results of quantum confinement effects, and they all help to explain the distinctive electrical, optical, thermal, and mechanical properties seen in nanoclusters. For the creation of sophisticated nanomaterials with specialized features for a variety of applications, from electronics to catalysis to medicine, it is imperative to comprehend and take use of these quantum phenomena.

Band Gap Engineering and Optical Response

Quantum dots are intriguing possibilities for use in photonics due to the striking changes in their optical characteristics. The methods of optical absorption and fluorescence may be used to examine the optical qualities. Particularly in the case of direct band gap semiconductors, like CdS, the optical absorption spectrum of a perfect crystalline semiconductor displays an abrupt cut-off at a specific wavelength matching to the band gap energy. The cut-offs tend to be less abrupt in indirect band gap semiconductors like silicon because of phonon contributions. Essentially, the material is transparent to light with longer wavelengths and opaque to light with wavelengths less than this cut-off wavelength. This is so because the cut-off number represents the band gap energy. Excitons have an impact on the optical absorption and emission characteristics of semiconductors.

Near the optical cut-off, characteristics of excitron-based absorption may be seen in the optical absorption spectrum. Energy levels that are closely spaced between the top of the valence band and the bottom of the conduction band may be used to characterize the exciton-induced absorption. Thus, in the case of semiconductor quantum dots, exciton confinement modifies the idea of the band itself. It seems as if the conduction band separates into several levels at its lowest point. As a result, shoulders start to appear near to the abrupt cut-off in the bulk semiconductor's optical absorption spectrum. Therefore, in this situation, we can only discuss an effective band gap.

The decay of the exciton and the emission of the consequent energy as light are caused by the recombination of its electron and hole. Near the band edge, this appears as a strong peak in the fluorescence spectrum. Such characteristics, however, are often only visible at cooler ambient temperatures. This is so that the lattice's thermal excitations don't allow the electron and hole to complete even one orbit before causing their recombination. The sharp exciton peak, which is located not far from the absorption edge, is the primary characteristic of the fluorescence spectra of semiconductor quantum dots. There are also other peaks that are caused by faulty states. This is caused by the comparatively high surface area to volume ratio of the dot. It is discovered that the size-dependence of the exciton peak is very comparable to that of the absorption edge. This opens up some intriguing possibilities, such creating a solid

state white-light emitter by carefully combining quantum dots made of the right materials and having various diameters.

Computational Approaches to Nanoscale Phenomena

Generally speaking, when we discuss materials, we are referring about large systems made up of billions of atoms or molecules. A vast number of atoms, groups, or molecules linked together by powerful covalent bonds make comprise the building blocks of materials that were previously only made of atoms or molecules thanks to the development of controlled chemical synthesis procedures. A notable illustration of such artificial systems is the dispersion of colloidal particles. Typically, the colloidal particles are micron-sized. Systems that only need a few atoms and have sizes in the range of a few nanometers have been developed in the modern era. The size has been reduced as follows: Nanosystems (a few nanometers), granular systems (a few millimeters), and colloidal dispersions (a few micrometers). The size of the component parts has a significant impact on how the material will react to chemical and physical changes. Let's have a look at a colloidal dispersion, whose characteristics have been extensively researched in recent years.

They can be seen with laser light and may scatter regular light due to their huge diameters. In reality, colloidal particle zigzag motion is known as "Brownian motion" after British botanist Robert Brown, who could see it in a suspension of pollens under a light microscope. Although at very different sizes, a colloidal dispersion's characteristics are comparable to those of regular atomic systems. However, this results in a quite significant aspect that elevates them in both pedagogy and technical terms. Due to their vast size, colloidal systems have substantially fewer particles per volume than atomic systems do. The average thermal energy per particle is roughly 1 kBT, where kB is the Boltzmann constant and T is the absolute temperature. As a result, a colloidal system's energy scale is substantially smaller than that of an atomic system. With d representing the colloidal size and a standing for the usual atomic length scale, the reduction is by a factor of (d/a).

Thus, exogenous agents that have been used extensively in industrial applications as well as in labs to simulate the features of atomic systems may readily disturb colloids. What should happen if the fundamental components that make up an object are decreased to the nanometer range in size? There is no doubt that a few atoms may be covalently bonded to one another in such nanometer-sized units. Now let's get to the meat of the matter. A surface's atoms and molecules vary from those deep inside an object. Because there are enough nearby atoms and molecules to support the bonds that may form, the bulk atoms and molecules do so. However, the geometrical discontinuity prevents those on the surface from doing so. As a result, while establishing a system's characteristics, the impacts of the surface atoms are often different from those in the bulk. A straightforward geometrical ratio determines the relative relevance of the impacts of the surface atoms and molecules.

When creating the fundamental algorithm described in the previous part, there are a few crucial considerations that one should bear in mind.

(a) Boundary circumstances

Bulk simulations are often carried out in a central box with periodic boundary conditions (PBC) that are believed to be replicated in all directions. The image boxes are exact copies of the main box. In every box, the particles travel in the same way. It is obvious that when a particle exits the center box, it is equivalent to when a particle from the image box next to the opposite side of the center box enters the center box. As a result, the core box's borders have no impact on the particles inside of it. However, the boundary is crucial in the case of nanosystems. The border barriers are therefore specifically maintained. Thus, a further need for such a system is the definition of the wall-particle interactions. Sometimes, instead of using the standard PBCs, the cluster is assumed to be located within a matrix distant from the borders. When simulating an aggregation of clusters, the PBCs are often used.

(b) Possibility of interactions

It should be noted that the interaction potential does in fact carry the system specification into the simulation algorithms. The interaction potential is how the forces in the MD code are generated. Similar to this, the interaction potential is where the energy in the MC originates from. The interaction potentials are typically parameterized. For instance, the Morse potential is used to simulate the covalent bonding interactions. Such interactions are often also taken into account by the harmonic approximation, which just requires the spring constant to be given.

Experiments may be used to measure the spring constant. Examples include the spring constants for various homo- and hetero-nuclear bonds obtained from infrared investigations. Van der Waals interactions are used to define the non-bonding interactions. The interactions between charges are coulombic and often long-ranged. Specific techniques must be used in simulations to manage the long-range interactions. Typically, "ab-initio" computations employing quantum chemistry techniques are used to do the parametrization. Due to their slower speeds than those of the electrons in these simulations, the nuclear coordinates are kept constant. The fixed nuclear coordinates are used to determine the ground-state electronic energy. By doing the same computations throughout a range of inter-nuclear distances, the potential energy profile is produced. These profiles are used to estimate the interaction parameters.

The coulomb forces are combined with the electronic component of the force and the traditional inter-nuclear forces to update the nuclear coordinates using the conventional MC or MD method. As a result, the nuclear and linked electronic coordinates are updated. It must be kept in mind that calculating the force in MD and energy twice in MC takes up the majority of calculation time. Since every potential pair is taken into account during the calculation, the duration scales up to N₂. This is a significant issue, especially for clusters with many component atoms (N > 500). If the interaction potential is short-ranged, the calculation is often done assuming a cut-off of the potential. Less than 50% of the shortest box dimension must be the cut-off.

A Verletneighbour list is often kept as a list of neighbors. The list includes all the atoms that are nearby and somewhat further away than the cut-off distance from a particular atom. It is

determined how each atom in this list will interact with the others. Only sometimes, depending on how the particles travel, is the list updated. This eliminates the need to calculate the spacing between various pairings for several intermediary stages. At the start of the simulations, the force and potential energy may be tabulated. One just searches up the database and use the common interpolations when running the simulations. If the contact is far-reaching, like in the coulomb examples, this may save a lot of time.

(c) Quantities without dimensions

Let's use an example. Every other parameter utilized in the simulation must be decreased in accordance with the choice of reduced units for the MC of the Lennard-Jones system, which might be (= a few angstroms) as the length unit and kBT (= 40 meV at room temperature) as the energy unit. Calculating the pressure in real units (N/m²) requires correcting their physical dimensions, namely multiplying the simulation's result by k TB /. It is possible to choose three independent units that correspond to the three basic concepts of length, mass, and time. However, one may also choose other values, such as length, mass, and energy. The time unit is automatically corrected after that. These units must be used to convert the other numbers. For instance, the time step in MD should be scaled down to the time unit specified by the previously chosen reduced values.

CONCLUSION

In general, dimensionless variables are used in computer simulations. The following will help you understand the cause. A system's normal length is in the range of a few angstroms. The force, which is about 1/(length), may be calculated, but the result is a very tiny number that a computer cannot process. In fact, problems of a similar kind also exist with big numbers. Therefore, one attempts to scale the amounts such that the numbers utilized for the actual calculation are close to 1.0. The decreased length will be close to unity, which the machine can manage, if one scales all the distances by a typical length, such as the size of an atom, which is around a few angstroms. Each of the reduced amounts is only a number. The number may be converted to an actual amount by multiplying it by the matching unit. The system determines the reduction unit to be used, which is by no means unique.

REFERENCES:

- [1] L. Bursi, A. Calzolari, S. Corni, and E. Molinari, "Quantifying the Plasmonic Character of Optical Excitations in Nanostructures," *ACS Photonics*, 2016.
- [2] A. V. Krasheninnikov and K. Nordlund, "Ion and electron irradiation-induced effects in nanostructured materials," *Journal of Applied Physics*. 2010.
- [3] V. Meunier, A. G. Souza Filho, E. B. Barros, and M. S. Dresselhaus, "Physical properties of low-dimensional sp2 -based carbon nanostructures," *Rev. Mod. Phys.*, 2016.

- [4] A. Norambuena *et al.*, "Spin-lattice relaxation of individual solid-state spins," *Phys. Rev. B*, 2018.
- [5] M. F. Ciappina *et al.*, "Attosecond physics at the nanoscale," *Reports Prog. Phys.*, 2017.
- [6] V. Meunier, A. G. Souza Filho, E. B. Barros, and M. S. Dresselhaus, "Physical properties of low-dimensional <math display="inline"><mrow><msup><mrow><mi>s</mi></mrow></mrow><mrow><mn>2</mn></mrow></msup></mrow></math>-based carbon nanostructures," *Rev. Mod. Phys.*, 2016.
- [7] U. Tartaglino, T. Zykova-Timan, F. Ercolessi, and E. Tosatti, "Melting and nonmelting of solid surfaces and nanosystems," *Physics Reports*. 2005.
- [8] A. Norambuena, S. A. Reyes, J. Mejía-Lopéz, A. Gali, and J. R. Maze, "Microscopic modeling of the effect of phonons on the optical properties of solid-state emitters," *Phys. Rev. B*, 2016.
- [9] Y. Ma, "Hotspot size-dependent thermal boundary conductance in nondiffusive heat conduction," *J. Heat Transfer*, 2015.
- [10] G. M. Vanacore, A. W. P. Fitzpatrick, and A. H. Zewail, "Four-dimensional electron microscopy: Ultrafast imaging, diffraction and spectroscopy in materials science and biology," *Nano Today*. 2016.
- [11] R. J. Sadus, "Molecular simulation and theory for nanosystems: Insights for molecular motors," *Mol. Simul.*, 2008.
- [12] D. Ryndyk, *Theory of Quantum Transport at Nanoscale*. 2016.

CHAPTER 12 QUANTUM CLUSTERS OF GOLD: ELECTRONIC STRUCTURE AND OPTICAL PROPERTIES

Sri Prakash Pandey, Professor College of Engineering, Teerthanker Mahaveer University, Moradabad, Uttar Pradesh, India Email Id-pandeysp72@gmail.com

ABSTRACT:

A interesting new area of research in nanoscience is the study of quantum clusters of gold, which has significant implications for both basic study and real-world applications. In order to understand the peculiar behavior of gold quantum clusters at the nanoscale, this research examines the electrical structure and optical characteristics of gold quantum clusters. The principles guiding the electrical structure of these clusters are first explained, with special attention paid to the quantum size effects that result from their nanoscale size. Gold clusters are given discrete energy levels by quantum confinement, which gives them fascinating electrical features that set them apart from their bulk counterparts. These electronic transitions are crucial in determining how gold quantum clusters appear optically.

KEYWORDS:

Absorption Spectra, Size-Dependent Properties, Surface Ligands, Quantum Mechanics.

INTRODUCTION

The term "quantum clusters" or "sub-nanoclusters" describes a brand-new class of nanomaterials with a 1 nm core diameter. They function as a bridge between molecules and nanoparticles, behaving very differently from metallic nanoparticles. They have distinctive optical characteristics and high quantum yield luminescence from the ultraviolet to the near infrared range. Large-scale quantum cluster synthesis has been accomplished using a variety of techniques. This chapter introduces this class of materials and provides information on their production, optical characteristics, and applications, such as biolabeling[1], [2].

Researchers are continuously interested in the synthesis of new materials with desirable and controllable physical and chemical characteristics. Numerous techniques have been used to create nanomaterials in a range of sizes and shapes, and they provide a wealth of opportunities to investigate size- and shape-dependent changes in electrical, optical, and chemical characteristics. In reality, the most significant feature that counts in nanoscience is size. According to their diameters, nanoparticles may be divided roughly into three types. The first class of nanoparticles may be referred to as giant nanoparticles since their core diameters are equivalent to visible light wavelengths. Small nanoparticles are the second category of nanoparticles, and their core diameters are the same as the electron mean free path. The size of the last class of nanoparticles, known as sub-nanoparticles or quantum clusters, is equal to the electron's Fermi wavelength[3], [4].

The first two subgroups of nanoparticles are completely distinct from quantum clusters. They may be thought of as the "missing link" between molecular and nanoparticle behavior. They have a small core size in the sub-nanometer range and just a few atoms in total. The electrical structure of the particles is significantly different because to their very tiny size, and as a result, they exhibit various physico-chemical characteristics. Quantum clusters are often described in terms of their chemical composition, i.e., the number of core atoms and shielding ligands, as opposed to metallic nanoparticles, which are represented by their core diameter. For instance, Au25SG18, a well-known gold quantum cluster that is water soluble, has a core made up of 25 gold atoms that is shielded by 18 glutathione ligands. Due to their sub-nanometer size and inadequate state density to produce metallicity, these clusters are unable to exhibit surface plasmon resonance. They display unique yet diverse optical absorption and emission properties and discrete energy levels[5], [6].

In other words, quantum clusters are sometimes known as molecular clusters because they exhibit optical transitions that are "molecule-like" in both their emission and absorption. They exhibit distinctive absorption characteristics and may be separated from one another based on their absorption patterns. Strong photoluminescence is a characteristic of quantum clusters, and they may emit light with a range of wavelengths from the near infrared to the ultraviolet. In the field of molecular cluster science, study has focused on the structure of atomic and molecular aggregation known as clusters or Van der Waals molecules. The study of the shell structure described by the Mackay icosahedra displaying magic numbers containing atoms, where k is the number of atoms in the cluster and n are integers 1, 2, has benefited from many of these cluster systems. The jellium model has been used to comprehend how the electrical structure of such cluster systems evolves over time. Noble metal quantum clusters are a relatively new addition to this family of clusters[7], [8].

DISCUSSION

The lowest members of this region, Au₁₃ and Au₅₅, which were synthesized in 1983 and 1981, respectively, are closely related to Mackay icosahedra. These clusters might be considered molecules made of noble metals. Larger noble metal nanoparticles have been referred to by a variety of names. These consist of protected monolayer clusters, protected or capped nanoparticles, 3-D self-assembled monolayers, etc. These nanosystems often have metallic cores that are 2 nm or more in diameter. Quantum clusters, on the other hand, exhibit distinct absorption and emission characteristics and are semiconducting in nature. They resemble molecules and have distinct cores made up of metal-metal bonds. These characteristics resemble those of molecules. However, it may not be appropriate to categorize them as gold molecules. This is due to the fact that the systems under discussion also exhibit protective group/ligand capabilities, while gold molecules suggest that the features are unique to gold. These clusters, which may have additional features and are now known to form with proteins and a variety of monolayer chemistries, can be formed[9], [10].

As a result, the attributes include both core and monolayer components as well as unique system-wide traits. The cluster acts as independent entities with well-defined attributes, hence another term that has been used in the literature and is likely valuable from various contexts is super atom. The variety of chemistry, however, will allow for the development of a number of novel multi-atom clusters with a wide range of isomeric analogues in the next years. This

would indicate the existence of super atoms made of more than one element, giving rise to terminology like AuAgsuper atoms in addition to Au and Ag super atoms. Quantum clusters (QCs) is another term that might be used. This concept emphasizes the quantized character of electronic energy levels brought on by size constriction alone. This word does not imply that the core and monolayer's chemical compositions or the structural variety of such systems are indicated. As a result, we use this nomenclature throughout this work.

This chapter introduces this brand-new group of nanomaterials. Following a discussion of the different synthetic approaches and characterisation methodologies, the photo physical characteristics of the QCs are thoroughly explained. In the fields of optoelectronics and biolabelling, these QCs are quite helpful. These fields are the subject of extensive investigation. The reader will hopefully get familiar with a new family of materials in the context of luminescence imaging and other applications after reading this chapter.

Synthetic Methods

It is possible to create gold quantum clusters in a variety of methods. But first, let's take a closer look at the molecules that cap or stabilize the QC core before delving into the specifics of the synthetic processes. These substances are referred to as ligands. Since the majority of the QC's atoms are found at the surface and are sensitive to chemical interactions with the ligands, the ligands are critical in influencing the electronic characteristics of the QCs. Ligands affect the geometry of the QC, stabilize it at a certain size, and also prevent agglomeration. Thiols, phosphines, amines, and carboxylic acids that are water and organically soluble are often utilized as ligands. For the in-situ synthesis of QCs, dendrimers and biomolecules like DNA and proteins are also used as scaffolds or templates. We briefly explore the synthetic approaches in the section that follows.

All of the known synthetic techniques may be generally divided into four groups:

1. Bottom-up strategy: In this case, Au3+ ions are used to synthesize the QCs. In this procedure, QCs are created by reducing Au3+ ions in the presence of a suitable ligand. This process is utilized to create QCs that are both water and organically soluble.

2. Top-down technique: Using core etching in the presence of chosen molecules, the QCs are created from larger nanoparticles in this process.

3. Synthesis from another QC: Using this technique, an existing QC is changed into an additional QC.

4. Size focusing: In this case, the preferable population or size focusing approach is used to transform a mixture of QCs into the QC that is thermodynamically most stable.

Identification Methods

UV/VIS optical absorption, luminescence, mass spectrometry, X-ray photoelectron spectroscopy (XPS), transmission electron microscopy (TEM), and Fourier transform infrared (FT-IR) are the principal methods used to characterize QCs. Measurements of the

ultraviolet/visible region (UV-Vis) include wavelengths from around 200 nm to 800 nm. Transitions between a molecule's electrical energy levels occur when ultraviolet or visible light is absorbed by it. Characterization may be done on the optical and electrical characteristics of many materials, including films, powders, monolithic solids, and liquids. The analytical method of UV-vis spectroscopy is affordable, straightforward, adaptable, non-destructive, and suited for a wide range of organic chemicals and certain inorganic species. UV-vis spectrophotometers calculate the absorption or transmission of light through a material as a function of wavelength[11].

High performance liquid chromatography and ultra-high performance liquid chromatography both utilize UV-vis detectors to categorize and quantify the concentration of compounds in liquid streams. By combining these methods with mass spectrometry, all animals may be detected. UV-visible (UV-Vis) spectra are produced when the interaction of incident radiation with the electron cloud in a chromophore leads to an electronic transition involving the promotion of one or more outer shell or bonding electrons from a ground state into a higher energy state.

In general, compounds have broad spectral bands in the UV and visible ranges. It may not demonstrate a high level of accuracy in compound identification. Nevertheless, they are adequate for quantitative tests and helpful as an additional method of drug detection. The energy released at each specific wavelength, which is predicted from the law of chance, determines the composition of the radiation from typical hot materials. This radiation has a number of wavelengths and is principally dependent on the temperature of the solid. The tungsten-halogen lamp is a variation of this that has achieved common use more recently. The quartz envelope allows radiation to pass through to the UV zone. The deuterium lamp is the most often used source for the UV area, and a UV-Visible spectrometer typically has all different kinds of lamps to cover the whole wavelength range.

Spectroscopy in the UV-VIS has several uses

UV/vis spectroscopy is more often utilized in research than in detection. The determination of the trace metal content of an alloy, such as the manganese content in steel, requires first reacting the sample to bring the metal into solution as an ion. UV-Visible spectrophotometry is a widely used method for quantitative measurement of analytes in QA/QC, analytical research, and government regulatory labs. The approach's principles, such Beer's Law, are taught in schools. UV-Visible Upper-end to mid-range Spectrophotometers are often used in research labs, including those at universities and in industry. After that, the ion is complexed or induced to react so that it may take on a certain structure, such manganese becoming the manganate(VII) ion. When the spectrum is recorded, the absorbance is the most important piece of data since it allows one to calculate the mass of the metal in the sample as well as the concentration of the solution if one knows the chromophore's absorption coefficient.

Light-based spectroscopy

A luminescence spectrometer, also known as a spectrofluorometer, may be used to measure the emission spectra of fluorescent or luminous solutions (see fluorescence). A UV-visible excitation light source, often a xenon arc lamp, is used in this device to irradiate the sample, and the emission light is then collected to create a spectrum: A monochomator, which works similarly to a prism, diffracts and disperses the light from the xenon arc lamp, which emits wavelengths ranging from 230 to 1000 nm spanning a broad spectrum of UV, visible, and IR energies. We may irradiate our sample with a known wavelength of light by adjusting the angle of the diffraction grating to choose a certain wavelength of light. This light stimulates the molecules in the sample's solution, which we place in a clear quartz cuvette (we cannot use glass since glass absorbs light at shorter wavelengths than around 330 nm). To minimize the excitation light being detected, the sample's light is collected perpendicular to the excitation. In order to construct a spectrum, the light is transmitted through another monochromator, which spins and scans across a variety of wavelengths (corresponding to a range of grating angles). The intensity of the light at each wavelength is recorded. In order to capture the signal electronically, the visible light is gathered by a photomultiplier tube (PMT), which detects photons (light) and turns this into a voltage.

Mass spectrometric

In order to determine the mass-to-charge ratio (m/z) of one or more molecules found in a sample, mass spectrometry is a valuable analytical instrument. The precise molecular weight of the sample's constituent parts may often be determined using these measures as well. Mass spectrometers are often used to quantify known substances, identify novel compounds by molecular weight determination, and assess the structure and chemical characteristics of molecules.

How is a mass spectrometer able to do such a task? These three parts are included in every mass spectrometer:

- 1. Ionization Source
- 2. Mass Analyzer

System for detecting ions

To be moved and controlled by outside electric and magnetic fields, molecules are changed into gas-phase ions. In our lab, we use a procedure known as nanoelectrospray

ionization, which is somewhat comparable to the industrial painting of automobiles. With this technique, depending on the needs of the experiment, positively or negatively charged ions may be produced. The exit of a small-scale chromatography column may be coupled directly to the input of a mass spectrometer using nanoelectrospray ionization. A needle with a 10-15 um point is used to channel the flow from the column.

Mass Analyzer

The ions are sorted and segregated based on mass-to-charge (m/z) ratios after being ionized. There are many different mass analyzers on the market right now, and each one has trade-offs in terms of operating speed, separation resolution, and other operational needs. The next section goes over the various kinds used by the Broad Institute. Together, the mass analyzer and ion detection system are often used.

Detector for Ions

The m/z ratios and the relative abundances of the separated ions are then kept together in a data system once the separated ions have been measured and transferred there. The m/z ratios of the ions contained in a sample displayed against their intensities form a mass spectrum. The height of the peaks in a mass spectrum denotes the relative abundance of the different components in the sample, and each peak in a mass spectrum displays a component of distinct m/z in the sample.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the investigation of gold quantum clusters has revealed fascinating details about their electrical structure and optical characteristics, opening up an intriguing field of nanomaterial research. Due to its potential applicability across several areas, the sizedependent behavior of these clusters, which is regulated by quantum mechanical principles, has aroused great attention.By carefully regulating their size and surface ligands, gold clusters may have their electrical structure and optical characteristics tuned. Due to their tunability, quantum dots are now emerging as intriguing candidates for use in a variety of fields, including imaging, sensing, and catalysis. Additionally, the plasmonic resonance shown by these clusters has uncovered fresh perspectives in the realm of nanophotonics, presenting fresh methods for creating photonic devices and improving light-matter interactions.

REFERENCES:

- [1] C. Gautier and T. Bürgi, "Chiral gold nanoparticles," *ChemPhysChem.* 2009.
- [2] Y. Lu and W. Chen, "Progress in the synthesis and characterization of gold nanoclusters," *Struct. Bond.*, 2014.
- [3] G. Barcaro, "Metal Nanoparticles and Nanoalloys," *Mater. Today*, 2013.
- [4] M. Z. Numan, "Book Review: Nano: The Essentials / Understanding Nanoscience and Nanotechnology," J. Nanophotonics, 2009.
- [5] V. Rojas-Cervellera, C. Rovira, and J. Akola, "How do Water Solvent and Glutathione Ligands Affect the Structure and Electronic Properties of Au25(SR)18-?," *J. Phys. Chem. Lett.*, 2015.
- [6] G. Schmid and B. Corain, "Nanoparticulated gold: Syntheses, structures, electronics, and reactivities," *European Journal of Inorganic Chemistry*. 2003.

- [7] R. Jin, "Quantum sized, thiolate-protected gold nanoclusters," *Nanoscale*. 2010.
- [8] N. Zheng, J. P. Johnson, C. C. Williams, and G. Wang, "Electronic characterization of individual monolayer protected Au clusters by single electron tunneling force spectroscopy," *Nanotechnology*, 2010.
- [9] N. A. Sakthivel and A. Dass, "Aromatic Thiolate-Protected Series of Gold Nanomolecules and a Contrary Structural Trend in Size Evolution," *Acc. Chem. Res.*, 2018.
- [10] S. H. Yau, O. Varnavski, and T. Goodson, "An ultrafast look at Au nanoclusters," *Acc. Chem. Res.*, 2013.
- [11] S. S. Zhang *et al.*, "Diphosphine-protected ultrasmall gold nanoclusters: Opened icosahedral Au13 and heart-shaped Au8 clusters," *Chem. Sci.*, 2018.